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Item 8.01. Other Events.

On March 31, 2016 but effective January 1, 2016, Sunoco LP (the “Partnership”) completed an acquisition (the “Acquisition”), from ETP Retail Holdings, LLC
(“Contributor”), of (a) 100% of the issued and outstanding membership interests of Sunoco Retail LLC (“Sunoco Retail”) and (b) the remaining 68.42% of the issued and
outstanding membership interests of Sunoco, LLC (“Sunoco LLC”), pursuant to that certain Contribution Agreement (the “Contribution Agreement”), dated
November 15, 2015, by and among Sunoco LLC, Sunoco, Inc., Contributor, Sunoco GP LLC, the general partner of the Partnership, and, solely with respect to certain
provisions therein, Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. (“ETP”).

This Current Report on Form 8-K is being filed to reflect retrospective revisions that have been made as a result of the Acquisition to the consolidated financial statements
and certain related information of the Partnership that were previously filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) by the Partnership on
February 25, 2016 as Items 1, 6, 7 and 8 to its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 (the “2015 Form 10-K”).

Because Energy Transfer Equity, L.P., an indirect owner of the general partner of ETP, owns the Partnership’s general partner, the Acquisition was considered a
combination of entities under common control. Therefore, Sunoco Retail’s and Sunoco LLC’s assets and liabilities were not adjusted. The Partnership’s consolidated
financial statements have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect consolidation of Sunoco Retail and Sunoco LLC for all prior periods beginning September 1, 2014 (the
date of common control).

In order to preserve the nature and character of the disclosures set forth in the 2015 Form 10-K, the items included in this Form 8-K have been updated solely for matters
relating specifically to the retrospective revision of the Partnership’s financial statements and related information, except that subsequent events required to be reported
under generally accepted accounting principles have been disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. This Form 8-K should be read in conjunction with
the 2015 Form 10-K and filings made by the Partnership with the SEC subsequent to the filing of the Form 10-K, including the Partnership’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2016 filed with the SEC on May 5, 2016.

Item 9.01 of this Current Report on Form 8-K revises certain information contained in the Partnership’s 2015 Form 10-K to reflect certain retrospective revisions. In
particular, Exhibit 99.1 through 99.4 contain a revised description of the following sections of the 2015 Form 10-K: Part I. Item 1. Business, Part II. Item 6. Selected
Financial Data, Part II. Item 7.Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, and Part II. Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data. No other sections of the 2015 Form 10-K have been revised as a result of the Acquisition.

Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.

See the Exhibit Index set forth below for a list of exhibits included with this Form 8-K.

Exhibit No. Description

23.1 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP.

23.2 Consent of Grant Thornton LLP.

233 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.

99.1 Revised Sunoco LP Part 1 Item 1 - Business.

99.2 Revised Sunoco LP Part II Item 6 - Select Financial Data.

99.3 Revised Sunoco LP Part IT Item 7 - Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

99.4 Revised Sunoco LP Part IT Item 8 - Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.



101.INS

101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document



SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned hereunto duly authorized.

SUNOCO LP
By Sunoco GP LLC, its general partner

Date: July 15,2016 By: /s/ Thomas R. Miller

Thomas R. Miller
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our report dated July 15, 2016, with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Sunoco LP as of December 31, 2015, and for the year then ended,
included in this Current Report of Sunoco LP on Form 8-K. We consent to the incorporation by reference of said report in the Registration Statements of Sunoco LP on

Forms S-3 (File No. 333-210494, File No. 333-203965, and File No. 333-192335) and on Form S-8 (File No. 333-184035).
/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Dallas, Texas
July 15,2016



Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We have issued our report dated July 15, 2016, with respect to the combined financial statements of the Sunoco Retail Businesses as of December 31, 2014, and for the
period from September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 (not presented herein), included in this Current Report of Sunoco LP on Form 8-K. We consent to the

incorporation by reference of said report in the Registration Statements of Sunoco LP on Forms S-3 (File No. 333-210494, File No. 333-203965, and File No. 333-192335)
and on Form S-8 (File No. 333-184035).

/s GRANT THORNTON LLP

Dallas, Texas
July 15,2016



Exhibit 23.3
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-184035) pertaining to the 2012 Long Term Incentive Plan Sunoco LP, and

Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-192335) of Sunoco LP, as amended

Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-203965) of Sunoco LP

Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-210494) of Sunoco LP
of our report dated July 15, 2016 with respect to the consolidated financial statements of Sunoco LP included in this Current Report on Form §-K.
/s/ Emst & Young LLP

Houston, Texas
July 15,2016



Exhibit 99.1
PART 1

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains “forward-looking statements.” All statements other than statements of historical fact contained in this report are forward-looking statements,
including, without limitation, statements regarding our plans, strategies, prospects and expectations concerning our business, results of operations and financial condition.
You can identify many of these statements by looking for words such as “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “project,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “continue” or similar words or the
negative thereof.
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Known material factors that could cause our actual results to differ from those in these forward-looking statements are described in Part I, Item 1A (“Risk Factors”)
included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015 (“2015 10-K”) and Part II, Item 7 (“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations”) of this report.

All forward-looking statements included in this report are based on information available to us on the date of this report. Except as required by law, we undertake no
obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. All subsequent written and oral
forward-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the foregoing cautionary statements.

Item 1. Business

General

(LIS

As used in this document, the terms “Partnership”, “SUN”, “we”, “us”, or “our” should be understood to refer to Sunoco LP, known prior to October 27, 2014 as
Susser Petroleum Partners LP, and our consolidated subsidiaries as applicable and appropriate.

Overview

We are a growth-oriented Delaware master limited partnership. We are managed by our general partner, Sunoco GP LLC (our “General Partner”), which is owned
by Energy Transfer Equity, L.P., another publicly traded master limited partnership (“ETE”). The following simplified diagram depicts our organizational structure as of

December 31, 2015.
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Effective January 1, 2016, certain of our operating subsidiaries exchanged their Class A units for Class C units.
On March 31, 2016, in connection with our previously announced private placement agreement, we issued 2,263,158 common

units representing limited partnership interests to ETE.
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limited partner

On March 31, 2016, in connection with the closing of the ETP Dropdown, we issued 5,710,922 common units representing
interests to ETP Retail Holdings, LLC (“ETP Retail”).



We are engaged in retail sale of motor fuels and merchandise through our company-operated convenience stores and retail fuel sites, as well as the whole sale
distribution of motor fuels to convenience stores, independent dealers, commercial customers and distributors. Additionally, through Sunoco LLC, we are the exclusive
wholesale supplier of the iconic Sunoco branded motor fuel, supplying an extensive di stribution network of approximately 5,000 Sunoco -branded company and third-party
operated locations.

On March 31, 2016, we completed the previously announced acquisition of (a) 100% of the issued and outstanding membership interests of Sunoco Retail LLC
(“Sunoco Retail”), an entity that was formed by Sunoco, Inc. (R&M), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Sunoco, Inc., prior to the closing of the ETP Dropdown
Contribution Agreement, and (b) 68.42% of the issued and outstanding interests of Sunoco LLC. This acquisition was accounted for as a transaction between entities under
common control. Specifically, the Partnership recognized acquired assets and assumed liabilities at their respective carrying values with no goodwill created. The
Partnership’s results of operations include 100% of Sunoco LLC’s and Sunoco Retail’s results of operations beginning September 1, 2014, the date of common control. As a
result, the Partnership retrospectively adjusted its financial statements to include the balances and operations of Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail from August 31, 2014.

During 2015, we completed strategic acquisitions of businesses that operate complementary motor fuel distribution and convenience retail stores (see “Acquisitions”
below). As a result of these acquisitions, including the acquisition of Sunoco Retail as discussed above, we operate approximately 1,330 convenience stores and fuel outlets
in more than 30 states, offering merchandise, food service, motor fuel and other services as of December 31, 2015. Our retail stores operate under several brands, including
our proprietary convenience store brands Stripes ® , APlus ® Aloha Island Mart ® , and other retail locations acquired from Mid-Atlantic Convenience Stores, LLC
(“MACS”), most of which we intend to brand APlus during 2016 (see “Acquisitions” below). We distributed approximately 7.6 billion gallons of motor fuel during 2015
through our convenience stores and consignment locations, contracted independent convenience store operators, and other commercial customers. We believe our combined
retail and wholesale business model will make it possible for us to achieve an optimal return on our investment as we integrate new or acquired stores while minimizing
overhead costs.

Operating Segments and Subsidiaries
We operate our business as two segments, which are primarily engaged in wholesale fuel distribution and retail fuel and merchandise sales, respectively. Our
primary operations are conducted by the following consolidated subsidiaries:
Wholesale Subsidiaries

. Susser Petroleum Operating Company LLC (“SPOC”), a Delaware limited liability company, distributes motor fuel to Stripes’ retail locations, consignment
locations, as well as third party customers in Louisiana, New Mexico, Oklahoma and Texas.

. Sunoco Energy Services LLC, a Texas limited liability company, distributes motor fuels, propane and lubricating oils, primarily in Texas, Oklahoma, New
Mexico and Kansas.

. Sunoco LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, primarily distributes motor fuels across more than 26 states throughout the East Coast, Midwest, and
Southeast regions of the United States.

. Southside Oil, LLC, a Virginia limited liability company, distributes motor fuel primarily in Virginia, Maryland, Tennessee, and Georgia.

. Aloha Petroleum, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, distributes motor fuel and operates terminal facilities on the Hawaiian Islands.

Retail Subsidiaries
. Susser Petroleum Property Company LLC (“PropCo”), a Delaware limited liability company, primarily owns and leases convenience store properties.
. Susser Holdings Corporation, a Delaware corporation, sells motor fuel and merchandise in Texas, New Mexico, and Oklahoma through Stripes-branded

convenience stores and transports motor fuel under GoPetro Transport LLC.

. Sunoco Retail, a Pennsylvania limited liability company, owns and operates convenience stores that sell motor fuel and merchandise primarily in Pennsylvania,
New York, and Florida.

. MACS Retail LLC (“MACS Retail”), a Virginia limited liability company, owns and operates convenience stores primarily in Virginia, Maryland, and
Tennessee.

. Aloha Petroleum, Ltd. (“Aloha”), a Hawaii corporation, owns and operates convenience stores on the Hawaiian Islands.
See Note 19 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part II, Item 8 for additional financial information on our segments.
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Acquisitions

On April 1, 2015 we acquired a 31.58% membership interest and 50.1% voting interest in Sunoco LLC from ETP Retail Holdings, LLC (“ETP Retail”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. (“ETP”), for total consideration of approximately $775 million in cash (the “Cash Consideration”) and 795,482
common units. The Cash Consideration was financed through issuance of 6.375% Senior Notes due 2023. The common units issued to ETP Retail were issued and sold in a
private transaction exempt from registration under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). Sunoco LLC is retrospectively included
in our Consolidated Financial Statements as of September 1, 2014, the date of common control.

On July 31, 2015, we acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of Susser Holdings Corporation (“Susser”) from wholly-owned subsidiaries of ETP,
for total consideration of approximately $966.9 million in cash and 21,978,980 Class B units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership (“Class B Units”). The
Class B Units were identical to the common units in all respects, except the Class B Units were not entitled to distributions payable with respect to the second quarter of
2015. The Class B Units converted, on a one-for-one basis, into common units on August 19, 2015. In addition, (i) a Susser subsidiary exchanged its 79,308 common units
for 79,308 Class A units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership (“Class A Units”), (ii) 10,939,436 subordinated units owned by Susser subsidiaries were
converted into 10,939,436 Class A Units and (iii) SUN issued 79,308 common units and 10,939,436 subordinated units to subsidiaries of ETP. The Class A Units were
contributed to us as part of the transaction. The common, subordinated and Class B Units issued to ETP subsidiaries were issued and sold in a private transaction exempt
from registration under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act. Susser is retrospectively included in our Consolidated Financial Statements as of September 1, 2014, the date
of common control.

On August 10, 2015, we acquired 27 convenience stores in the Upper Rio Grande Valley from Aziz Convenience Stores, L.L.C. for $41.6 million. We allocated the
total purchase consideration to the assets acquired based on our preliminary estimate of their respective fair values at the purchase date. The acquisition increased goodwill
by $4.3 million.

On November 15, 2015, we entered into a Contribution Agreement (the “ETP Dropdown Contribution Agreement”) with Sunoco LLC, Sunoco, Inc. (“Sunoco Inc.”),
ETP Retail, our General Partner, and ETP. Pursuant to the terms of the ETP Dropdown Contribution Agreement, we agreed to acquire from ETP Retail, effective January 1,
2016, (a) 100% of the issued and outstanding membership interests of Sunoco Retail, an entity that was formed by Sunoco, Inc. (R&M), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of Sunoco Inc., prior to the closing of the transactions contemplated by the ETP Dropdown Contribution Agreement, and (b) 68.42% of the issued and
outstanding membership interests of Sunoco LLC (the “ETP Dropdown”). Pursuant to the terms of the ETP Dropdown Contribution Agreement, ETP agreed to guarantee all
of the obligations of ETP Retail.

Immediately prior to the closing, Sunoco Retail owned all of the retail assets formerly owned by Sunoco, Inc. (R&M), the ethanol plant located in Fulton, NY
formerly owned by Sunoco, Inc. (R&M), 100% of the issued and outstanding membership interests in Sunmarks, LLC, and all the retail assets formerly owned by Atlantic
Refining & Marketing Corp., a wholly owned subsidiary of Sunoco Inc.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the ETP Dropdown Contribution Agreement, at the closing of the ETP dropdown, we paid to ETP Retail approximately $2.2
billion in cash, which included certain working capital adjustments, and issued to ETP Retail 5,710,922 common units representing limited partner interests in the
Partnership (the “ETP Dropdown Unit Consideration”). The ETP Dropdown Unit Consideration was issued and sold to ETP Retail in private transactions exempt from
registration under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act. The ETP Dropdown was completed on March 31, 2016.

On December 15, 2015, we acquired a wholesale motor fuel distribution business serving the Northeastern United States from Alta East, Inc. for approximately
$57.1 million plus the value of inventory on hand at closing. As part of the transaction, we acquired a total of 32 fee and leased properties, and supply contracts with the
dealer-owned and operated sites.

On December 23, 2015 we completed the acquisition of 33 convenience stores and retail fuel outlets in Virginia subject to rights of purchase from entities controlled
by the Uphoff Unitholders (members of MACS Holdings, LLC, owner of MACS prior to the acquisition by ETP) for $53.7 million, including payment of associated
mortgage debt of $44.3 million. The sites had been operated by MACS and consolidated as VIEs pursuant to leases from a former sharecholder of MACS. This transaction
terminated separated consolidation of the VIEs, with purchased assets continuing to be included in our consolidated financial statements.

See Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part II, Item 8 for additional information on our acquisitions.
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Available Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 8020 Park Lane, Suite 200, Dallas, Texas 75231. Our telephone number is (832) 234-3600. Our internet address is
http://www.sunocolp.com. We make available through our website our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and
amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish such material to, the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. Information
contained on our website is not part of this report. The SEC maintains an internet site at http.//www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and
other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC.

Our Relationship with Energy Transfer Equity, L.P. and Energy Transfer Partners, L.P.

ETE is a publicly traded master limited partnership that directly and indirectly owns equity interests in ETP, Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. (“SXL”) and the
Partnership, all of which are also publicly traded master limited partnerships engaged in diversified energy-related businesses.

ETP is one of the largest publicly traded master limited partnerships in the U.S. in terms of equity market capitalization. ETP, through its wholly owned operating
subsidiaries, is engaged primarily in natural gas and natural gas liquids transportation, storage and fractionation services. ETP is also engaged in refined product and crude
oil operations including transportation and retail marketing of gasoline and middle distillates through its subsidiaries.

One of our principal strengths is our relationship with ETE and ETP. Through the July 14, 2015 exchange and repurchase agreement with ETP, ETE acquired
(i) 100% of the membership interests of our General Partner from ETP and (ii) all of our incentive distribution rights from ETP. As of March 31, 2016, ETP and ETE
collectively owned a 40.9% limited partnership interest in us. Given the significant joint ownership, we believe ETE and ETP will be motivated to promote and support the
successful execution of our business strategies. In particular, we believe it will be in ETP and ETE’s best interest to facilitate organic growth opportunities and accretive
acquisitions from third parties, although neither ETE nor ETP is under any obligation to do so.

Commercial Agreements with Affiliates

Through Sunoco LLC, we are party to the following fee-based commercial agreements with various subsidiaries of ETP:

. Philadelphia Energy Solutions Offtake Contract —a 1-year supply agreement with Philadelphia Energy Solutions LLC (“PES”). ETP Retail owns a 33% non-
operating noncontrolling interest in PES.

. SXL Transportation and Terminalling Contracts — Sunoco LLC is party to various agreements with subsidiaries of SXL for pipeline, terminalling and storage
services. Sunoco LLC also has agreements with SXL for the purchase and sale of fuel.

In addition, we are a party to three intercompany, long-term, fee-based commercial agreements with Susser and Sunoco Retail. Prior to the Partnership’s acquisition
of Susser in July 2015 and Sunoco Retail in March 2016, these commercial agreements were considered contracts with affiliates:

. Susser Distribution Contract —a 10-year agreement under which we are the exclusive distributor of motor fuel at cost (including tax and transportation costs)
plus a fixed profit margin of three cents per gallon to Susser's existing Stripes convenience stores and independently operated consignment locations, and to
all sites purchased by the Partnership pursuant to the sale and leaseback option under the Omnibus Agreement (as defined below). In addition, all future
motor fuel volumes purchased by Susser for its own account will be added to the Susser Distribution Contract pursuant to the terms of our Omnibus
Agreement;

. Susser Transportation Contract — a 10-year agreement under which Susser arranges for motor fuel to be delivered from our suppliers to some of our
customers at rates consistent with those charged to third parties for the delivery of motor fuel, with the cost being entirely passed along to our customers,
including Susser.

. Sunoco Distribution Contract — a 10-year agreement under which Sunoco LLC is the exclusive wholesale distributor of motor fuel to existing Sunoco Retail
company-operated convenience stores. Pursuant to the agreement, pricing is cost plus a fixed margin of four cents per gallon.

In connection with the closing of our initial public offering (“IPO”) on September 25, 2012, we also entered into an Omnibus Agreement with Susser (the "Omnibus
Agreement"). Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, among other things, the Partnership received a three-year option to purchase from Susser up to 75 of Susser's new or
recently constructed Stripes convenience stores at Susser's cost and lease the stores back to Susser at a specified rate for a 15-year initial term. The Partnership is the
exclusive distributor of motor fuel



to such stores for a period of ten years from the date of purchase. We have completed all 75 sale-leaseback transactions under the Omnibus Agreement.

For more information regarding the commercial agreements, please read “Item 13. Certain Relationships, Related Transactions and Director Independence” included
in our 2015 10-K.

Our Business and Operations
Wholesale Operations Segment

We are a wholesale distributor of motor fuels and other petroleum products that we supply to our retail segment, to third-party dealers, and to independent operators
of consignment locations.

Through our ownership interest in Sunoco LLC we are the exclusive wholesale supplier of the iconic Sunoco branded motor fuel, supplying an extensive distribution
network of approximately 5,000 Sunoco-branded company and third-party operated locations throughout the East Coast, Midwest and Southeast regions of the United States
as well as approximately 190 company-operated Sunoco branded locations in Texas. We believe we are one of the largest independent motor fuel distributors by gallons in
Texas and one of the largest distributors of Chevron, Exxon, and Valero branded motor fuel in the United States. In addition to distributing motor fuel, we also distribute
other petroleum products such as propane and lube oil, and we receive rental income from real estate that we lease or sublease. Sales of fuel from our wholesale segment to
our retail segment are delivered at a cost plus profit margin.

We purchase motor fuel primarily from independent refiners and major oil companies and distribute it across more than 30 states throughout the East Coast,
Midwest and Southeast regions of the United States, as well as Hawaii to:

. approximately 1,330 company-operated convenience stores and fuel outlets;
. 147 independently operated consignment locations where we sell motor fuel under consignment arrangements to retail customers;
. 5,323 convenience stores and retail fuel outlets operated by independent operators, which we refer to as “dealers,” or “distributors” pursuant to long-term

distribution agreements; and

. approximately 1,930 other commercial customers, including unbranded convenience stores, other fuel distributors, school districts and municipalities and
other industrial .

Sales to Affiliates

In 2015, we sold fuel to affiliates pursuant to the Susser Distribution Contract and, through our ownership interest in Sunoco LLC, pursuant to the Sunoco
Distribution Contract. The Susser Distribution Contract and Sunoco Distribution Contract remained in place after we acquired Susser in July 2015 and Sunoco Retail in
March 2016. However, they are no longer deemed affiliated contracts. Therefore wholesale sales to Susser and Sunoco Retail are recorded as intercompany sales and
eliminated in consolidation. The associated sales by Susser and Sunoco Retail to third parties are reflected in retail sales.

Dealer Incentives

In addition to motor fuel distribution, we offer dealers the opportunity to participate in merchandise purchasing and promotional programs arranged with vendors.
We believe the vendor relationships we have established through our retail operations and our ability to develop programs provide us with an advantage over other
distributors when recruiting new dealers into our network, as well as retaining current dealers. Our dealer incentives gives our dealers access to discounted rates on products
and services that they would likely not be able to obtain on their own.

Sales to Contracted Third Parties

As of December 31, 2015, through SPOC, we distributed fuel under long-term contracts to convenience stores and retail fuel outlets operated by third parties. No
single third party dealer is material to our business. Under our legacy wholesale distribution contracts with third parties, we agree to distribute a particular brand of, or
unbranded, motor fuel to a location or group of locations and arrange for all transportation and logistics. Our distribution contracts are typically constructed so that we either
receive a fee per gallon equal to the posted purchase price at the fuel supply terminal, plus transportation costs, taxes and a fixed, volume-based fee, which is usually
expressed in cents per gallon, or receive a variable cent per gallon margin (“dealer tank wagon pricing”). The initial term of



dealer distribution contracts range from three to twenty years, with most contracts for ten years. These agreements requi re, among other things, that dealers maintain the
standards established by the applicable fuel brand, if any.

Sunoco LLC’s branded dealer and branded wholesale distributor contracts generally have both time and volume commitments that establish contract duration. On
average, the branded dealer contracts for third party sites have an initial term of approximately ten years, with an estimated, volume-weighted term remaining on those
contracts of approximately five years. These contracts typically include (i) dealer tank wagon pricing or (ii) delivered pricing at the rack rate, plus transportation costs, taxes
and a fixed, volume-based fee. On average, Sunoco LLC’s branded wholesale distributor agreements have an initial term of approximately eight years, with a volume-
weighted term remaining on those contracts of approximately six years. These contracts typically provide pricing that is fixed to Sunoco LLC’s posted fuel prices at the rack
rate, less any appropriate commercial discounts.

As of December 31, 2015, our legacy wholesale business distributed fuel under consignment arrangements at 147 locations. Under these arrangements we provide
and control motor fuel inventory and price at the site and receive actual retail selling price for each gallon sold, less a commission paid to the independent operators.

We continually seek to expand our dealer distribution network through additions of new dealers and consignment locations and through acquisitions of contracts for
existing independently operated sites from other distributors. We evaluate potential independent site operators based on their creditworthiness and the quality of their site
and operations, including the site’s size and location, projected monthly volumes of motor fuel, monthly merchandise sales, overall financial performance and previous
operating experience. We may extend credit to certain dealers based on our credit evaluation process.

Sales to Other Commercial Customers

We distribute unbranded fuel to numerous other customers, including convenience stores, unattended fueling facilities and certain other commercial customers.
These customers are primarily commercial, governmental and other parties who buy motor fuel by the load or in bulk and who do not generally enter exclusive contractual
relationships with us, if they enter into a contractual relationship with us at all. Sales to these customers are typically made at a quoted price based upon our cost plus taxes,
cost of transportation and a margin determined at time of sale, and may provide for immediate payment or the extension of credit for up to 30 days. We also sell propane,
lube oil and other petroleum products, such as heating fuels, to our commercial customers on both a spot and contracted basis. In addition, through Sunoco LLC we receive
income from the manufacture and wholesale sale of race fuels.

Fuel Supplier Arrangements

We distribute branded motor fuel under the Aloha, Chevron, Citgo, Conoco, Exxon, Mahalo, Mobil, Phillips66, Shamrock, Shell, Texaco, Sunoco, and Valero
brands. We purchase branded motor fuel from major oil companies and refiners under supply agreements. Our largest branded fuel suppliers in terms of volume are Exxon,
Chevron and Valero. The branded fuel supply agreements generally have an initial term of three to five years. Each supply agreement typically contains provisions relating
to payment terms, use of the supplier’s brand names, credit card processing, compliance with other of the supplier’s requirements, insurance coverage and compliance with
legal and environmental requirements, among others.

We also distribute unbranded motor fuel, which we purchase on a bulk basis, on a rack basis based upon prices posted by the refiner at a fuel supply terminal, or on a
contract basis with the price tied to one or more market indices.

As is typical in the industry, our suppliers generally can terminate the supply contract if we do not comply with any material condition of the contract, including our
failure to make payments when due, fraud, criminal misconduct, bankruptcy or insolvency.

Bulk Fuel Purchases

We purchase motor fuel in bulk and hold it in inventory or transport it via pipeline, in which case we mitigate the inventory risk through the use of commodity
futures contracts or other derivative instruments which are matched in quantity and timing to the anticipated usage of the inventory. We also blend in various additives
including ethanol and bio-mass based diesel.

Transportation Logistics

We provide transportation logistics for most of our motor fuel deliveries through our own fleet of fuel transportation vehicles as well as third-party and affiliated
transportation providers. We arrange for motor fuel to be delivered from the storage terminals to the appropriate sites in our distribution network at prices consistent with
those historically charged to third parties for the delivery of fuel. We also deliver motor fuel, propane, and lubricants to commercial customers involved in petroleum
exploration and production.



Technology

Technology is an important part of our wholesale operations. We utilize a proprietary web-based system that allows our wholesale customers to access their accounts
at any time from a personal computer to obtain prices, place orders and review invoices, credit card transactions and electronic funds transfer notifications. Substantially all
of our customer payments are processed by electronic funds transfer. We use an internet-based system to assist with fuel inventory management and procurement and an
integrated wholesale fuel system for financial accounting, procurement, billing and inventory management .

Retail Operations Segment

As of December 31, 2015, our retail segment operated approximately 1,330 convenience stores and retail fuel outlets. Our retail convenience stores operate under
several brands, including our proprietary brands Stripes, APlus and Aloha Island Mart, and offer a broad selection of food, beverages, snacks, grocery and non-food
merchandise, motor fuel and other services. We have company operated sites in more than 30 states, with a significant presence in Texas, Pennsylvania, New York, Florida,
Virginia and Hawaii.

As of December 31, 2015, we operated 725 Stripes convenience stores in Texas, New Mexico, and Oklahoma which stock 2,500 to 3,500 merchandise units, on
average. Each store offers a customized merchandise mix based on local customer demand and preferences. To further differentiate its merchandise offering, we have
developed numerous proprietary offerings and private label items unique to Stripes stores, including Laredo Taco Company® restaurants, Café de la Casa® custom blended
coffee, Slush Monkey® frozen carbonated beverages, Quake® energy drink, Smokin’ Barrel® beef jerky and meat snacks, Monkey Loco® candies, Monkey Juice® and
Royal® brand cigarettes. Stripes has built approximately 236 large-format convenience stores from January 2000 through December 31, 2015 and expects to construct and
open approximately 35 to 40 stores during 2016. We have implemented its proprietary in-house Laredo Taco Company restaurants in approximately 440 Stripes
convenience stores and intend to implement it in all newly constructed Stripes convenience stores. Stripes also owns and operates ATM and proprietary money order
systems in most of its stores and also provides other services such as lottery, prepaid telephone cards and wireless services, movie rental and car washes.

As of December 31, 2015, we operated approximately 440 retail convenience stores and fuel outlets, primarily under our proprietary iconic Sunoco fuel brand and
are primarily located in Pennsylvania, New York, and Florida, including 345 APlus convenience stores.

As of December 31, 2015, we operated approximately 175 MACS and Aloha convenience stores and fuel outlets in Virginia, Maryland, Tennessee, Georgia, and
Hawaii offering merchandise, foodservice, motor fuel and other services. As of December 31, 2015, MACS operated 125 company-operated retail convenience stores and
Aloha operated 50 Aloha, Shell, and Mahalo branded fuel stations.

For further detail of our segment results refer to “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 19
Segment Reporting.”

Merchandise Suppliers

Our Stripes business purchases approximately 38% of its total retail merchandise from McLane Company, Inc. and the majority of its products and ingredients for
Laredo Taco Company restaurants from Labatt Foods. Our MACS business purchases approximately 58% of its total retail merchandise from Core-Mark Holding Company,
Inc. Our Aloha business purchases approximately 49% of its total merchandise from Hansen Distribution Group. Our Sunoco Retail business purchases approximately 72%
of its total merchandise from McLane Company, Inc. These suppliers currently deliver products to all of our retail stores. We do not maintain additional product inventories
other than what is in our stores.

Sale of Regulated Products

In certain areas where our convenience stores are located, state or local laws limit the hours of operation for the sale of alcoholic beverages and restrict the sale of
alcoholic beverages and tobacco products to persons younger than a certain age. State and local regulatory agencies have the authority to approve, revoke, suspend or deny
applications for and renewals of permits and licenses relating to the sale of alcoholic beverages, as well as to issue fines to convenience stores for the improper sale of
alcoholic beverages and tobacco products. Failure to comply with these laws may result in the loss of necessary licenses and the imposition of fines and penalties on us.
Such a loss or imposition could have a material adverse effect on our business, liquidity and results of operations.

Real Estate and Lease Arrangements

As of December 31, 2015, we owned 1,486 locations and leased 664 additional locations, some of which we rent or sublease to third parties. We collect rent from the
lessees at these locations pursuant to lease agreements with them.



Competition

In our wholesale fuel distribution business, we compete primarily with other independent motor fuel distributors. The markets for distribution of wholesale motor
fuel and the large and growing convenience store industry are highly competitive and fragmented, which results in narrow margins. We have numerous competitors, some of
which may have significantly greater resources and name recognition than we do. Significant competitive factors include the availability of major brands, customer service,
price, range of services offered and quality of service, among others. We rely on our ability to provide value-added and reliable service and to control our operating costs in
order to maintain our margins and competitive position.

In our retail business, we face strong competition in the market for the sale of retail gasoline and merchandise. Our competitors include service stations of large
integrated oil companies, independent gasoline service stations, convenience stores, fast food stores, supermarkets, drugstores, dollar stores, club stores and other similar
retail outlets, some of which are well-recognized national or regional retail systems. The number of competitors varies depending on the geographical area. It also varies
with gasoline and convenience store offerings. The principal competitive factors affecting our retail marketing operations include gasoline and diesel acquisition costs, site
location, product price, selection and quality, site appearance and cleanliness, hours of operation, store safety, customer loyalty and brand recognition. We compete by
pricing gasoline competitively, combining our retail gasoline business with convenience stores that provide a wide variety of products, and using advertising and
promotional campaigns.

Seasonality

Our business exhibits some seasonality due to our customers’ increased demand for motor fuel during the late spring and summer months as compared to the fall and
winter months. Travel, recreation and construction activities typically increase in these months in the geographic areas in which we operate, increasing the demand for motor
fuel. Therefore, the volume of motor fuel that we distribute is typically somewhat higher in the second and third quarters of our fiscal year. In our retail operations, we
experience seasonality due to consumer purchase patterns in the geographic area in which our stores are concentrated. As a result, our results from operations may vary from
period to period. The addition of the MACS, Aloha, Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail locations have helped mitigate the seasonal impacts of our formerly Texas-centric
business.

Working Capital Requirements

Prior to the acquisitions of Sunoco Retail, Susser, Aloha and MACS, we had minimal working capital requirements, as we did not hold significant amounts of
inventory and we received payment for most of the gallons we sold on approximately the same payment terms as we had with our suppliers. After giving effect to the
acquisitions, our working capital needs have increased as we now maintain customary levels of fuel and merchandise inventories, and carry corresponding payables balances
to suppliers of those inventories, relating to our convenience store operations. In addition, Sunoco LLC purchases a significant amount of unbranded fuel in bulk and stores
it for an extended amount of time. We also have rental obligations relating to leased locations as a result of our acquisitions of Sunoco Retail, Susser, Aloha and MACS. Our
working capital needs will typically fluctuate over the medium to long term with the price of crude oil, and over the short term within each month due to the timing of motor
fuel tax, sales tax, interest and rent payments.

Environmental Matters
Environmental Laws and Regulations

We are subject to various federal, state and local environmental laws and regulations, including those relating to underground storage tanks; the release or discharge
of hazardous materials into the air, water and soil; the generation, storage, handling, use, transportation and disposal of regulated materials; the exposure of persons to

regulated materials; and the remediation of contaminated soil and groundwater.

Environmental laws and regulations can restrict or impact our business activities in many ways, such as:

. requiring remedial action to mitigate releases of hydrocarbons, hazardous substances or wastes caused by our operations or attributable to former operators;
. requiring capital expenditures to comply with environmental control requirements; and
. enjoining the operations of facilities deemed to be in noncompliance with environmental laws and regulations.

Failure to comply with environmental laws and regulations may trigger a variety of administrative, civil and criminal enforcement measures, including the
assessment of monetary penalties, the imposition of remedial requirements and the issuance of orders enjoining or otherwise curtailing future operations. Certain
environmental statutes impose strict, joint and several liability for costs required to



clean up and restore sites where hydrocarbons, hazardous substances or wastes have been released or disposed of. Moreover, neighboring landowners and other third parties
may file claims for personal injury and property damage allegedly caused by the release of hydrocarbons, hazardous substances or other wastes into the environment.

We believe we are in compliance in all material respects with applicable environmental laws and regulations, and we do not believe that compliance with federal,
state or local environmental laws and regulations will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, results of operations or cash available for distribution to our
unitholders. Any future change in regulatory requirements could cause us to incur significant costs. We incorporate by reference into this section our disclosures included in
Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Part II, Item 8.

Hazardous Substances and Releases

Certain environmental laws, including the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 (“CERCLA”), impose strict, and under
certain circumstances, joint and several, liability on the owner and operator as well as former owners and operators of properties for the costs of investigation, removal or
remediation of contamination and also impose liability for any related damages to natural resources without regard to fault. In addition, under CERCLA and similar state
laws, as persons who arrange for the transportation, treatment or disposal of hazardous substances, we also may be subject to similar liability at sites where such hazardous
substances come to be located. We may also be subject to third-party claims alleging property damage and/or personal injury in connection with releases of or exposure to
hazardous substances at, from or in the vicinity of our current properties or off-site waste disposal sites.

We are required to comply with federal and state financial responsibility requirements to demonstrate that we have the ability to pay for remediation or to
compensate third parties for damages incurred as a result of a release of regulated materials from our underground storage tank systems. We meet these requirements
primarily by maintaining insurance which we purchase from private insurers.

Environmental Reserves

We are currently involved in the investigation and remediation of contamination at motor fuel storage and gasoline store sites where releases of regulated substances
have been detected. We accrue for anticipated future costs and the related probable state reimbursement amounts for remediation activities. Accordingly, we have recorded
estimated undiscounted liabilities for these sites totaling $36.9 million as of December 31, 2015. We have additional reserves of $54.5 million that represent our estimate for
future asset retirement obligations for underground storage tanks.

Underground Storage Tanks

We are required to make financial expenditures to comply with regulations governing underground storage tanks adopted by federal, state and local regulatory
agencies. Pursuant to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended, the Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA”) has established a comprehensive
regulatory program for the detection, prevention, investigation and cleanup of leaking underground storage tanks. State or local agencies are often delegated the
responsibility for implementing the federal program or developing and implementing equivalent state or local regulations. We have a comprehensive program in place for
performing routine tank testing and other compliance activities which are intended to promptly detect and investigate any potential releases. We believe we are in
compliance in all material respects with requirements applicable to our underground storage tanks.

Air Emissions

The Federal Clean Air Act (the “Clean Air Act”) and similar state laws impose requirements on emissions to the air from motor fueling activities in certain areas of
the country, including those that do not meet state or national ambient air quality standards. These laws may require the installation of vapor recovery systems to control
emissions of volatile organic compounds to the air during the motor fueling process. Under the Clean Air Act and comparable state and local laws, permits are typically
required to emit regulated air pollutants into the atmosphere. We believe that we currently hold or have applied for all necessary air permits and that we are in substantial
compliance with applicable air laws and regulations. Although we can give no assurances, we are aware of no changes to air quality regulations that will have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or cash available for distribution to our unitholders.

Various federal, state and local agencies have the authority to prescribe product quality specifications for the motor fuels that we sell, largely in an effort to reduce
air pollution. Failure to comply with these regulations can result in substantial penalties. Although we can give no assurances, we believe we are currently in substantial
compliance with these regulations.



Efforts at the federal and state level are currently underway to reduce the levels of greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions from various sources in the United States. At
the federal level, Congress has considered legislation to reduce GHG emissions in the United States. Such federal legislation may impose a carbon emissions tax or establish
a cap-and-trade program or regulation by the EPA. Even in the absence of new federal legislation, GHG emissions have begun to be regulated by the EPA pursuant to the
Clean Air Act. For exa mple, in April 2010, the EPA set a new emissions standard for motor vehicles to reduce GHG emissions. New federal or state restrictions on
emissions of GHGs that may be imposed in areas of the United States in which we conduct business and that apply to ou r operations could adversely affect the demand for
our products. In addition, in January 2015, President Obama’s Administration announced plans for EPA to issue final standards in 2016 that would reduce methane
emissions from new and modified oil and natur al gas production by up to 45% from 2012 levels by 2025. Moreover, in August 2015, EPA issued final rules outlining the
Clean Power Plan or CPP which was developed in accordance with President Obama’s Climate Action Plan announced the previous year. Under the CPP, carbon pollution
from power plants must be reduced over 30% below 2005 levels by 2030.

Many studies have discussed the relationship between greenhouse gases and climate change. One consequence of climate change noted in many of these reports is
the increased severity of extreme weather, such as increased hurricanes and floods. Such events could adversely affect our operations through water damage, powerful winds
or increased costs for insurance.

Other Government Regulation

The Petroleum Marketing Practices Act, or “PMPA”, is a federal law that governs the relationship between a refiner and a distributor, as well as between a
distributor and branded dealer, pursuant to which the refiner or distributor permits a distributor or dealer to use a trademark in connection with the sale or distribution of
motor fuel. Under the PMPA, we may not terminate or fail to renew a branded distributor contract unless certain enumerated preconditions or grounds for termination or
nonrenewal are met and we also comply with the prescribed notice requirements. Additionally, we are subject to state petroleum franchise laws as well as laws specific to
gasoline retailers and dealers, including state laws that regulate our relationships with third parties to whom we lease sites and supply motor fuels.

Employee Safety

We are subject to the requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Act, or “OSHA,” and comparable state statutes that regulate the protection of the health
and safety of workers. In addition, OSHA’s hazard communication standards require that information be maintained about hazardous materials used or produced in
operations and that this information be provided to employees, state and local government authorities and citizens. We believe that we are in substantial compliance with the
applicable OSHA requirements.

Store Operations

Our stores are subject to regulation by federal agencies and to licensing and regulations by state and local health, sanitation, safety, fire and other departments
relating to the development and operation of convenience stores, including regulations relating to zoning and building requirements and the preparation and sale of food.
Difficulties in obtaining or failures to obtain the required licenses or approvals could delay or prevent the development or operation of a new store in a particular area.

Our operations are also subject to federal and state laws governing such matters as wage rates, overtime, working conditions and citizenship requirements. At the
federal level, there are proposals under consideration from time to time to increase minimum wage rates.

Title to Properties, Permits and Licenses

We believe we have all of the assets needed, including leases, permits and licenses, to operate our business in all material respects. With respect to any consents,
permits or authorizations that have not been obtained, we believe that the failure to obtain these consents, permits or authorizations will not have a material adverse effect on
our financial position, results of operations or cash available for distribution to our unitholders.

We believe we have satisfactory title to all of our assets. Title to property may be subject to encumbrances, including repurchase rights and use, operating and
environmental covenants and restrictions, including restrictions on branded motor fuels that may be sold at such sites. We believe that none of these encumbrances will
detract materially from the value of our sites or from our interest in these sites, nor will they interfere materially with the use of these sites in the operation of our business.
These encumbrances may, however, impact our ability to sell the site to an entity seeking to use the land for alternative purposes.
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Our Employees

We are managed and operated by the board of directors and executive officers of our General Partner, which has sole responsibility for providing us with the
employees and other personnel necessary to conduct our operations. All of the employees that conduct our business are employed by affiliates of our General Partner. As of
December 31, 2015, our General Partner’s affiliates had approximately 19,333 employees, 329 of which are represented by labor unions or associations, performing services
for our operations, with appropriate costs allocated to us. We believe that we and our General Partner and its affiliates have a satisfactory relationship with employees.
Information concerning the executive officers of our General Partner is contained in “Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance” of our 2015 10-K.
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Exhibit 99.2
Part I1

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Selected financial data set forth below are presented for the period January 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014 (the “Predecessor Period”) prior to ETP’s acquisition of
Susser on August 29, 2014 (the “ETP Merger”). From September 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014, financial data is presented for the Partnership after the ETP Merger and
under the application of “push down” accounting that required its assets and liabilities to be adjusted to fair value on August 31, 2014 (“Successor Period”). The following
tables set forth key operating metrics as of and for the periods indicated and have been derived from our audited historical consolidated financial statements. For the year
ended December 31, 2014, we have combined the Predecessor Period and the Successor Period and presented the unaudited financial data on a combined basis for
comparative purposes. This combination does not comply with generally accepted accounting principles or the rules for unaudited pro forma presentation, but is presented
because we believe it provides the most meaningful comparison of our financial results. The impact to the 2014 Successor Period from “push down” accounting related to
the ETP Merger resulted in a $1.7 billion net change in the fair value of the Partnership’s assets and liabilities and a $4.1 million decrease in depreciation expense, offset by
a $3.9 million increase in amortization expense.

The 2014 results also reflect the results of the Susser, Sunoco LLC, Sunoco Retail, and MACS acquisitions beginning on September 1, 2014, the initial date of
common control, since these acquisitions were accounted for as transactions between entities under common control, and the results of the Aloha acquisition beginning on
December 16, 2014.

Prior to our September 25, 2012 IPO, our wholesale assets were a part of the integrated operations of Susser. Accordingly, gross profit in the period prior to our IPO
includes only gross profit received from third parties for our wholesale distribution services. In addition, the results of operations included results from consignment
contracts retained by Susser following the IPO. For this reason, our results of operations are not comparable before and after the IPO.

The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and related notes thereto, and Item 7. “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included herein.

Successor Combined Predecessor
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31, De;f)lﬂ)g)ﬂ, December 31, December 31, December 31,
2015 (unandited) 2013 2012 (1) 2011
(in thousands, except per unit data)

Statement of Income Data:
Total revenues $ 18,460,216 $ 10,835,026 $§ 4492579 $§ 4321412 $ 3,874,980
Total gross profit 1,983,903 636,740 70,964 51,502 43,023
Operating expenses 1,650,570 571,711 30,026 28,090 26,062
Income from operations 333,333 65,029 40,938 23,412 16,961
Net income attributable to limited partners $ 87,238 $ 56,743 $ 37,027 $ 17,570  $ 10,598
Net income per common limited partner unit (2) $ .11 $ 1.87 $ 1.69 $ 0.42
Net income per subordinated limited partner unit (2) $ 140 $ 1.87 § 1.69 $ 0.42
Cash distribution per unit (2) $ 289 § 217  $ 1.84 $ 0.47
Cash Flow Data:
Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities $ 438,622 $ 352,644 $ 50,680 $ 16,488 $ 14,665

Investing activities $ (2,454,812) $ (1,019,702) $ 6,358 $ (190,949) $ (19,153)

Financing activities $ 1,952,236 $ 647,552 $ (55,640) $ 180,973 $ (21)



Successor Predecessor
As of December 31,
2015 201403) 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)
Balance Sheet Data (at period end):
Cash and cash equivalents $ 72,627 $ 136,581 $ 8,150 $ 6,752 240
Property and equipment, net 3,154,826 2,799,330 180,127 68,173 39,049
Total assets 8,841,819 8,773,080 390,084 355,800 231,316
Total liabilities 3,579,082 2,764,920 310,391 277,468 115,503
Total equity 5,262,737 6,008,160 79,693 78,332 115,813
1) Results include activity prior to our IPO on September 25, 2012 when our wholesale assets were integrated with Susser. Our results of operations for fiscal 2012 are
not comparable before and after September 25, 2012.
?2) Calculated based on operations since September 25, 2012, the date of our IPO.
3) Reflects combined results of the Predecessor period from January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014, and the Successor period from September 1, 2014 to

December 31, 2014. The impact from “push down” accounting related to the ETP Merger resulted in a $1.7 billion net change in the fair value of the Partnership’s
assets and liabilities and a $4.1 million decrease in depreciation expense, offset by a $3.9 million increase in amortization expense. See Note 4 in the accompanying

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Exhibit 99.3
Part 11

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our audited consolidated financial
statements and notes to audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this report.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and distributable cash flow are non-GAAP financial measures of performance that have limitations and should not be considered as a
substitute for net income or cash provided by (used in) operating activities. Please see footnote (7) under “Key Operating Metrics” below for a discussion of our use of
EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA, and distributable cash flow in this “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and a
reconciliation to net income for the periods presented.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report, including without limitation, our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations, and any information incorporated by
reference, contains statements that we believe are “forward-looking statements”. These forward-looking statements generally can be identified by use of phrases such as
“believe,” “plan,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “forecast” or other similar words or phrases. Descriptions of our objectives, goals, targets, plans, strategies, costs,
anticipated capital expenditures, expected cost savings and benefits are also forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are based on our current plans
and expectations and involve a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results and events to vary materially from the results and events anticipated or
implied by such forward-looking statements, including:

”» < <

. Our ability to make, complete and integrate acquisitions from affiliates or third-parties, including the recently completed acquisition of the remaining
membership interests in Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail LLC (“Sunoco Retail”);

. Business strategy and operations of Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. (“ETP”) and Energy Transfer Equity, L.P. (“ETE”) and ETP’s and ETE’s conflicts of
interest with us;

. Changes in the price of and demand for the motor fuel that we distribute and our ability to appropriately hedge any motor fuel we hold in inventory;

. Our dependence on limited principal suppliers;

. Competition in the wholesale motor fuel distribution and convenience store industry;

. Changing customer preferences for alternate fuel sources or improvement in fuel efficiency;
. Environmental, tax and other federal, state and local laws and regulations;

. The fact that we are not fully insured against all risks incident to our business;

. Dangers inherent in the storage and transportation of motor fuel;
. Our reliance on senior management, supplier trade credit and information technology; and

. Our partnership structure, which may create conflicts of interest between us and Sunoco GP LLC, our general partner (“General Partner”) and its affiliates, and
limits the fiduciary duties of our General Partner and its affiliates.

All forward-looking statements are expressly qualified in their entirety by the foregoing cautionary statements.

For a discussion of these and other risks and uncertainties, please refer to “Item 1A. Risk Factors” included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2015 (“2015 10-K”). The list of factors that could affect future performance and the accuracy of forward-looking statements is illustrative but by no means
exhaustive. Accordingly, all forward-looking statements should be evaluated with the understanding of their inherent uncertainty. The forward-looking statements included
in this report are based on, and include, our estimates as of the filing of this report. We anticipate that subsequent events and market developments will cause our estimates
to change. However, while we may elect to update these forward-looking statements at some point in the future, we specifically disclaim any obligation to do so except as
required by law, even if new information becomes available in the future.



Overview

We are a growth-oriented Delaware master limited partnership. We are engaged in the retail sale of motor fuels and merchandise through our company-operated
convenience stores and retail fuel sites, as well as the wholesale distribution of motor fuels to convenience stores, independent dealers, commercial customers and
distributors. Additionally, through Sunoco LLC, we are the exclusive wholesale supplier of the iconic Sunoco-branded motor fuel, supplying an extensive distribution
network of approximately 5,000 Sunoco-branded company and third-party operated locations throughout the East Coast, Midwest and Southeast regions of the United States
as well as approximately 190 company-operated Sunoco-branded Stripes locations in Texas.

As used in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations, the terms “Partnership”, “SUN”, “we”, “us”, or “our”
should be understood to refer to Sunoco LP, known prior to October 27, 2014 as Susser Petroleum Partners LP, and our consolidated subsidiaries, as applicable and
appropriate.

We are managed by our General Partner and as of March 31, 2016, ETP and ETE collectively owned a 40.9% limited partnership interest in us. Both our General
Partner and ETP are in in turn owned by ETE, another publicly traded master limited partnership. Additional information is provided in Note 1 of our Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

On April 1, 2015 and July 31, 2015, we completed the acquisition of a 31.58% membership interest in Sunoco LLC and 100% of the issued and outstanding shares
of capital stock of Susser, respectively. On March 31, 2016, we completed the acquisition of (i) the remaining 68.42% membership interest and 49.9% voting interest in
Sunoco LLC and (ii) 100% of the issued and outstanding membership interests of Sunoco Retail (see Note 4 of the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for more information.) Results of operations for these acquisitions, deemed transactions between entities under common control, have been included in our
consolidated results of operations since September 1, 2014, the date of common control.

In late 2015, we announced plans to open a corporate office in Dallas, Texas. Certain employees have begun relocating to Dallas from Philadelphia, Pennsylvania,
Houston, Texas and Corpus Christi, Texas. The relocation is in the preliminary stages and no significant costs or liabilities have been incurred or recognized as of December
31, 2015. We estimate the costs to be incurred in 2016 to be approximately $10.0 million, but do not expect such costs to have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition, results of operations or cash flows.

We believe we are one of the largest independent motor fuel distributors by gallons in Texas and one of the largest distributors of Chevron, Exxon, and Valero
branded motor fuel in the United States. In addition to distributing motor fuel, we also distribute other petroleum products such as propane and lube oil, and we receive
rental income from real estate that we lease or sublease. Sales of fuel from our wholesale segment to our retail segment are delivered at a cost plus profit margin.

We purchase motor fuel primarily from independent refiners and major oil companies and distribute it across more than 30 states throughout the East Coast,
Midwest and Southeast regions of the United States, as well as Hawaii to:

. approximately 1,330 company-operated convenience stores and fuel outlets;
. 147 independently operated consignment locations where we sell motor fuel under consignment arrangements to retail customers;
. 5,323 convenience stores and retail fuel outlets operated by independent operators, which we refer to as “dealers,” or “distributors” pursuant to long-term

distribution agreements; and

. approximately 1,930 other commercial customers, including unbranded convenience stores, other fuel distributors, school districts and municipalities and other
industrial customers.

As of December 31, 2015, our retail segment operated approximately 1,330 convenience stores and fuel outlets. Our retail convenience stores operate under several
brands, including our proprietary brands Sunoco, Stripes, APlus, and Aloha Island Mart, and offer a broad selection of food, beverages, snacks, grocery and non-food
merchandise, motor fuel and other services. We sold 2.5 billion retail gallons at these sites during the twelve months ended December 31, 2015. We opened 42 new retail
sites during the twelve months ended December 31, 2015, which is reflected in retail activity for the period.

As of December 31, 2015, we operated 725 Stripes convenience stores that carry a broad selection of food, beverages, snacks, grocery and non-food merchandise.
Our proprietary in-house Laredo Taco Company restaurant is implemented in approximately 440 Stripes convenience stores and we intend to implement it in all newly

constructed Stripes convenience stores. Additionally, we have 45 national branded restaurant offerings in our Stripes stores.
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As of December 31, 2015, we operated approximately 440 retail convenience stores and fuel outlets, primarily under our proprietary iconic Sunoco fuel brand and
are primarily located in Pennsylvania, New York, and Florida, including 345 APlus convenience stores.

As of December 31, 2015, we operated approximately 175 MACS and Aloha convenience stores and fuel outlets in Virginia, Maryland, Tennessee, Georgia, and
Hawaii offering merchandise, foodservice, motor fuel and other services. As of December 31, 2015, MACS operated 125 company-operated retail convenience stores and
Aloha operated 50 Aloha, Shell, and Mahalo branded fuel stations.

Market and Industry Trends and Outlook

We expect that certain trends and economic or industry-wide factors will continue to affect our business, both in the short-term and long-term. We base our
expectations on information currently available to us and assumptions made by us. To the extent our underlying assumptions about or interpretation of available information
prove to be incorrect, our actual results may vary materially from our expected results. Read “Item 1A. Risk Factors” included in our 2015 10-K for additional information
about the risks associated with purchasing our common units.

Regional Trends

A significant portion of our business is conducted in Texas. The economy in Texas has continued to fare better than many other parts of the nation, partly as a result
of a relatively stable housing market and strong population growth and job creation. However, the recent declines in crude oil pricing may result in a slowdown of economic
activity in certain of our Texas markets.

Our MACS, Aloha, Sunoco Retail and Sunoco LLC operations provide both geographic and business diversification. MACS supports retail convenience store and
contracted dealer fuel distribution locations in Virginia, Maryland, Tennessee and Georgia. Additionally, many of the local markets in which our stores operate contain
restrictions on new development, creating barriers to new entrants. Through Aloha, we are a leading fuel distributor and convenience store operator across four islands of
Hawaii. Sunoco Retail operates primarily in Pennsylvania, New York, and Florida. Our Sunoco LLC business also operates in more than 26 states.

Industry Consolidation

There has been considerable consolidation in our industry as major integrated oil companies continue to divest sites they own or lease, and independent dealers
continue to experience pressure from increased competition from non-traditional fuel suppliers, such as Walmart and grocery store chains. We capitalized on the
complementary relationship between our wholesale and retail business by pursuing, both independently and jointly with ETP, mixed asset acquisition opportunities which
may not be attractive to a pure wholesaler or pure retailer. We believe that certain strategic opportunities will continue to exist for us related to these divestitures that will
provide us with opportunities to grow our fuel, merchandise, and rental income revenues.

Seasonality

Our business exhibits some seasonality due to our customers’ increasing demand for motor fuel during the late spring and summer months as compared to the fall
and winter months. Travel, recreation, and construction activities typically increase in these months, driving up the demand for motor fuel and merchandise sales. Our
revenues are typically somewhat higher in the second and third quarters of our fiscal years due to this seasonality. Results from operations may therefore vary from period to
period.

Key Measures Used to Evaluate and Assess Our Business

Management uses a variety of financial measurements to analyze business performance, including the following key measures:

. Wholesale and retail motor fuel gallons sold . One of the primary drivers of our business is the total volume of motor fuel sold through our wholesale and
retail channels. Fuel distribution contracts with our wholesale customers generally provide that we distribute motor fuel at a fixed, volume-based profit
margin or at an agreed upon level of price support. As a result, wholesale gross profit is directly tied to the volume of motor fuel that we distribute.

. Gross profit per gallon . Gross profit per gallon is calculated as the gross profit on motor fuel (excluding non-cash fair value adjustments) divided by the
number of gallons sold, and is typically expressed as cents per gallon. Our gross profit per gallon varies amongst our third-party relationships and is impacted
by the availability of certain discounts and rebates from suppliers. Retail gross profit per gallon is heavily impacted by volatile pricing and intense
competition from club stores, supermarkets and other retail formats.

. Merchandise gross profit and margin . Merchandise gross profit is calculated as the gross sales price of merchandise less direct cost of goods and shortages,
including bad merchandise and theft. Merchandise margin is calculated as merchandise
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gross profit as a percentage of m erchandise sales. We do not include gross profit from ancillary products and services in the calculation of merchandise gross
profit.

. Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow . Adjusted EBITDA as used throughout this document, is defined as earnings before net interest expense,
income taxes, depreciation, amortization and accretion, further adjusted to exclude allocated non-cash compensation expense and certain other operating
expenses reflected in net income that we do not believe are indicative of ongoing core operations, such as gain or loss on disposal of assets and non-cash
impairment charges. Effective September 1, 2014, as a result of the ETP Merger, we define Adjusted EBITDA to also include adjustments for unrealized
gains and losses on commodity derivatives and inventory fair value adjustments. We define distributable cash flow as Adjusted EBITDA less cash interest
expense, including the accrual of interest expense related to our 2020 and 2023 Senior Notes which is paid on a semi-annual basis, current income tax
expense, maintenance capital expense and other non-cash adjustments.

Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow are not financial measures calculated in accordance with GAAP. For a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA
and distributable cash flow to their most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with GAAP, read “Key Operating
Metrics” below.

Key Operating Metrics

The following information is intended to provide investors with a reasonable basis for assessing our historical operations but should not serve as the only criteria for
predicting our future performance.

Beginning with the acquisition of MACS on October 1, 2014, we began operating our business in two primary operating segments, wholesale and retail, both of
which are included as reportable segments. As a result, the year ended December 31, 2014 includes the retail operations segment beginning in September 1, 2014.

Key operating metrics set forth below are presented for the period January 1, 2014 to August 31, 2014 prior to the ETP Merger (the “Predecessor Period”). From
September 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014, financial data is presented for the Partnership after the ETP Merger and under the application of “push down” accounting that
required its assets and liabilities to be adjusted to fair value on August 31, 2014 (“Successor Period”). The following tables set forth key operating metrics as of and for the
periods indicated and have been derived from our audited historical consolidated financial statements. For the year ended December 31, 2014, we have combined the
Predecessor Period and the Successor Period and presented the unaudited financial data on a combined basis for comparative purposes. This combination does not comply
with generally accepted accounting principles or the rules for unaudited pro forma presentation, but is presented because we believe it provides the most meaningful
comparison of our financial results. The impact to the 2014 Successor Period from “push down” accounting related to the ETP Merger resulted in a $4.1 million decrease in
depreciation expense, offset by a $3.9 million increase in amortization expense.



Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014 (unaudited) 2013
‘Wholesale Retail Total Wh(()gsale R(e;s)ul T(olt)a 1 Total
(dollars and gallons in thousands, except motor fuel pricing and gross profit per gallon)
Revenues:
Retail motor fuel sales $ — $ 5891249 § 5,891,249 $ — $ 2376,608 $ 2,376,608 $ —
Wholesale motor fuel sales
to third parties 10,104,193 — 10,104,193 5,510,837 — 5,510,837 1,502,786
Wholesale motor fuel sales
to affiliates 20,026 — 20,026 2,200,394 — 2,200,394 2,974,122
Merchandise sales — 2,178,187 2,178,187 — 651,324 651,324 —
Rental income 51,599 29,675 81,274 26,459 9,980 36,439 10,060
Other income 27,674 157,613 185,287 2,215 57,209 59,424 5,611
Total revenues $ 10,203,492 $ 8,256,724  $ 18,460,216 $ 7,739,905 $ 3,095,121 $ 10,835,026 $ 4,492,579
Gross profit:
Retail motor fuel $ — $ 635,197 $ 635,197 $ — $ 270,087 $ 270,087 $ —
Wholesale motor fuel 407,468 — 407,468 78,399 — 78,399 57,904
Merchandise — 679,878 679,878 — 196,522 196,522 —
Rental and other 74,339 187,021 261,360 34,002 57,730 91,732 13,060
Total gross profit $ 481,807 $ 1,502,096 $ 1,983,903 $ 112,401 $ 524339 § 636,740 $ 70,964
Net income attributable
to limited partners (6) $ (4,411) $ 91,649 §$ 87,238 $ 72,076  $ (15,333) $ 56,743 $ 37,027
Adjusted EBITDA
attributable to partners (6,7) $ 303,032 $§ 4122266 $ 715,298 $ 190,320 $ 183,133  $ 373,453 $ 51,884
Distributable cash flow
attributable to partners, as adjusted (6,7) $ 272,233 $ 98,658 $ 47,678
Operating Data:
Total motor fuel gallons sold:
Retail 2,488,135 2,488,135 787,207 787,207
Wholesale (3) 5,154,415 5,154,415 1,744,311 1,744,311 517,775
Wholesale contract affiliated (4) — — 776,834 776,834 1,053,259
Motor fuel gross profit
cents per gallon (5):
Retail 26.4¢ 26.4¢ 36.4¢ 36.4¢
Wholesale (3) 9.4¢ 9.4¢ 10.6¢ 10.6¢ 5.1¢
Wholesale contract affiliated (4) 3.0¢ 3.0¢ 3.0¢
Volume-weighted average
for all gallons 14.9¢ 19.6¢ 3.7¢
Retail merchandise margin 31.2% 30.2%

1) Reflects combined results of the Predecessor Period from January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014, and the Successor Period from September 1, 2014 to December
31, 2014. The impact in the Successor Period from “push down” accounting related to the ETP Merger resulted in a $4.1 million decrease in depreciation expense,
offset by a $3.9 million increase in amortization expense. See Note 4 in the Notes to the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements.

2) Reflects MACS and Sunoco LLC wholesale operations and MACS, Sunoco Retail and Susser retail operations, beginning September 1, 2014.

3) Reflects all wholesale transactions excluding those pursuant to the Susser Distribution Contract for January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014 at a set three cent
margin as dictated by the agreement.

“) Reflects transactions in the predecessor period pursuant to the Susser Distribution Contract at a set three cent margin as dictated by agreement.
%) Excludes the impact of inventory fair value adjustments consistent with the definition of Adjusted EBITDA.

(6) Excludes the noncontrolling interest results of operations related to our consolidated variable interest entities (“VIEs”).
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We define EBITDA as net income before net interest expense, income tax expense and depreciation, amortization and accretion expense. Adjust ed EBITDA further
adjusts EBITDA to reflect certain other non-recurring and non-cash items. Effective September 1, 2014, as a result of the ETP Merger and to conform the method by
which we measure our business to that of ETP’s operations, we define Adjuste d EBITDA to also include adjustments for unrealized gains and losses on commodity
derivatives and inventory fair value adjustments. We define distributable cash flow as Adjusted EBITDA less cash interest expense, including the accrual of interest
expense r elated to our 2020 and 2023 Senior Notes that is paid on a semi-annual basis, current income tax expense, maintenance capital expenditures, and other
non-cash adjustments. Further adjustments are made to distributable cash flow for certain transaction-rela ted and non-recurring expenses that are included in net
income.

We believe EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow are useful to investors in evaluating our operating performance because:
. Adjusted EBITDA is used as a performance measure under our revolving credit facility;

. securities analysts and other interested parties use such metrics as measures of financial performance, ability to make distributions to our unitholders and debt
service capabilities;

. our management uses them for internal planning purposes, including aspects of our consolidated operating budget, and capital expenditures; and

. distributable cash flow provides useful information to investors as it is a widely accepted financial indicator used by investors to compare partnership
performance, and as it provides investors an enhanced perspective of the operating performance of our assets and the cash our business is generating.

EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow are not recognized terms under GAAP and do not purport to be alternatives to net income (loss) as
measures of operating performance or to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity. EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow
have limitations as analytical tools, and one should not consider them in isolation or as substitutes for analysis of our results as reported under GAAP. Some of these
limitations include:

. they do not reflect our total cash expenditures, or future requirements for capital expenditures or contractual commitments;

. they do not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, working capital;

. they do not reflect interest expense or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal payments on our revolving credit facility or term loan;

. although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized will often have to be replaced in the future, and

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect cash requirements for such replacements; and

. as not all companies use identical calculations, our presentation of EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and distributable cash flow may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures of other companies.



The following table presents a reconciliation of net income to EBITDA, Adjusted EBITDA and dis tributable cash flow:

Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014 (unaudited) 2013
Wholesale Retail Total Wh(();()esale R(e;;ul T(olt)a 1 Total
(in thousands)
Net income (loss) and
comprehensive income (loss) $ 91,482 $§ 102,587 $ 194,069 $ (100,345) $ 69,910 $ (30,435) | $ 37,027
Depreciation, amortization,
and accretion 67,780 210,529 278,309 34,971 61,728 96,699 8,687
Interest expense, net 54,296 33,279 87,575 7,362 8,340 15,702 3,471
Income tax expense 4321 47,368 51,689 67,978 11,784 79,762 440
EBITDA 217,879 393,763 611,642 9,966 151,762 161,728 49,625
Non-cash compensation expense 4,016 3,968 7,984 5,119 4,488 9,607 1,935
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
& impairment charge 1,440 (2,130) (690) (309) (707) (1,016) 324
Unrealized (gains) losses on
commodity derivatives 1,848 — 1,848 (1,166) — (1,166) —
Inventory fair value adjustments (9) 77,849 20,481 98,330 176,710 28,633 205,343 —
Adjusted EBITDA 303,032 416,082 719,114 190,320 184,176 374,496 51,884
Net income attributable
to noncontrolling interest — 3,816 3,816 — 1,043 1,043 —
Adjusted EBITDA attributable
to partners 303,032 412,266 715,298 190,320 183,133 373,453 51,884
Cash interest expense (8) 76,213 12,029 3,090
Income tax expense (current) (18,353) 3,275 302
Maintenance capital expenditures 34,559 5,196 814
Preacquisition earnings 356,764 260,465 —
Distributable cash flow attributable
to partners $ 266,115 $ 92,488 $ 47,678
Transaction-related expenses 6,118 6,170 —
Distributable cash flow attributable
to partners, as adjusted $ 272233 $ 98,658 $ 47,678

®) Reflects the partnership’s cash interest paid less the cash interest paid on our VIE debt of $9.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2015.

9 Due to the change in fuel prices, we recorded a $98.3 million and $205.3 million write-down of the value of fuel inventory during the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively.

Year Ended December 31, 2015 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2014 (Combined Basis)

The following discussion of results for 2015 compared to 2014 compares the operations for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The year
ended December 31, 2014 consists of results of operations from the Predecessor and Successor Periods, reflecting “push down” accounting after the ETP Merger. The
acquisitions of MACS, Susser, Sunoco LLC, and Sunoco Retail were considered transactions between entities under common control, and as such, results are reflected as of
September 1, 2014, the initial date of common control for accounting purposes.

Revenue . Total revenue for 2015 was $18.5 billion, an increase of $7.7 billion from 2014. The increase is primarily attributable to the following changes in revenue,
slightly offset by a year-over-year decrease in average fuel pricing in continuing operations:

. an increase in wholesale motor fuel revenue of $2.4 billion, of which $3.4 billion is due to the addition of the Sunoco LLC business, partially offset
by a $1.1 billion decrease in sales to affiliates in our legacy wholesale business due to the acquisition and consolidation of Susser, an affiliate in the
Predecessor Period;

. the addition of retail fuel revenue totaling $3.5 billion and merchandise revenue of $1.5 billion, attributable to the addition of MACS, Susser, Aloha
and Sunoco Retail operations; and



. an increase in rental and other revenue of $170.8 million as a result of a $44.9 million increase in rental income primarily due to the addition of the
MACS, Susser, Sunoco LLC, and Sunoco Retail businesses and a $125.9 million increase in other income primar ily related to increased other retail
income such as car wash, ATM, and lottery income.

Gross Profit . Gross profit for 2015 was $2.0 billion, an increase of $1.4 billion from 2014. The increase in gross profit is attributable to the following:
. an increase in the gross profit on wholesale motor fuel sales of $329.1 million, primarily due to the addition of the Sunoco LLC business;

. the addition of $365.1 million of gross profit on retail motor fuel sales and $483.4 million of gross profit on merchandise sales related to our MACS,
Susser, Aloha, and Sunoco Retail operations; and

. an increase in rent and other gross profit of $169.6 million related to rental income and other retail revenue items as mentioned above.

Total Operating Expenses . Total operating expenses for 2015 were $1.7 billion, an increase of $1.1 billion from 2014. The increase in total operating expenses is
attributable to the following:

. an increase in general and administrative expenses of $109.1 million, of which $49.1 million, $40.7 million and $5.8 million is due to the addition of
Sunoco LLC, Susser, and Sunoco Retail, respectively, $6.1 million of acquisition related costs, and the remaining being attributable to MACS and
Aloha;

. an increase in other operating expenses of $690.8 million, of which $321.6 million, $62.3 million, $35.1 million, $29.0 million and $244.4 million
are attributable to the Susser, MACS, Aloha, Sunoco LLC, and Sunoco Retail businesses, respectively;

. increased depreciation, amortization and accretion expense of $181.6 million, of which $53.4 million, $49.0 million, and $51.4 million is attributable
to the Sunoco LLC business, the MACS and Aloha, and the Sunoco Retail businesses, respectively, with the remainder being attributable to Susser;
and

. the impact from “push down” accounting related to the ETP Merger resulted in a $4.1 million decrease in depreciation expense, offset by a
$3.9 million increase in amortization expense.

Interest Expense . Interest expense increased primarily due to our $600.0 million 5.500% senior notes due 2020 (the “2020 Senior Notes”) and $800.0 million
6.375% senior notes due 2023 (the “2023 Senior Notes”), as well as the increase in borrowings under the 2014 Revolver (as defined below under “Liquidity and Capital
Resources — 2014 Revolver”).

Income Tax Expense . Income tax expense for 2015 and 2014 was $51.7 million and $79.8 million, respectively. The decrease is primarily due to the revaluation of
investments in affiliates.

Year Ended December 31, 2014 (Combined Basis) Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2013

The following discussion of results for 2014 compared to 2013 compares the operations for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The results
for 2014 consist of results of operations from the Predecessor and Successor Periods, reflecting “push down” accounting after the ETP Merger. The acquisitions of MACS,
Susser, Sunoco LLC, and Sunoco Retail were considered transactions between entities under common control, and as such, results are reflected as of September 1, 2014, the
initial date of common control for accounting purposes.

Revenue . Total revenue for 2014 was $10.8 billion, an increase of $6.3 billion from 2013. The increase is primarily attributable to the following changes in revenue:

. an increase in wholesale motor fuel sales of $3.2 billion, of which $4.2 billion is due to the addition of the Sunoco LLC business, partially offset by a
$873.8 million decrease in sales to affiliates in our legacy wholesale business due to the acquisition and consolidation of Susser, an affiliate in the
Predecessor Period,

. the addition of four months of retail fuel sales of $2.4 billion and merchandise revenue of $651.3 million, each attributable to our MACS, Susser,
Aloha, and Sunoco Retail operations; and

. an increase in rental and other revenue of $80.2 million due to a $26.4 million increase in rental income primarily due to the addition of the MACS,
Susser, Sunoco LLC, and Sunoco Retail businesses and a $53.8 million increase in other income primarily related to increased other retail income
such as car wash, ATM, and lottery income.



Gross Profit . Gross profit for 2014 was $636.7 million, an increase of $565.7 million over 2013. The increase in gross profit is attributable to the following:
. an increase in the gross profit on wholesale motor fuel sales of $20.5 million;

. the addition of $270.1 million of gross profit on retail motor fuel sales and $196.5 million of gross profit on merchandise sales related to our MACS,
Susser, Aloha and Sunoco Retail operations; and

. an increase in rent and other gross profit of $78.6 million related to rental income and other retail revenue items as mentioned above.

Total Operating Expenses . Total operating expenses for 2014 were $571.7 million, an increase of $541.7 million from 2013. The increase in operating expenses is
attributable to the following:

. an increase in general and administrative expenses of $91.1 million, of which $14.3 million, $15.7 million, and $44.5 million is due to the addition of
Sunoco LLC, Susser and Sunoco Retail, respectively, $6.2 million of acquisition related costs, and the remaining being attributable to MACS;

. an increase in other operating expenses of $322.1 million, of which $158.8 million, $5.4 million,$46.8 million and $94.4 million are attributable to
the Susser, MACS, Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail businesses, respectively;

. increased depreciation, amortization and accretion expense of $88.0 million, of which $16.8 million, $27.1 million, and $25.9 million is attributable
to the Sunoco LLC, Susser and Sunoco Retail businesses, respectively, with the remainder being attributable to MACS; and

. the impact from “push down” accounting in 2014 related to the ETP Merger resulted in a $4.1 million decrease in depreciation expense, offset by a
$3.9 million increase in amortization expense.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased primarily due to our 2020 and 2023 Senior Notes, as well as the increase in 2014 Revolver borrowings.

Income Tax Expense . Income tax expense for 2014 and 2013 was $79.8 million and $0.4 million, respectively. The increase is primarily due to the addition of the
Susser business.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity

Our principal liquidity requirements are to finance current operations, to fund capital expenditures, including acquisitions from time to time, to service our debt and
to make distributions. We expect our ongoing sources of liquidity to include cash generated from operations, borrowings under our revolving credit facility and the issuance
of additional long-term debt or partnership units as appropriate given market conditions. We expect that these sources of funds will be adequate to provide for our short-term
and long-term liquidity needs.

Our ability to meet our debt service obligations and other capital requirements, including capital expenditures and acquisitions, will depend on our future operating
performance which, in turn, will be subject to general economic, financial, business, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other conditions, many of which are beyond our
control. As a normal part of our business, depending on market conditions, we will from time to time consider opportunities to repay, redeem, repurchase or refinance our
indebtedness. Changes in our operating plans, lower than anticipated sales, increased expenses, acquisitions or other events may cause us to seek additional debt or equity
financing in future periods. There can be no guarantee that financing will be available on acceptable terms or at all. Debt financing, if available, could impose additional
cash payment obligations and additional covenants and operating restrictions. In addition, any of the items discussed in detail under “Item 1A. Risk Factors” included in our
2015 10-K may also significantly impact our liquidity.

As of December 31, 2015, we had $72.6 million of cash and cash equivalents on hand and borrowing capacity of $1,027.5 million under the 2014 Revolver.

Cash flow information set forth below is presented for the Predecessor Period. For the Successor Period, financial data is presented for the Partnership after the ETP
Merger and under the application of “push down” accounting that required its assets and liabilities to be adjusted to fair value on August 31, 2014. For the year ended
December 31, 2014, we have combined the Predecessor Period and the Successor Period and presented the unaudited financial data on a combined basis for comparative
discussion purposes. This combination does not comply with generally accepted accounting principles or the rules for unaudited pro forma presentation, but is presented
because we believe it provides the most meaningful comparison of our financial results.
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Successor Predecessor

Year ended September 1, 2014 January 1, 2014 Year ended
December through through December
31, 2015 December 31, 2014 August 31,2014 31,2013

(in thousands)
Net cash provided by (used in)

Operating activities $ 438,622 $ 319,282 § 33362 $ 50,680

Investing activities (2,454,812) (952,664) (67,038) 6,358

Financing activities 1,952,236 618,331 29,221 (55,640)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (63,954) $ (15,051) $ (4,455) $ 1,398

Cash Flows Provided by Operations

Cash flows provided by operations are our main source of liquidity. Our daily working capital requirements fluctuate within each month, primarily in response to the
timing of payments for motor fuel, motor fuel tax and rent. Net cash provided by operations was $438.6 million and a combined $352.6 million for 2015 and 2014,
respectively. The growth in cash flows from operations is primarily attributable to the acquisitions of MACS and Aloha in 2014 and the acquisition of Sunoco Retail
effective September 1, 2014, along with continuing growth in the underlying business. Cash flows also fluctuate with increases or decreases in accounts receivable and
accounts payable, which are impacted by increasing or decreasing motor fuel prices and costs, as well as organic growth in volumes sold and volume increases due to
acquisitions.

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $2.5 billion for 2015, compared to a combined $1.0 billion for 2014. Capital expenditures, including purchase of intangibles, were
$551.5 million and a combined $260.3 million for 2015 and 2014, respectively. Included in our capital expenditures for 2015 was $82.9 million in maintenance capital and
$468.7 million in growth capital. Growth capital relates primarily to new store construction and dealer supply contracts.

Cash Flows Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was $1.9 billion for 2015, compared to a combined $647.6 million for 2014. During year ended December 31, 2015 we:

. borrowed $1.5 billion and repaid $1.5 billion under our revolving credit facility to fund daily operations;

. completed the offering of our 2023 Senior Notes on April 1, 2015;

. completed the offering of our 2020 Senior Notes on July 20, 2015;

. completed a public offering of common units for net proceeds of approximately $212.9 million on July 21, 2015;

. issued 21,978,980 Class B units representing limited partner interests in the Partnership (which converted, on a one-for-one basis, into common units
on August 19, 2015) to wholly-owned subsidiaries of ETP as partial consideration for the acquisition of Susser along with approximately
$966.9 million in cash;

. completed the private placement of 24,052,631 of our common units for gross proceeds of approximately $685 million on December 3, 2015;

. repaid approximately $242.2 million related to long term borrowings;

. paid $120.4 million in distributions to our unitholders; and

. paid $204.2 million in distributions to ETP and ETE.

We intend to pay a cash distribution to the holders of our common units and Class C units on a quarterly basis, to the extent we have sufficient cash from our
operations after establishment of cash reserves and payment of fees and expenses, including payments to our General Partner and its affiliates. Class C unitholders receive
distributions of Available Cash (as defined in our Partnership Agreement) that excludes Available Cash attributable to PropCo. There is no guarantee that we will pay a
distribution on our units. On January 25, 2016, we declared a quarterly distribution totaling $70.0 million, or $0.8013 per common unit based on the results for the three
months ended December 31, 2015, excluding distributions to Class C unitholders. The distribution was paid on February 16, 2016 to all unitholders of record on
February 5, 2016.
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2014 Revolver

On September 25, 2014, we entered into a $1.25 billion revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks expiring September 25, 2019 (which date may be extended
in accordance with the terms of the credit agreement) (the “Original 2014 Revolver”). On April 10, 2015, we entered into an amendment to the Original 2014 Revolver
which, among other things, increased the borrowing base to $1.5 billion. On December 2, 2015, we entered into an additional amendment to the Original 2014 Revolver
(as amended to date, the “2014 Revolver”) which, among other things, (a) permits the incurrence of a term loan credit facility in connection with the consummation of the
ETP dropdown, (b) permits such term loan credit facility to be secured on a pari passu basis with the indebtedness incurred under the 2014 Revolver pursuant to a collateral
trust agreement whereby a financial institution agrees to act as common collateral agent for all pari passu indebtedness and (c) temporarily increases the maximum Leverage
Ratio (as defined therein) permitted under the 2014 Revolver to 6.25 to 1.00 for a period not to exceed the fourth Quarterly Testing Date (as defined therein) following the
effective date of the ETP dropdown.

Borrowings under the 2014 Revolver bear interest at a base rate (a rate based off of the higher of (a) the Federal Funds Rate (as defined therein) plus 0.5%, (b) Bank
of America’s prime rate or (c) one-month LIBOR (as defined therein) plus 1.00%) or LIBOR, in each case plus an applicable margin ranging from 1.50% to 2.50%, in the
case of a LIBOR loan, or from 0.50% to 1.50%, in the case of a base rate loan (determined with reference to the Partnership’s Leverage Ratio (as defined therein)). Upon the
first achievement by the Partnership of an investment grade credit rating, the applicable margin will decrease to a range of 1.125% to 2.00%, in the case of a LIBOR loan, or
from 0.125% to 1.00%, in the case of a base rate loan (determined with reference to the credit rating for the Partnership’s senior, unsecured, non-credit enhanced long-term
debt). Interest is payable quarterly if the base rate applies, at the end of the applicable interest period if LIBOR applies and at the end of the month if daily floating LIBOR
applies. In addition, the unused portion of the 2014 Revolver is subject to a commitment fee ranging from 0.250% to 0.350%, based on our Leverage Ratio. Upon our first
achievement of an investment grade credit rating, the commitment fee will decrease to a range of 0.125% to 0.275%, based on our credit rating as described above.

The 2014 Revolver requires the Partnership to maintain a Leverage Ratio of not more than 5.50 to 1.00. The maximum Leverage Ratio is subject to upwards
adjustment of not more than 6.00 to 1.00 for a period not to exceed three fiscal quarters in the event the Partnership engages in an acquisition of assets, Equity Interests, (as
defined therein) operating lines or divisions by the Partnership, a Subsidiary, (as defined therein) an Unrestricted Subsidiary (as defined therein) or a Joint Venture for a
purchase price of not less than $50.0 million. As described above, in connection with the ETP Dropdown, we will enter into the Post Dropdown Period (as defined in the
2014 Revolver), in which our Leverage Ratio compliance requirements will be adjusted upward to 6.25 to 1.00. Indebtedness under the 2014 Revolver is secured by a
security interest in, among other things, all of our present and future personal property and all of the present and future personal property of its guarantors, the capital stock
of its material subsidiaries (or 66% of the capital stock of material foreign subsidiaries), and any intercompany debt. Upon our first achievement of an investment grade
credit rating, all security interests securing the 2014 Revolver will be released.

As of December 31, 2015, there were $450 million in outstanding borrowings under the 2014 Revolver and $22.5 million in standby letters of credit. The unused
availability on the 2014 Revolver at December 31, 2015 was $1,027.5 million, and we were in compliance with all financial covenants at December 31, 2015.

Capital Expenditures

We currently expect capital spending for the full year 2016, excluding acquisitions, to be within the following ranges ($ in millions):
Growth Maintenance
Low High Low High
$ 390§ 420 $ 100 $ 110

The above growth spending estimate includes the 35 to 40 new-to-industry sites that we anticipate building in 2016.
Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Contractual Obligations . We have contractual obligations that are required to be settled in cash. As of December 31, 2015, we have $450 million borrowed on the
2014 Revolver compared to $683.4 million borrowed at December 31, 2014. Further, as of December 31, 2015, we had $800 million outstanding under our 2023 Senior

Notes and $600 million outstanding under our 2020 Senior
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Notes. See Note 11 in the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on our debt transactions. Our contractual o bligations as of
December 31, 2015 were as follows:

Payments Due by Year
Total Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years More than 5 Years
(in thousands)
Long-term debt obligations, including current portion (1) $ 1,975,967 $ 5,084 $ 12,862 $ 1,060,916 $ 897,105
Interest payments (2) 642,413 106,086 211,245 176,641 148,441
Operating lease obligations (3) 841,873 80,259 146,893 137,507 477,214
Total $ 3,460,253 $ 191,429 $ 371,000 $ 1,375,064 $ 1,522,760

(@))] Payments include required principal payments on our debt, capital lease obligations and sale leaseback obligations (see Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements). Assumes the balance of the 2014 Revolver, of which the balance at December 31, 2015 was $450 million, remains outstanding until the 2014 Revolver
matures in September 2019.

2) Includes interest on outstanding debt, capital lease obligations and sale leaseback financing obligations. Includes interest on the 2014 Revolver balance as of
December 31, 2015 and commitment fees on the unused portion of the facility through September 2019 using rates in effect at December 31, 2015.

3) Includes minimum rental commitments under non-cancelable leases, net of sublet rental income.

We periodically enter into derivatives, such as futures and options, to manage our fuel price risk on inventory in the distribution system. Fuel hedging positions are
not significant to our operations. We had 1,469 positions, representing 61.7 million gallons, outstanding at December 31, 2015 with a positive fair value of $1.7 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements for the purpose of credit enhancement, hedging transactions or other financial or investment purposes.

Impact of Inflation

The impact of inflation has minimal impact on our results of operations, as we generally are able to pass along energy cost increases in the form of increased sales
prices to our customers. Inflation in energy prices impacts our sales and cost of motor fuel products and working capital requirements. Increased fuel prices may also require
us to post additional letters of credit or other collateral if our fuel purchases exceed unsecured credit limits extended to us by our suppliers. Although we believe we have
historically been able to pass on increased costs through price increases and maintain adequate liquidity to support any increased collateral requirements, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to do so in the future.

Quarterly Results of Operations

See “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 21. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)”
for financial and operating quarterly data for each quarter of 2014 and 2015.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data - Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies” for
information on recent accounting pronouncements impacting our business.
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Application of Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial
statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Critical accounting policies are those we believe are both most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations, and require our most
difficult, subjective or complex judgments, often as a result of the need to make estimates about the effects of matters that are inherently uncertain. Judgments and
uncertainties affecting the application of those policies may result in materially different amounts being reported under different conditions or using different assumptions.
We believe the following policies will be the most critical in understanding the judgments that are involved in preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Business Combinations and Intangible Assets, Including Goodwill and Push Down Accounting . We account for acquisitions using the purchase method of
accounting. Accordingly, assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at their estimated fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of purchase price over fair
value of net assets acquired, including the amount assigned to identifiable intangible assets, is recorded as goodwill. Given the time it takes to obtain pertinent information to
finalize the acquired company’s balance sheet, it may be several quarters before we are able to finalize those initial fair value estimates. Accordingly, it is not uncommon for
the initial estimates to be subsequently revised. The results of operations of acquired businesses are included in the consolidated financial statements from the acquisition
date.

Acquisitions of entities under common control are accounted for similar to a pooling of interests, in which the acquired assets and assumed liabilities are recognized
at their historic carrying values. The results of operations of the affiliated business acquired are reflected in the Partnership’s consolidated results of operations beginning on
the date of common control.

Our recorded identifiable intangible assets primarily include the estimated value assigned to certain customer related and contract-based assets. Identifiable
intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which is the period over which the asset is expected to contribute directly or indirectly to
our future cash flows. Supply agreements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the agreements, which generally range from five to fifteen years.
Favorable/unfavorable lease arrangements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease terms. The determination of the fair market value of the intangible
asset and the estimated useful life are based on an analysis of all pertinent factors including (1) the use of widely-accepted valuation approaches, the income approach or the
cost approach, (2) the expected use of the asset by us, (3) the expected useful life of related assets, (4) any legal, regulatory or contractual provisions, including renewal or
extension periods that would cause substantial costs or modifications to existing agreements, and (5) the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic
factors. Should any of the underlying assumptions indicate that the value of the intangible assets might be impaired, we may be required to reduce the carrying value and
subsequent useful life of the asset. If the underlying assumptions governing the amortization of an intangible asset were later determined to have significantly changed, we
may be required to adjust the amortization period of such asset to reflect any new estimate of its useful life. Any write-down of the value or unfavorable change in the useful
life of an intangible asset would increase expense at that time.

Customer relations and supply agreements are amortized over a weighted average period of approximately 5 to 20 years. Favorable leasehold arrangements are
amortized over an average period of approximately 15 years. Non-competition agreements are amortized over the terms of the respective agreements. Loan origination costs
are amortized over the life of the underlying debt as an increase to interest expense.

At December 31, 2015, we had goodwill recorded in conjunction with past business acquisitions and “push down” accounting totaling $3.1 billion. Under GAAP,
goodwill is not amortized. Instead, goodwill is subject to annual reviews on the first day of the fourth fiscal quarter for impairment at a reporting unit level. The reporting
unit or units used to evaluate and measure goodwill for impairment are determined primarily from the manner in which the business is managed or operated. A reporting
unit is an operating segment or a component that is one level below an operating segment. We have assessed the reporting unit definitions and determined that we have two
operating segments that are appropriate for testing goodwill impairment.

The impairment analysis performed in the fourth quarter of 2015, which considered qualitative factors, indicated no impairment of goodwill existed. In applying the
qualitative approach, we determined that both the retail and wholesale reporting units more likely than not had a fair value which exceeded their respective carrying values.
Some of the factors considered in applying these tests included the consideration of macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations, cost factors affecting
the businesses, the overall financial performance of the business segments, and the performance of the unit price of the Partnership. In addition, key inputs used to determine
fair value were considered, including industry multiples, weighted average cost of capital, and cash flows.
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Stock and Unit-Based Compensation. Our General Partner issues phantom unit awards to certain directors and employees under the Sunoco LP 2012 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (see Note 18 to our Consolidated Financial Statements). Related expenses are included within general and administrative expenses in our consolidated s
tatement of operations.

Income Taxes. As a limited partnership we are generally not subject to state and federal income tax and would therefore not recognize deferred income tax liabilities
and assets for the expected future income tax consequences of temporary differences between financial statement carrying amounts and the related income tax basis. We are,
however, subject to a statutory requirement that our non-qualifying income cannot exceed 10% of our total gross income, determined on a calendar year basis under the
applicable income tax provisions. If the amount of our non-qualifying income exceeds this statutory limit, we would be taxed as a corporation. Accordingly, certain
activities that generate non-qualifying income are conducted through our wholly-owned taxable corporate subsidiary for which we have recognized deferred income tax
liabilities and assets at December 31, 2015. These balances, as well as any income tax expense, are determined through management’s estimations, interpretation of tax laws
of multiple jurisdictions and tax planning strategies. If our actual results differ from estimated results due to changes in tax laws, our effective tax rate and tax balances
could be affected. As such, these estimates may require adjustments in the future as additional facts become known or as circumstances change.

The benefit of an uncertain tax position can only be recognized in the financial statements if management concludes that it is more likely than not that the position
will be sustained with the tax authorities. For a position that is likely to be sustained, the benefit recognized in the financial statements is measured at the largest amount that
is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized. In determining the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our financial statements or tax returns,
judgment is required. Differences between the anticipated and actual outcomes of these future tax consequences could have a material impact on our consolidated results of
operations or financial position.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Partners
Sunoco LP

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Sunoco LP (a Delaware limited partnership) and subsidiaries (the “Partnership”) as of December 31, 2015,
and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, changes in partners’ equity, and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Partnership’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Sunoco LP and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2015, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

As discussed in Note 1, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been adjusted to reflect the acquisition of entities under common control.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Dallas, Texas
July 15,2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors of Sunoco LP and
Unitholders of Sunoco LP

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Sunoco LP (formerly Susser Petroleum Partners LP) as of December 31, 2014, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, partners ' equity, and cash flows for the periods from September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 and
January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014, and the year ended December 31, 2013. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Partnership's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of Sunoco Retail, a wholly-owned
subsidiary, which statements reflect total assets constituting 30% at December 31, 2014 and total revenues constituting 18% in the period from September 1, 2014 through
December 31, 2014 of the related consolidated totals. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts included for Sunoco Retail, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Sunoco LP at December 31, 2014, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the periods from September 1, 2014 through
December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014, and the year ended December 31, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Houston, Texas
July 15,2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Board of Directors
Sunoco GP LLC

We have audited the accompanying combined balance sheet of the Sunoco Retail Businesses (as defined in Note 1) as of December 31, 2014, and the related combined
statements of operations, equity, and cash flows for the period from September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 (not presented herein). These financial statements are
the responsibility of the Sunoco Retail Businesses’ management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the
Sunoco Retail Businesses’ internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sunoco Retail Businesses’ internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Sunoco Retail Businesses as of
December 31, 2014, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the period from September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s GRANT THORNTON LLP

Dallas, Texas
July 15,2016



Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Advances to affiliates
Accounts receivable, net
Receivables from affiliates
Inventories, net
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Other assets:
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Other noncurrent assets
Total assets
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable to affiliates
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt
Total current liabilities
Revolving line of credit
Long-term debt, net
Deferred tax liability
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Partners' equity:
Limited partner interest:
Common unitholders - public

Sunoco LP
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(49,588,960 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and
20,036,329 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2014)

Common unitholders - affiliated

(37,776,746 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and
4,062,848 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2014)

Subordinated unitholders - affiliated

(no units issued or outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and

10,939,436 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2014)

Class A unitholders - held by subsidiary

(11,018,744 units issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and

no units issued or outstanding as of December 31, 2014)

Total partners' capital
Predecessor equity
Noncontrolling interest
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

(in thousands, except units)

72,627 S 136,581
365,536 597,933
308,285 304,256

8,074 4,941
467,291 491,303
46,080 72,097
1,267,893 1,607,111
3,154,826 2,799,330
3,111,262 3,143,834
1,259,440 1,187,237
48,398 35,568
8,841,819 S 8,773,080
433,988  § 467,054

14,988 56,969

307,939 342,671

5,084 13,772
761,999 880,466
450,000 683,378
1,502,531 408,826
694,383 630,256
170,169 161,994
3,579,082 2,764,920
1,768,890 874,688
1,275,558 27,459
3,044,448 902,147
2,218,289 5,111,657

— (5,644)

5,262,737 6,008,160
8,841,819 S 8,773,080

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Sunoco LP
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income

Successor Predecessor
September 1, 2014 January 1, 2014
Year ended through through Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 August 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
(dollars in thousands, except unit and per unit amounts)
Revenues:
Retail motor fuel sales $ 5,891,249 § 2,376,608 $ — 3 —
Wholesale motor fuel sales to third parties 10,104,193 4,235,415 1,275,422 1,502,786
Wholesale motor fuel sales to affiliates 20,026 — 2,200,394 2,974,122
Merchandise sales 2,178,187 651,324 — —
Rental income 81,274 24,749 11,690 10,060
Other 185,287 54,741 4,683 5,611
Total revenues 18,460,216 7,342,837 3,492,189 4,492,579
Cost of sales:
Retail motor fuel cost of sales 5,256,052 2,106,521 — —
Wholesale motor fuel cost of sales 9,716,751 4,203,663 3,429,169 4,419,004
Merchandise cost of sales 1,498,309 454,802 — —
Other 5,201 1,792 2,339 2,611
Total cost of sales 16,476,313 6,766,778 3,431,508 4,421,615
Gross profit 1,983,903 576,059 60,681 70,964
Operating expenses:
General and administrative 217,037 90,803 17,075 16,814
Other operating 1,016,063 320,345 4,964 3,187
Rent 139,851 42,112 729 1,014
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets and impairment charge (690) 977) 39) 324
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 278,309 86,242 10,457 8,687
Total operating expenses 1,650,570 538,525 33,186 30,026
Income from operations 333,333 37,534 27,495 40,938
Interest expense, net 87,575 10,935 4,767 3,471
Income before income taxes 245,758 26,599 22,728 37,467
Income tax expense 51,689 79,544 218 440
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) 194,069 (52,945) 22,510 37,027
Less: Net income and comprehensive income
attributable to noncontrolling interest 3,816 1,043 — —
Less: Preacquisition income (loss) allocated to general partner 103,015 (88,221) — —
Net income and comprehensive income attributable
to partners $ 87,238 $ 34,233 $ 22,510 $ 37,027
Net income per limited partner unit:
Common - basic and diluted $ .11 $ 0.85 $ 1.02 $ 1.69
Subordinated - basic and diluted $ 140 $ 0.85 $ 1.02 $ 1.69
Weighted average limited partner units outstanding:
Common units - public (basic) 24,550,388 20,493,065 10,944,309 10,884,950
Common units - public (diluted) 24,572,126 20,499,447 10,969,437 10,906,794
Common units - affiliated (basic and diluted) 15,703,525 79,308 79,308 79,308
Subordinated units - affiliated (basic and diluted) 10,010,333 10,939,436 10,939,436 10,939,436
Cash distribution per unit $ 289 $ 1.15 $ 1.02 $ 1.84

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Sunoco LP
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Partners’ Equity

Common Units- Common Units- Subordinated Predecessor Noncontrolling

(in thousands) Public Affiliated Units-Affiliated Equity Interest Total Equity

Predecessor:

Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 210,462 $ 175) $ (131,955) $ — 8 — 3 78,332
Equity issued to Susser — 2,000 — — — 2,000
Cash distributions to Susser — (316) (19,653) — — (19,969)
Cash distributions to unitholders (19,632) — — — — (19,632)
Unit-based compensation 965 3 967 — — 1,935
Partnership net income 18,474 50 18,503 — — 37,027

Balance at December 31, 2013 210,269 1,562 (132,138) — — 79,693
Cash distributions to Susser — (184) (16,484) — — (16,668)
Cash distributions to unitholders (16,485) — — — — (16,485)
Unit-based compensation 2,340 16 2,336 — — 4,692
Unit retirements (125) — — — — (125)
Partnership net income 11,217 80 11,213 — — 22,510

Balance at August 31, 2014 207,216 1,474 (135,073) — — 73,617

Successor:

Allocation of ETP merger "push down" 253,236 2,655 366,276 — — 622,167
Equity offering, net 405,104 — — — — 405,104
Contribution of MACS from ETP — 591,520 — — (6,687) 584,833
Cash distribution to ETP for MACS — (565,813) — — — (565,813)
Cash distributions to unitholders (10,356) (2,472) (5,970) — — (18,798)
Elimination of intercompany investments — (3,918) (128,531) 111,698 — (20,751)
Predecessor equity - Sunoco LLC — — — 1,027,129 — 1,027,129
Predecessor equity - Susser, net — — (108,822) 1,903,207 — 1,794,385
Predecessor equity - Sunoco Retail — — — 2,136,143 — 2,136,143
Predecessor equity - Sunoco Retail

contributions from ETP — — — 21,701 — 21,701
Unit-based compensation 748 93 547 — — 1,388
Partnership net income 18,740 3,920 11,573 (88,221) 1,043 (52,945)

Balance at December 31, 2014 874,688 27,459 — 5,111,657 (5,644) 6,008,160
Contribution of Sunoco LLC from ETP — — — (775,000) — (775,000)
Contribution of Susser from ETP — — — (966,855) — (966,855)
Contribution of assets between entities under

common control above historic cost — 987 59,513 (1,068,200) — (1,007,700)
Cancellation of promissory note with ETP — 255,000 — — — 255,000
Cash distribution to ETP — (25,000) — (179,182) — (204,182)
Cash distribution to unitholders (61,704) (51,143) (7,585) — — (120,432)
Equity issued to ETP — 1,007,700 — — — 1,007,700
Public equity offering, net 899,434 — — — — 899,434
Subordinated unit conversion — 60,636 (60,636) — — —
Unit-based compensation 4,223 2,071 297 — — 6,591
Other 971) (27,756) 3) (7,146) 1,828 (34,048)
Partnership net income 53,220 25,604 8,414 103,015 3,816 194,069

Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 1,768,890 $ 1,275,558 $ — $ 2218289 $ — $ 5262737

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Amortization of deferred financing fees
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets and impairment charge
Non-cash unit based compensation expense
Deferred income tax

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable from affiliates
Inventories
Other assets
Accounts payable
Accounts payable to affiliates
Accrued liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Purchase of intangibles
Purchase of marketable securities
Redemption of marketable securities
Acquisition of MACS
Acquisition of Aloha, net of cash acquired
Acquisition of Sunoco LLC
Acquisition of Susser Holdings
Acquisition of Aziz
Acquisition from Alta East
Acquisition of VIE assets
Other Acquisitions
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Payments on long-term debt
Revolver borrowings
Revolver repayments
Loan origination costs
Advances to affiliates

Proceeds from issuance of common units, net of offering costs

Distributions to parent

Other cash from financing activities, net

Distributions to unitholders

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Sunoco LP
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Successor Predecessor
September 1, 2014 January 1, 2014
Year ended through through Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 August 31,2014 December 31, 2013
(in thousands)
$ 194,069 $ (52,945) $ 22,510 $ 37,027
278,309 86,242 10,457 8,687
3,515 1,986 313 381
(690) 977) 39) 324
7,984 1,388 4,692 1,935
35,984 19,441 (19) 70
(3,823) 309,821 (3,939) (16,087)
(11,063) 542 (22,812) 9,664
23,584 124,203 (10,557) (7,777)
26,655 92,547 (938) 757
(37,644) (325,368) 30,838 9,691
(41,981) (16,187) — —
(33,393) 19,978 1,717 6,326
(2,884) 58,611 1,139 (318)
438,622 319,282 33,362 50,680
(490,749) (154,151) (89,330) (113,590)
(60,792) (13,112) (3,660) (2,661)
— — — (844,359)
— — 25,952 966,671
— (565,813) — —
(85) (236,407) — —
(775,000) — — —
(966,855) — — —
(41,600) — — —
(57,142) — — —
(53,734) N N N
(24,625) — — —
15,770 16,819 — 297
(2,454,812) (952,664) (67,038) 6,358
1,400,000 494 — —
(242,214) (82,243) (25,881) (137,173)
1,470,750 1,137,189 565,220 191,524
(1,449,128) (698,400) (476,840) (70,904)
(21,823) (7,587) — (270)
221,020 (117,428) — —
899,434 405,104 — —
(204,182) (8,442) (16,668) (19,969)
(1,188) — (125) 784
(120,433) (10,356) (16,485) (19,632)
1,952,236 618,331 29,221 (55,640)
(63,954) (15,051) (4,455) 1,398
136,581 151,632 8,150 6,752
$ 72,627 $ 136,581 $ 3,695 $ 8,150
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Successor Predecessor
September 1, 2014 January 1, 2014
Year ended through through Year ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 August 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
(in thousands)
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing activities:
"Push down" accounting from ETP merger $ - ® 624,215 $ — 5 =
Non-cash (distribution) contribution (7,146) 21,701 — —
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing
activities:
Contribution of debt from Susser $ — B — $ — B (21,850)
Equity issued to Susser — — — (2,000)
Cancellation of promissory note with ETP 255,000 — = —
Increase in partners' equity related to ETP Merger — 622,167 — —
Equity issued to ETP 1,007,700 212,004 — —
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Interest paid $ 59,916  $ 7,652 $ 4,516 $ 3,356
Income taxes paid 50,732 1,600 — 18

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Sunoco LP
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Organization and Principles of Consolidation

The Partnership was formed in June 2012 by Susser Holdings Corporation (“Susser”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Sunoco GP LLC (formerly known as Susser
Petroleum Partners GP LLC), our general partner (“General Partner””). On September 25, 2012, we completed our initial public offering (“IPO”) of 10,925,000 common
units representing limited partner interests.

On April 27, 2014, Susser entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with Energy Transfer Partners, L.P. (“ETP”) and certain other related entities, under which
ETP acquired the outstanding common shares of Susser (the “ETP Merger”). The ETP Merger was completed on August 29, 2014. By acquiring Susser, ETP acquired 100%
of the non-economic general partner interest and incentive distribution rights (“IDRs”) in the Partnership, which have subsequently been distributed to Energy Transfer
Equity, L.P. (“ETE”). Additionally, ETP directly and indirectly acquired approximately 11.0 million common and subordinated units in the Partnership (representing
approximately 50.1% of our then outstanding units). Unvested phantom units that were outstanding on April 27, 2014 vested upon completion of the ETP Merger. See Note
4 for further information.

Effective October 27, 2014, the Partnership changed its name from Susser Petroleum Partners LP (NYSE: SUSP) to Sunoco LP (“SUN”, NYSE: SUN). These

changes align the Partnership’s legal and marketing name with that of ETP’s iconic brand, Sunoco. As used in this document, the terms “Partnership”, “SUN”, “we”, “us” or
“our” should be understood to refer to Sunoco LP and our consolidated subsidiaries, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

The consolidated financial statements are composed of Sunoco LP, a publicly traded Delaware limited partnership, our majority-owned subsidiaries, and variable
interest entities (“VIE”s) in which we were the primary beneficiary (through December 23, 2015). We distribute motor fuels across more than 30 states throughout the East
Coast, Midwest, and Southeast regions of the United States from Maine to Florida and from Florida to New Mexico, as well as Hawaii. Starting in fiscal 2014, we are also
an operator of convenience retail stores in Virginia, Maryland, Tennessee, Georgia, and Hawaii. As a result of our July 31, 2015 acquisition of Susser from ETP, we are also
an operator of convenience retail stores in Texas, Oklahoma, and New Mexico. Our recent acquisitions are intended to complement and expand our wholesale distribution
business and diversify both geographically and through retail operations.

On October 1, 2014, we acquired 100% of the membership interests of Mid-Atlantic Convenience Stores, LLC (“MACS”). On April 1, 2015, we acquired a 31.58%
membership interest and a 50.1% voting interest in Sunoco, LLC (“Sunoco LLC”). On July 31, 2015, we acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock
of Susser. Finally, on March 31, 2016, we acquired the remaining 68.42% membership interest and 49.9% voting interest in Sunoco LLC as well as 100% of the issued and
outstanding membership interest in Sunoco Retail LLC (“Sunoco Retail”).

Results of operations for the MACS, Sunoco LLC, Susser, and Sunoco Retail acquisitions, deemed transactions between entities under common control, have been
included in our consolidated results of operations since September 1, 2014, the date of common control. See Note 4 for further information.

We operate our business as two segments, which are primarily engaged in wholesale fuel distribution and retail fuel and merchandise sales, respectively. Our
primary operations are conducted by the following consolidated subsidiaries:
Wholesale Subsidiaries

. Susser Petroleum Operating Company LLC (“SPOC”), a Delaware limited liability company, distributes motor fuel to Stripes’ retail locations, consignment
locations, as well as third party customers in Louisiana, New Mexico, Oklahoma and Texas.

. Sunoco Energy Services LLC, a Texas limited liability company, distributes motor fuels, propane and lubricating oils, primarily in Texas, Oklahoma, New
Mexico and Kansas.

. Sunoco LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, primarily distributes motor fuels across more than 26 states throughout the East Coast, Midwest, and
Southeast regions of the United States.

. Southside Oil, LLC, a Virginia limited liability company, distributes motor fuel primarily in Virginia, Maryland, Tennessee, and Georgia.

. Aloha Petroleum, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, distributes motor fuel and operates terminal facilities on the Hawaiian Islands.
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Retail Subsidiaries
. Susser Petroleum Property Company LLC (“PropCo”), a Delaware limited liability company, primarily owns and leases convenience store properties.

. Susser, a Delaware corporation, sells motor fuel and merchandise in Texas, New Mexico, and Oklahoma through Stripes-branded convenience stores and
transports motor fuel under GoPetro Transport LLC.

. Sunoco Retail, a Pennsylvania limited liability company, owns and operates convenience stores that sell motor fuel and merchandise primarily in
Pennsylvania, New York, and Florida.

. MACS Retail LLC (“MACS Retail”), a Virginia limited liability company, owns and operates convenience stores primarily in Virginia, Maryland, and
Tennessee.

. Aloha Petroleum, Ltd. (“Aloha”), a Hawaii corporation, owns and operates convenience stores on the Hawaiian Islands.
All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Certain items have been reclassified for presentation purposes to conform to the accounting policies of the consolidated entity. These reclassifications had no impact
on gross margin, income from operations, net income and comprehensive income, or the balance sheets or statements of cash flows.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Fiscal Year

The Partnership uses calendar month accounting periods and ends its fiscal year on December 31.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

The Partnership uses a qualitative approach in assessing the consolidation requirement for VIEs. The approach focuses on identifying which enterprise has the power
to direct the activities that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and which enterprise has the obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits
from the VIE. In the event that the Partnership is the primary beneficiary of a VIE, the assets, liabilities, and results of operations of the VIE entity will be included in the
Partnership’s consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Measurements
The Partnership uses fair value measurements to measure, among other items, purchased assets and investments, leases, and derivative contracts. The Partnership

also uses them to assess impairment of properties, equipment, intangible assets, and goodwill.

Where available, fair value is based on observable market prices or parameters, or is derived from such prices or parameters. Where observable prices or inputs are
not available, use of unobservable prices or inputs are used to estimate the current fair value, often using an internal valuation model. These valuation techniques involve
some level of management estimation and judgment, the degree of which is dependent on the item being valued.

Segment Reporting

Beginning with the acquisition of MACS in 2014, we operate our business in two primary segments, both of which are included as reportable segments. Our retail
segment operates convenience stores selling a variety of merchandise, food items, services, and motor fuel. Our wholesale segment sells motor fuel to our retail segment and
external customers. Beginning in the first quarter of 2015, we retrospectively allocated the revenue and costs previously reported in "All Other" to each segment based on
the way our Chief Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") measures segment performance (see Note 19).
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Acquisition Accounting

Acquisitions of assets or entities that include inputs and processes and have the ability to create outputs are accounted for as business combinations. The purchase
price is recorded for tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on fair value. The excess of fair value of the consideration conveyed over the fair
value of the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. The Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the years presented include the results
of operations for each acquisition from their respective date of acquisition.

Acquisitions of entities under common control are accounted for similar to a pooling of interests, in which the acquired assets and assumed liabilities are recognized
at their historic carrying values. The results of operations of the affiliated business acquired are reflected in the Partnership’s consolidated results of operations beginning on
the date of common control.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail have treasury services agreements with Sunoco, Inc. (R&M), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of ETP. Pursuant to these
agreements, Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail participate in Sunoco, Inc. (R&M)’s centralized cash management program. Under these programs, all cash receipts and cash
disbursements are processed, together with those of Sunoco, Inc. (R&M), through Sunoco, Inc. (R&M)’s cash accounts with a corresponding credit or charge to the
advances to/from affiliates account. The net balance of Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail is reflected in Advances to affiliates on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Accounts Receivable

The majority of trade receivables are from wholesale fuel customers or amounts due from credit card companies related to retail credit card transactions. Wholesale
customer credit is extended based on evaluation of the customer’s financial condition. Receivables are recorded at face value, without interest or discount. The Partnership
provides an allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical experience and on a specific identification basis. Credit losses are recorded against the allowance when
accounts are deemed uncollectible.

Receivables from affiliates have risen from increased fuel sales and other miscellaneous transactions with non-consolidated affiliates. These receivables are recorded
at face value, without interest or discount.
Inventories

Fuel inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Beginning September 2014, fuel inventory cost is determined using the last-in-first-out method (“LIFO”).
Under this methodology, the cost of fuel sold consists of actual acquisition costs, which includes transportation and storage costs. Such costs are adjusted to reflect
increases or decreases in inventory quantities which are valued based on changes in the LIFO inventory layers.

Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of average cost, as determined by the retail inventory method, or market. We record an allowance for shortages and
obsolescence relating to merchandising inventory based on historical trends and any known changes. Shipping and handling costs are included in the cost of merchandise
inventories.

Advertising Costs

Adpvertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets, estimated to be forty years for

buildings, three to fifteen years for equipment and thirty years for storage tanks. Assets under capital leases are depreciated over the life of the corresponding lease.

Amortization of leasehold improvements is based upon the shorter of the remaining terms of the leases including renewal periods that are reasonably assured, or the
estimated useful lives, which approximate twenty years. Expenditures for major renewals and betterments that extend the useful lives of property and equipment are
capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Gains or losses on the disposition of property and equipment are recorded in the period incurred.

F-12



Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are tested for possible impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable.
If such indicators exist, the estimated undiscounted future cash flows related to the asset are compared to the carrying value of the asset. If the carrying value is greater than
the estimated undiscounted future cash flow amount, an impairment charge is recorded within loss on disposal of assets and impairment charge in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for amounts necessary to reduce the corresponding carrying value of the asset to fair value. The impairment loss
calculations require management to apply judgment in estimating future cash flows and the discount rates that reflect the risk inherent in future cash flows.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of consideration paid over fair value of net assets of businesses acquired. Goodwill and intangible assets acquired in a purchase
business combination are recorded at fair value as of the date acquired. Acquired intangibles determined to have an indefinite useful life are not amortized, but are instead
tested for impairment at least annually, and are tested for impairment more frequently if events and circumstances indicate that the asset might be impaired. The annual
impairment test of goodwill and indefinite lived intangible assets is performed as of the first day of the fourth quarter of each fiscal year.

The Partnership uses qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not (likelihood of more than 50%) that the fair value of a reporting unit is less
than its carrying amount, including goodwill.

Based upon the analysis of qualitative factors, the Partnership determines if it is more likely than not that the reporting unit has a fair value which exceeds the
carrying value. Some of the qualitative factors considered in applying this test include the consideration of macroeconomic conditions, industry and market considerations,
cost factors affecting the business, the overall financial performance of the business, and the performance of the unit price of the Partnership.

If qualitative factors are not deemed sufficient to conclude that the fair value of the reporting unit more likely than not exceeded the carrying value of the reporting
unit, then the two-step approach would be applied in making an evaluation. In step one, multiple valuation methodologies, including a market approach (market price
multiples of comparable companies) and an income approach (discounted cash flow analysis), would be used. The computations require management to make significant
estimates and assumptions. Critical estimates and assumptions that are used as part of these evaluations would include, among other things, selection of comparable publicly
traded companies, the discount rate applied to future earnings reflecting a weighted average cost of capital rate, and earnings growth assumptions. A discounted cash flow
analysis requires management to make various assumptions about sales, operating margins, capital expenditures, working capital, and growth rates.

If after assessing the totality of events or circumstances an entity determines that it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is greater than its
carrying amount then performing the two-step test is unnecessary.

If the estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than the carrying value, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment by determining an
“implied fair value” of goodwill. The determination of the Partnership’s “implied fair value” requires the Partnership to allocate the estimated fair value of the reporting unit
to the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit. Any unallocated fair value represents the “implied fair value” of goodwill, which is compared to the corresponding carrying

value. If the “implied fair value” is less than the carrying value, an impairment charge would be recorded.

Indefinite-lived intangible assets are composed of certain trademarks and are not amortized but are evaluated for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes occur that suggest an impairment in carrying value, such as a significant adverse change in the business climate. Indefinite-lived intangible assets are evaluated for
impairment by comparing each asset's fair value to its book value. We first determine qualitatively whether it is more likely than not that an indefinite-lived asset is
impaired. If we conclude that it is more likely than not that an indefinite-lived asset is impaired, then we determine the fair value by using the discounted cash flow model
based on royalties estimated to be derived in the future use of the asset were we to license the use of the indefinite-lived asset.

Other Intangible Assets

Other finite-lived intangible assets consist of supply agreements, customer relations, non-competes, loan origination costs, and favorable lease arrangements.
Separable intangible assets that are not determined to have an indefinite life are amortized over their useful lives and assessed for impairment only if and when
circumstances warrant. The determination of the fair market value of the intangible asset and the estimated useful life are based on an analysis of all pertinent factors
including (1) the use of widely-accepted valuation approaches, the income approach or the cost approach, (2) the expected use of the asset by the Partnership, (3) the
expected useful life of related assets, (4) any legal, regulatory or contractual provisions, including renewal or extension period that would cause
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substantial costs or modifications to existing agreements, and (5) the effects of obsolesce nce, demand, competition, and other economic factors. Should any of the
underlying assumptions indicate that the value of the intangible assets might be impaired, we may be required to reduce the carrying value and subsequent useful life of the
asset. If t he underlying assumptions governing the amortization of an intangible asset were later determined to have significantly changed, we may be required to adjust the
amortization period of such asset to reflect any new estimate of its useful life. Any write-do wn of the value or unfavorable change in the useful life of an intangible asset
would increase expense at that time.

Customer relations and supply agreements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the agreements, which generally range from five to
twenty years. Favorable lease arrangements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease terms. Non-competition agreements are amortized over the terms
of the respective agreements, and loan origination costs are amortized over the life of the underlying debt as an increase to interest expense.

Asset Retirement Obligations

The estimated future cost to remove an underground storage tank is recognized over the estimated useful life of the storage tank. We record a discounted liability for
the fair value of an asset retirement obligation with a corresponding increase to the carrying value of the related long-lived asset at the time an underground storage tank is
installed. We depreciate the amount added to property and equipment and recognize accretion expense in connection with the discounted liability over the remaining life of
the tank. We base our estimates of the anticipated future costs for removal of an underground storage tank on our prior experience with removal. We review our assumptions
for computing the estimated liability for the removal of underground storage tanks on an annual basis. Any change in estimated cash flows are reflected as an adjustment to
the liability and the associated asset.

Environmental Liabilities

Environmental expenditures related to existing conditions, resulting from past or current operations and from which no current or future benefit is discernible, are
expensed by the Partnership. Expenditures that extend the life of the related property or prevent future environmental contamination are capitalized. We determine and
establish a liability on a site-by-site basis when it is probable and can be reasonably estimated. A related receivable is recorded for estimable probable reimbursements.

Revenue Recognition

Revenues from our two primary product categories, motor fuel and merchandise, are recognized either at the time fuel is delivered to the customer or at the time of
sale. Shipment and delivery of motor fuel generally occurs on the same day. The Partnership charges its wholesale customers for third-party transportation costs, which are
recorded net in cost of sales. Through PropCo, our wholly-owned corporate subsidiary, we may sell motor fuel to wholesale customers on a consignment basis, in which we
retain title to inventory, control access to and sale of fuel inventory, and recognize revenue at the time the fuel is sold to the ultimate customer. We derive other income from
rental income, propane and lubricating oils, and other ancillary product and service offerings. In our retail segment, we derive other income from lottery ticket sales, money
orders, prepaid phone cards and wireless services, ATM transactions, car washes, movie rentals, and other ancillary product and service offerings. We record revenue from
other retail transactions on a net commission basis when the product is sold and/or services are rendered.

Rental Income

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

Cost of Sales

We include in cost of sales all costs incurred to acquire fuel and merchandise, including the costs of purchasing, storing, and transporting inventory prior to delivery
to our customers. Items are removed from inventory and are included in cost of sales based on the retail inventory method for merchandise and the LIFO method for motor
fuel. Cost of sales does not include depreciation of property, plant, and equipment as amounts attributed to cost of sales would not be significant. Depreciation is separately
classified in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

Motor Fuel and Sales Taxes

Certain motor fuel and sales taxes are collected from customers and remitted to governmental agencies either directly by the Partnership or through suppliers. The
Partnership’s accounting policy for wholesale direct sales to dealer and commercial customers is to exclude the collected motor fuel tax from sales and cost of sales.

For retail locations where the Partnership holds inventory, including consignment arrangements, motor fuel sales and motor fuel cost of sales include motor fuel
taxes. Such amounts for the year ended December 31, 2015, the periods September 1, 2014 through
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December 31, 2014 and January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014, an d the year ended December 31, 2013 were $2.8 billion, $927.8 million, $10.3 million, and
$18.3 million, respectively. Merchandise sales and cost of merchandise sales are reported net of sales tax in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations an d
Comprehensive Income.

Deferred Branding Incentives

We receive payments for branding incentives related to fuel supply contracts. Unearned branding incentives are deferred and amortized on a straight line basis over
the term of the agreement as a credit to cost of sales.

Lease Accounting

The Partnership leases a portion of its properties under non-cancelable operating leases, whose initial terms are typically five to twenty years, with options
permitting renewal for additional periods. Minimum rent is expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease, including renewal periods that are reasonably assured
at the inception of the lease. The Partnership is typically responsible for payment of real estate taxes, maintenance expenses, and insurance. The Partnership also leases
certain vehicles, and such leases are typically less than five years.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash, accounts receivable, certain other current assets, marketable securities, accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other current liabilities are reflected in the
consolidated financial statements at fair value.

Earnings Per Unit

In addition to common and subordinated units, we identify incentive distribution rights (“IDRs”) as participating securities and compute income per unit using the
two-class method under which any excess of distributions declared over net income shall be allocated to the partners based on their respective sharing of income specified in
the First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership, as amended (the “Partnership Agreement”). Net income per unit applicable to limited partners
(including common and subordinated unitholders) is computed by dividing limited partners’ interest in net income, after deducting any incentive distributions, by the
weighted-average number of outstanding common and subordinated units.

Stock and Unit-based Compensation

Certain employees supporting operations prior to the ETP Merger were granted long-term incentive compensation awards under the Susser stock-based
compensation programs, which primarily consisted of stock options and restricted common stock. Prior to the ETP Merger, these costs were allocated to us and are included
in general and administrative expenses.

In connection with our IPO, our General Partner adopted the Susser Petroleum Partners LP 2012 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the “LTIP Plan”, or “Sunoco LP Plan”),
under which various types of awards may be granted to employees, consultants, and directors of our General Partner who provide services for us. On August 29, 2014,
effective with the ETP Merger, all then outstanding unvested awards became fully vested. Subsequent to the ETP Merger, there were additional grants issued under the LTIP
Plan as well as allocated compensation expenses from ETP, which are recognized over the vesting period based on the grant-date fair value. The grant-date fair value is
determined based on the market price of our common units on the grant date. We amortize the grant-date fair value of these awards over their vesting period using the
straight-line method. Expenses related to unit-based compensation are included in general and administrative expenses.

Income Taxes

The Partnership is a publicly traded limited partnership and is not taxable for federal and most state income tax purposes. As a result, our earnings or losses, to the
extent not included in a taxable subsidiary, for federal and most state purposes are included in the tax returns of the individual partners. Net earnings for financial statement
purposes may differ significantly from taxable income reportable to Unitholders as a result of differences between the tax basis and financial basis of assets and liabilities,
differences between the tax accounting and financial accounting treatment of certain items, and due to allocation requirements related to taxable income under our
Partnership Agreement.

As a publicly traded limited partnership, we are subject to a statutory requirement that our “qualifying income” (as defined by the Internal Revenue Code, related
Treasury Regulations, and IRS pronouncements) exceed 90% of our total gross income, determined on a calendar year basis. If our qualifying income does not meet this
statutory requirement, the Partnership would be taxed as a corporation for federal and state income tax purposes. For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013,
our qualifying income met the statutory requirement.



The Partnership conducts certain activities through corporate subsidiaries which are subject to federal, state and local income taxes. These corporate subsidiaries
include Propco, Susser, and Aloha. The Partnership and its corporate subsidiaries account for income taxes under the asset and liability method.

Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for
the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rate is recognized in
earnings in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the amounts more likely than
not to be realized.

The determination of the provision for income taxes requires significant judgment, use of estimates, and the interpretation and application of complex tax laws.
Significant judgment is required in assessing the timing and amounts of deductible and taxable items and the probability of sustaining uncertain tax positions. The benefits
of uncertain tax positions are recorded in our financial statements only after determining a more-likely-than-not probability that the uncertain tax positions will withstand
challenge, if any, from taxing authorities. When facts and circumstances change, we reassess these probabilities and record any changes through the provision for income
taxes.

In November 2015, new federal partnership audit procedures were signed into law which are effective for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017. Under the
new procedures, a partnership would be responsible for paying the imputed underpayment of tax resulting from the audit adjustments in the adjustment year even though
partnerships are “pass through entities”. However, as an alternative to paying the imputed underpayment of tax at the partnership level, a partnership may elect to provide
the audit adjustment information to the reviewed year partners, whom in turn would be responsible for paying the imputed underpayment of tax in the adjustment year. The
Partnership is currently evaluating the impact, if any, this legislation has its income taxes policies.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

FASB ASU No. 2015-03 . In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") No. 2015-03, " Interest -
Imputation of Interest - (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, " which simplifies the presentation of debt issuance costs by requiring debt
issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the debt liability rather than as an asset. This ASU is
effective for annual reporting periods after December 15, 2015, including interim periods within that reporting period, with early adoption permitted for financial statements
that have not been previously issued. Upon adoption, this ASU must be applied retrospectively to all prior reporting periods presented. We adopted and applied this
standard to our consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact on our financial
statements.

FASB ASU No. 2015-05 . In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-05 " Intangibles - Goodwill and Other - Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40): Customer's
Accounting for Fees Paid in a Cloud Computing Arrangement. " This ASU provides guidance to customers about whether a cloud computing arrangement includes a
software license. If a cloud computing arrangement includes a software license, then the customer should account for the software license element of the arrangement
consistent with the acquisition of other software licenses. If a cloud computing arrangement does not include a software license, the customer should account for the
arrangement as a service contract. The guidance will not change GAAP for a customer’s accounting for service contracts. The amendments in this ASU are effective for
financial statements issued with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods within those fiscal years. We do not anticipate that the adoption of this
ASU will have a material impact on our financial statements.

FASB ASU No. 2015-06 . In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-06 " Earnings Per Share (Topic 260): Effects on Historical Earnings per Unit of Master Limited
Partnership Dropdown Transactions (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF"). " This ASU specifies that for purposes of calculating historical
earnings per unit under the two-class method, the earnings (losses) of a transferred business before the date of a dropdown transaction should be allocated entirely to the
general partner. In that circumstance, the previously reported earnings per unit of the limited partners (which is typically the earnings per unit measure presented in the
financial statements) would not change as a result of the dropdown transaction. Qualitative disclosures about how the rights to the earnings (losses) differ before and after
the dropdown transaction occurs for purposes of computing earnings per unit under the two-class method also are required. This ASU is effective for financial statements
issued with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods within those fiscal years. We currently are in compliance with this ASU.
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FASB ASU No. 2015-14 . In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14, " Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) — Deferral of the Effective Date, "
which amends the effective date of ASU No. 2014-09. The updates clarify the principles for recognizing r evenue based on the core principle that an entity should recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. ASU 2015-14 amends the effective date to financial statements issued with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim
periods within that reporting period, with earlier adoption not permitted. ASU 2015-14 can be adopted either retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented or as a
cumulative-effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. We continue to evaluate the impact this new accounting standard will have on our revenue recognition policies.

FASB ASU No. 2015-15 . In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-15 " Interest — Imputation of Interest (Subtopic 835-30) — Presentation and Subsequent
Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit Arrangements (Amendments to SEC Paragraphs Pursuant to Staff Announcement at June 18, 2015
EITF Meeting). " As the guidance in Update 2015-03 (discussed above) does not address presentation or subsequent measurement of debt issuance costs related to line-of-
credit arrangements, Update 2015-15 clarifies that such debt issuance costs may be deferred and presented as an asset and subsequently amortized ratably over the term of
the line-of-credit arrangement, regardless of whether there are any outstanding borrowings on the line-of-credit arrangement. The amendments in this update are effective
for financial statements issued with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, including interim periods within that reporting period. The Partnership will continue to
classify loan origination costs related to the line of credit as an asset and amortize ratably. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact on our financial
statements.

FASB ASU No. 2015-16 . In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-16 " Business Combinations (Topic 805) — Simplifying the Accounting for Measurement-Period
Adjustments. " This update requires that an acquirer recognize adjustments to provisional amounts that are identified during the measurement period in the reporting period
in which the adjustment amounts are determined. Additionally, this update requires that the acquirer record, in the same period’s financial statements, the effect on earnings
of changes in depreciation, amortization, or other income effects, if any, as a result of the change to the provisional amounts, calculated as if the accounting had been
completed at the acquisition date. Finally, this update requires an entity to present separately on the face of the income statement or disclose in the notes the portion of the
amount recorded in current-period earnings by line item that would have been recorded in previous reporting periods if the adjustment to the provisional amounts had been
recognized as of the acquisition date. The amendments in this update are effective for financial statements issued with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015,
including interim periods within that reporting period. We do not anticipate that the adoption of this ASU will have a material impact on our financial statements.

FASB ASU No. 2015-17 . In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-17 " Income Taxes (Topic 740) — Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes. " This
ASU requires that deferred tax liabilities and assets be classified as noncurrent in a classified statement of financial position. We adopted and applied this standard to our
consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. The adoption of this ASU did not have a material impact on our financial statements.

FASB ASU No. 2016-01 . In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-01 " Financial Instruments—Overall (ASU 2016-01) — Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, " which institutes a number of modifications to the reporting of financial assets and liabilities. These modifications include (a)
measurement of non-equity method assets and liabilities at fair value, with changes to fair value recognized through net income, (b) performance of qualitative impairment
assessments of equity investments without readily determinable fair values at each reporting period, (c) elimination of the requirement to disclose methods and significant
assumptions used in calculating the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost, (d) measurement of the fair value of financial instruments measured at
amortized cost using the exit price notion consistent with Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement, (e) separate presentation in other comprehensive income of the portion of the
total change in the fair value of a liability resulting from a change in the instrument-specific credit risk, (f) separate presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities by
measurement category and form of financial asset, and (g) evaluate the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax asset related to available-for-sale securities in
combination with the entity’s other deferred tax assets. This ASU is effective for financial statements issued with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including
interim periods within that reporting period. We do not anticipate that the adoption of this ASU will have a material impact on our financial statements.

FASB ASU No. 2016-02 . In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02 “ Leases (Topic 842) ” which amends the FASB Accounting Standards Codification and
creates Topic 842, Leases. This Topic requires Balance Sheet recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities for leases classified as operating leases under previous GAAP,
excluding short-term leases of 12 months or less. This ASU is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years,
beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. We are currently evaluating the effect that the updated standard will have on our financial statements.



3. Change in Accounting Principles

Pursuant to the adoption of ASU 2015-03, " Interest - Imputation of Interest - (Subtopic 835-30): Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs, " we
retrospectively presented debt issuance costs as a direct deduction from the debt liability rather than as an asset in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. There was no impact on
prior years presented as there were no debt issuance costs as of December 31, 2014. As of December 31, 2015, $18.4 million of debt issuance costs are deducted from long-
term debt (see Note 11).

Pursuant to the adoption of ASU 2015-17, " Income Taxes (Topic 740) — Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, " we retrospectively classified deferred tax
assets and liabilities as noncurrent in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Deferred tax assets of $15.7 million were reclassified from other current assets to deferred tax
liability as of December 31, 2014.

4. Mergers and Acquisitions
ETP Merger

As a result of the ETP Merger, we became a consolidated entity of ETP and applied “push down” accounting that required our assets and liabilities to be adjusted to
fair value as of August 29, 2014, the date of the merger. Due to the application of “push down” accounting, our consolidated financial statements and certain footnote
disclosures are presented in two distinct periods to indicate the application of two different bases of accounting between the periods presented. The periods prior to the ETP
Merger are identified as “Predecessor” and the period after the ETP Merger is identified as “Successor”. For accounting purposes, management has designated the ETP
Merger date as August 31, 2014, as the operating results and change in financial position for the intervening period is not material.

Management, with the assistance of a third party valuation firm, has determined the fair value of our assets and liabilities as of August 31, 2014. We determined the
value of goodwill by giving consideration to the following qualitative factors:

. synergies created from a reduction in workforce;

. synergies created through increased fuel purchasing advantages, merchandising and improved “buying power” reflecting economies of scale; and

. the consideration of the highest and best use of the assets through discussion amongst the management group, the qualitative characteristics of the assets
acquired, observations from past transactions within the industry regarding the use of assets subsequent to the respective acquisitions, and senior
management’s future plans for the assets acquired and the related forecasts.

Our identifiable intangible assets consist primarily of dealer relationships, the fair value of which were determined by applying a discounted cash flow approach
which was adjusted for customer attrition assumptions and projected market conditions. The amount of goodwill recorded represents the excess of our enterprise value over
the fair value of our assets and liabilities.

The following table summarizes the final “push down” accounting allocation to our assets and liabilities as of the date presented (in thousands):

August 31, 2014

Current assets $ 171,434
Property and equipment 272,930
Goodwill 590,042
Intangible assets 70,473
Other noncurrent assets 811
Current liabilities (154,617)
Other noncurrent liabilities (255,289)
Net assets $ 695,784
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Acquisitions
MACS Acquisition

On October 1, 2014, we acquired 100% of the membership interests of MACS from ETP for a total consideration of approximately $768.0 million, subject to certain
working capital adjustments (the “MACS acquisition”). The consideration paid consisted of 3,983,540 newly issued common units representing limited partnership interests
in the Partnership and $566.0 million in cash. We initially financed the cash portion of the MACS acquisition by utilizing availability under the 2014 Revolver (as defined
below). A portion of the 2014 Revolver borrowing was repaid during the fourth quarter of 2014, using cash from proceeds of an equity offering. MACS has been determined
to be the primary beneficiary of certain VIEs, and therefore the Partnership consolidates these VIEs.

The assets owned by MACS include approximately 100 company-operated retail convenience stores and 200 dealer-operated and consignment sites that were
previously acquired by ETP. The combined portfolio includes locations in Virginia, Maryland, Tennessee and Georgia. This was the first transaction completed in a series of
previously announced drop-down plans by which ETP intended to transfer its retail and fuel distribution businesses to the Partnership. The acquisition was accounted for as
a transaction between entities under common control. Specifically, the Partnership recognized the acquired assets and assumed liabilities at their respective carrying values
and no additional goodwill was created. The Partnership’s results of operations include MACS’ results of operations beginning September 1, 2014, the date of common
control. As a result, the Partnership retrospectively adjusted its financial statements to include the balances and operations of MACS from August 31, 2014.

Included in our Successor results of operations for the period September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 is $509.3 million and $31.9 million of revenue and net
income, respectively, related to the acquisition of MACS.

The following table summarizes the recording of the assets and liabilities at their respective carrying values as of the date presented (in thousands):

August 31, 2014

Current assets $ 96,749
Property and equipment 463,772
Goodwill 118,610
Intangible assets 90,676
Other noncurrent assets 48,913
Current liabilities (45,151)
Other noncurrent liabilities (186,661)
Net assets 586,908
Net deemed contribution (21,095)
Cash acquired (60,798)
Total cash consideration, net of cash acquired $ 505,015

Goodwill acquired in connection with the MACS acquisition is deductible for tax purposes.
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Aloha Acquisition

On December 16, 2014, we completed the acquisition of 100% of the stock of Aloha, the largest independent gasoline marketer and one of the largest convenience
store operators in Hawaii, with an extensive wholesale fuel distribution network and six fuel storage terminals on the islands (the “Aloha Acquisition”). Aloha markets
through approximately 100 Aloha, Shell, and Mahalo branded fuel stations throughout the state, 50 of which are company operated. The adjusted purchase price for Aloha
was approximately $267.1 million in cash, subject to a post-closing earn-out we have estimated at $18.3 million, and certain post-closing adjustments, and before transaction
costs and other expenses totaling $2.8 million. As of December 31, 2015, we have recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheet under other non-current liabilities the
$18.3 million contingent consideration, which we based on the internal evaluation of the earnings level that Aloha is expected to achieve during the earnout period of
December 16, 2014 through December 31, 2022. Approximately $14.1 million of the cash consideration was placed in an escrow account to satisfy indemnification
obligations of the seller and certain environmental claims, pursuant to the terms of the purchase agreement. Included in our Successor results of operations for the period
December 16, 2014 through December 31, 2014 is $24.7 million and $0.7 million of revenue and net income, respectively, related to the acquisition of Aloha.

Management, with the assistance of a third party valuation firm, determined the fair value of the assets and liabilities at the date of the Aloha Acquisition. We
determined the value of goodwill by giving consideration to the following qualitative factors:

. synergies created through increased fuel purchasing advantages, merchandising and improved “buying power” reflecting economies of scale;

. strategic advantages of Aloha due to its particular assets;

. Aloha’s history;

. the nature of Aloha’s products and services and its competitive position in the marketplaces; and

. Aloha’s competitors in the geographically isolated market.

As a result of the finalization of the purchase price allocation during 2015, an adjustment of $49.2 million was made to reduce the amount of goodwill related to the
Aloha Acquisition and increase property and equipment and intangible assets offset by an increase in deferred tax liability.

The following table summarizes the final allocation of the assets and liabilities as of the date presented (in thousands):

December 16, 2014

Current assets $ 67,012
Property and equipment 127,916
Goodwill 105,615
Intangible assets 74,706
Other noncurrent assets 732
Current liabilities (20,127)
Other noncurrent liabilities (70,465)
Total consideration 285,389
Cash acquired (30,597)
Contingent consideration (18,300)
Total cash consideration, net of cash acquired and
contingent consideration $ 236,492

The Aloha Acquisition was a stock purchase transaction. It is being treated as such for tax purposes and any resulting goodwill is not deductible for tax purposes.
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Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail LLC Acquisitions

On April 1, 2015, we acquired a 31.58% membership interest and 50.1% voting interest in Sunoco LLC from ETP Retail Holdings, LLC (“ETP Retail”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of ETP, for total consideration of approximately $775.0 million in cash (the “Sunoco Cash Consideration”) and $40.8 million in common units
representing limited partner interests of the Partnership, based on the five day volume weighted average price of the Partnership’s common units as of March 20, 2015 (the
“Sunoco LLC Acquisition”). The Sunoco Cash Consideration was financed through issuance by the Partnership and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Sunoco Finance Corp.
(“SUN Finance”) of 6.375% Senior Notes due 2023 on April 1, 2015. The common units issued to ETP Retail were issued and sold in a private transaction exempt from
registration under Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”). Pursuant to the terms of the Sunoco LLC Contribution Agreement, ETP
guaranteed all of the obligations of ETP Retail.

On November 15, 2015, we entered into a Contribution Agreement (the “ETP Dropdown Contribution Agreement”) with Sunoco LLC, Sunoco, Inc., ETP Retail, our
General Partner and ETP. Pursuant to the terms of the ETP Dropdown Contribution Agreement, we agreed to acquire from ETP Retail, effective January 1, 2016, (a) 100%
of the issued and outstanding membership interests of Sunoco Retail, an entity that was formed by Sunoco, Inc. (R&M), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunoco,
Inc., prior to the closing of the ETP Dropdown Contribution Agreement, and (b) 68.42% of the issued and outstanding membership interests of Sunoco LLC (the “ETP
Dropdown”). Pursuant to the terms of the ETP Dropdown Contribution Agreement, ETP agreed to guarantee all of the obligations of ETP Retail.

Immediately prior to the closing of the ETP Dropdown, Sunoco Retail owned all of the retail assets previously owned by Sunoco, Inc. (R&M), the ethanol plant
located in Fulton, NY, 100% of the issued and outstanding membership interests in Sunmarks, LLC, and all the retail assets previously owned by Atlantic Refining &
Marketing Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunoco, Inc.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the ETP Dropdown Contribution Agreement, at the closing of the ETP Dropdown, we paid to ETP Retail approximately
$2.2 billion in cash on March 31, 2016, which included working capital adjustments, and issued to ETP Retail 5,710,922 common units representing limited partner interests
in the Partnership (the “ETP Dropdown Unit Consideration”). The ETP Dropdown Unit Consideration was issued in a private transaction exempt from registration under
Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act.

The acquisitions of Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail were accounted for as transactions between entities under common control. Specifically, the Partnership
recognized acquired assets and assumed liabilities at their respective carrying values with no goodwill created. The Partnership’s results of operations include Sunoco LLC’s
and Sunoco Retail’s results of operations beginning September 1, 2014, the date of common control. As a result, the Partnership retrospectively adjusted its financial
statements to include the balances and operations of Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail from August 31, 2014. Accordingly, the Partnership retrospectively adjusted its
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income to include $2.4 billion of Sunoco LLC revenues and $24.5 million of net income for the three months
ended March 31, 2015, $1.5 billion of Sunoco Retail revenues and $10.5 million of net income for the twelve months ended December 31, 2015 as well as $5.5 billion of
Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Retail revenues and $73.1 million of net loss for the period from September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014. The equity of Sunoco LLC and
Sunoco Retail is presented as predecessor equity in our consolidated financial statements.

The following table summarizes the recording of the assets and liabilities at their respective carrying values as of August 31, 2014, (in thousands):

Sunoco LLC Sunoco Retail Total

Current assets $ 1,107,007 $ 328928 § 1,435,935
Property and equipment 384,100 709,793 1,093,893
Goodwill — 1,289,398 1,289,398
Intangible assets 182,477 293,928 476,405
Other noncurrent assets 2,238 — 2,238
Current liabilities (641,400) (146,368) (787,768)
Other noncurrent liabilities (7,293) (339,536) (346,829)

Net assets $ 1,027,129 § 2,136,143 3,163,272
Net deemed contribution (188,272)
Cash acquired (24,276)

Total cash consideration, net of cash acquired (1) $ 2,950,724

(1) Total cash consideration, net of cash acquired, includes $775.0 million paid on April 1, 2015 and $2.2 billion paid on
March 31, 2016.
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Susser Acquisition

On July 31, 2015, we acquired 100% of the issued and outstanding shares of capital stock of Susser (the “Susser Acquisition”) from Heritage Holdings, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ETP (“HHI”) and ETP Holdco Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ETP (“ETP Holdco” and together with HHI, the “Contributors”), for
total consideration of approximately $966.9 million in cash (the “Susser Cash Consideration”), subject to certain post-closing working capital adjustments, and issued to the
Contributors 21,978,980 Class B Units representing limited partner interests of the Partnership (“Class B Units”). The Class B Units were identical to the common units in
all respects, except such Class B Units were not entitled to distributions payable with respect to the second quarter of 2015. The Class B Units converted, on a one-for-one
basis, into common units on August 19, 2015.

Pursuant to the terms of the Contribution Agreement dated as of July 14, 2015 among Susser, HHI, ETP Holdco, our General Partner, and ETP (the “Susser
Contribution Agreement”), (i) Susser caused its wholly-owned subsidiary to exchange its 79,308 common units for 79,308 Class A Units representing limited partner
interests in the Partnership (“Class A Units”) and (ii) the 10,939,436 subordinated units held by wholly-owned subsidiaries of Susser were converted into 10,939,436 Class
A Units. The Class A Units were entitled to receive distributions on a pro rata basis with the common units, except that the Class A Units (a) did not share in distributions of
cash to the extent such cash was derived from or attributable to any distribution received by the Partnership from PropCo, the Partnership’s indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, the proceeds of any sale of the membership interests of PropCo, or any interest or principal payments received by the Partnership with respect to indebtedness of
PropCo or its subsidiaries and (b) were subordinated to the common units during the subordination period for the subordinated units and were not entitled to receive any
distributions until holders of the common units received the minimum quarterly distribution plus any arrearages in the payment of the minimum quarterly distribution from
prior quarters.

In addition, the Partnership issued 79,308 common units and 10,939,436 subordinated units to the Contributors (together with the Class B Units, the “Susser Unit
Consideration”) to restore the economic benefit of common units and subordinated units held by wholly-owned subsidiaries of Susser that were exchanged or converted, as
applicable, into Class A Units. The Susser Unit Consideration was issued and sold to the Contributors in private transactions exempt from registration under Section 4(a)(2)
of the Securities Act. Pursuant to the terms of the Susser Contribution Agreement, ETP guaranteed all then existing obligations of the Contributors.

The Susser Acquisition was accounted for as a transaction between entities under common control. Specifically, the Partnership recognized acquired assets and
assumed liabilities at their respective carrying values with no additional goodwill created. The Partnership’s results of operations include Susser’s results of operations
beginning September 1, 2014, the date of common control. As a result, the Partnership retrospectively adjusted its financial statements to include the balances and
operations of Susser from August 31, 2014. Accordingly, the Partnership retrospectively adjusted its Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income to
include $2.6 billion of Susser revenues and $18.1 million of net income for the period from January 1, 2015 through July 31, 2015 as well as $741.9 million of Susser
revenues and $15.2 million of net loss for the period from September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014. Pre-Susser acquisition equity of Susser is presented as
predecessor equity in our consolidated financial statements.

The following table summarizes the final recording of the assets and liabilities at their respective carrying values as of the date presented, (in thousands):

August 31, 2014

Current assets $ 217,244
Property and equipment 983,900
Goodwill 976,631
Intangible assets 541,054
Other noncurrent assets 38,216
Current liabilities (246,009)
Other noncurrent liabilities (842,310)
Net assets 1,668,726
Net deemed contribution (701,871)
Cash acquired (63,801)
Total cash consideration, net of cash acquired $ 903,054
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Other Acquisitions

On August 10, 2015, we acquired 27 convenience stores in the Upper Rio Grande Valley from Aziz Convenience Stores, L.L.C. (“Aziz”) for $41.6 million.
Management allocated the total purchase consideration to assets acquired based on the preliminary estimate of their respective fair values at the purchase date. Management
is reviewing the valuation and confirming the results to determine the final purchase price allocation. As a result, material adjustments to this preliminary allocation may
occur in the future. The acquisition preliminarily increased goodwill by $4.3 million.

On December 16, 2015, we acquired a wholesale motor fuel distribution business serving the Northeastern United States from Alta East, Inc. (“Alta East”) for
approximately $57.1 million plus the value of inventory on hand at closing (the “Alta East acquisition™). As part of the Alta East acquisition, we also acquired a total of 32
fee and leased properties, including 30 properties operated by third party dealers or commission agents and two non-operating surplus locations. The Alta East acquisition
also included supply contracts with the dealer-owned and operated sites. The Alta East acquisition was funded using amounts available under our revolving credit facility
with the total purchase consideration allocated to the assets acquired based on the preliminary estimate of their respective fair values at the purchase date. Management is
reviewing the valuation and confirming the results to determine the final purchase price allocation. As a result, material adjustments to this preliminary allocation may occur
in the future. The acquisition preliminarily increased goodwill by $16.6 million.

Additional acquisitions by the Partnership during 2015 totaled $24.6 million in consideration paid and preliminarily increased goodwill by $10.1 million.
Management is reviewing the valuations and confirming the results to determine the final purchase price allocations. As a result, material adjustments to these preliminary
allocations may occur in the future.

Pro Forma Financial Information

The unaudited financial information in the table below summarizes the combined results of our operations and those of Susser, Sunoco LLC, Sunoco Retail, MACS,
and Aloha on a pro forma basis, as though all entities had been acquired on January 1, 2014. The pro forma financial information is presented for informational purposes
only and is not indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved. The pro forma adjustments include the effect of purchase accounting adjustments,
interest expense, and related tax effects, among others (in thousands):

Unaudited Pro Forma

Susser, Sunoco LLC,
Sunoco Retail,

MACS, and Aloha
Twelve Months Ended

December 31, 2014

Revenues $ 26,275,559
Net income attributable to partners $ 87,864
5. Variable Interest Entities

MACS entered into agreements with entities controlled by the Uphoff Unitholders (members of MACS Holdings, LLC, owner of MACS prior to the acquisition by
ETP) to lease the property, buildings and improvements of 37 sites that are now operated by the Partnership. Under the terms of the agreement, the Partnership had the right
to purchase the underlying assets of 33 of these leases. Because of the variable interest purchase option as well as the terms of the leases, the Partnership was determined to
be the primary beneficiary of these VIEs, and therefore we consolidated these entities prior to exercising our right to purchase. In determining whether the Partnership is the
primary beneficiary, we took into consideration the following:

. Identified the significant activities and the parties that have the power to direct them;
. Reviewed the governing board composition and participation ratio;

. Determined the equity, profit and loss ratio;

. Determined the management-sharing ratio;

. Reviewed employment terms; and

. Reviewed the funding and operating agreements.
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On December 23, 2015, we completed the acquisition of underlying assets at the 33 locations subject to rights of purchase for $53.7 million, including payment of
associated mortgage debt of $44.3 million. This transac tion terminated separate consolidation of the VIEs, with the purchased assets continuing to be included in our
consolidated financial statements.

Assets and liabilities of the VIEs, included in the December 31, 2014 Consolidated Balance Sheet, consisted of the following:

December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Receivables from affiliates $ 3,484
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 45,340
Other noncurrent assets $ 3,665
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 490
Long-term debt, including current maturities of $8,422 $ 56,452
Other noncurrent liabilities $ 1,190

6. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable, excluding receivables from affiliates, consisted of the following:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Accounts receivable, trade $ 160,783 $ 195,781
Credit card receivables 98,484 81,888
Vendor receivables for rebates, branding, and other 14,561 16,536
Other receivables 38,381 14,033
Allowance for doubtful accounts (3,924) (3,982)
Accounts receivable, net $ 308,285 $ 304,256

Accounts receivable from affiliates are $8.1 million and $4.9 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. For additional information regarding our
affiliated receivables, see Note 12.

An allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on management’s evaluation of outstanding accounts receivable. Following is a summary of the valuation
accounts related to accounts and notes receivable:

Balance at Additions Amounts Written Acquired
Beginning of Charged Off, Net of through Business Balance at
Period to Expense Recoveries Acquisitions End of Period

(in thousands)
Allowance for doubtful accounts:

Predecessor:

Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 103§ 360 $ 140 $ — 323
Balance at August 31,2014 $ 323§ 270 $ 72 3 — 3 521
Successor:

Balance at December 31, 2014 $ 521 $ 360 $ 321 $ 3422 $ 3,982
Balance at December 31, 2015 $ 3982 $ 716 $ 774 $ — 3 3,924
7. Inventories

Effective September 1, 2014, we adopted the LIFO inventory method for fuel inventory, to align our accounting policy with that of ETP. The preliminary impact of
this change was an increase of $0.8 million to fuel inventory in September 2014, with a corresponding decrease to cost of sales. As the LIFO method is only permitted to be
applied to year-end inventory levels, we recorded an additional adjustment to increase fuel inventory by $7.2 million in December 2014, with a corresponding decrease to
cost of sales. Due to changes in fuel prices, we recorded write-downs of $98.3 million and $205.3 million for fuel inventory at December 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Inventories consisted of the following:

Fuel-retail
Fuel-other wholesale
Fuel-consignment
Merchandise
Equipment and maintenance spare parts
Other
Inventories, net

8. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

Land

Buildings and leasehold improvements

Equipment

Construction in progress

Total property and equipment

Less: accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

$ 42,779 $ 46,195

283,021 302,675

3,801 7,337

116,694 113,774

13,162 13,520

7,834 7,802

$ 467,291 $ 491,303

December 31, 2015 December 31,2014
(in thousands)

$ 1,032,017 $ 865,424

1,150,701 975,432

1,214,328 1,016,631

97,412 163,090

3,494,458 3,020,577

339,632 221,247

$ 3,154,826 $ 2,799,330

Depreciation expense on property and equipment was $225.5 million and $68.1 million and for the Successor twelve month period ending December 31, 2015 and
the period September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014, respectively. Depreciation expense for the Predecessor period January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014 and the
twelve month period ending December 31, 2013 was $7.6 million and $5.3 million, respectively.

9. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill

The following table reflects goodwill balances and activity for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Segment
Wholesal Retail C lidated
(in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2013 (Predecessor) $ 22,823 $ — 3 22,823
Goodwill related to Susser predecessor — 254,285 254,285
Goodwill related to Sunoco Retail predecessor — 1,289,398 1,289,398
Goodwill related to ETP "push down" accounting,

net of previously recognized goodwill 584,073 718,851 1,302,924
Goodwill related to MACS acquisition 57,776 60,833 118,609
Goodwill related to Aloha acquisition 59,446 95,361 154,807
Goodwill related to other acquisition — 988 988

Balance at December 31, 2014 (Successor) 724,118 2,419,716 3,143,834
Goodwill related to ETP "push down" accounting,

net of previously recognized goodwill — (14,346) (14,346)
Goodwill related to Aloha acquisition (54,377) 5,185 (49,192)
Goodwill related to Alta East acquisition 16,599 — 16,599
Goodwill related to other acquisitions — 14,367 14,367

Balance at December 31, 2015 (Successor) $ 686,340 $ 2,424922 $ 3,111,262
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Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of an acquired entity over the amounts assigned to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination. During 2015, we continued our evaluation of the Aloh a purchase accounting with the assistance of a third party valuation firm. An adjustment related to the
Aloha acquisition of $49.2 million was made to reduce goodwill and increase tangible and intangible assets, offset by an increase in deferred tax liabil ity.

During the year ended December 31, 2015, in connection with the finalization of the ETP Merger valuation, an adjustment of $14.3 million was made to reduce
goodwill and deferred tax liability, and increase property and equipment.

We also recorded goodwill in conjunction with other acquisitions as discussed in Note 4. Goodwill is recorded at the acquisition date based on a preliminary
purchase price allocation and generally may be adjusted when the purchase price allocation is finalized. In accordance with ASC 350-20-35 “ Goodwill - Subsequent
Measurements ,” during the fourth quarter of 2015, we performed an impairment test of our goodwill and determined that there was no impairment of these assets.

Other Intangibles

The Partnership has indefinite-lived intangible assets recorded that are not amortized. These indefinite-lived assets consist of tradenames, franchise rights,
contractual rights, and liquor licenses. Tradenames, franchise rights, and liquor licenses relate to our retail segment while contractual rights relate to our wholesale segment.

In accordance with ASC 350 “ Intangibles-Goodwill and Other ,” the Partnership has finite-lived intangible assets recorded that are amortized. The finite-lived
assets consist of supply agreements, customer relations, favorable leasehold arrangements, non-competes, and loan origination costs, all of which are amortized over the
respective lives of the agreements or over the period of time the assets are expected to contribute directly or indirectly to the Partnership’s future cash flows. Customer
relations and supply agreements will be amortized over a weighted average period of approximately 11 years. Favorable leasehold arrangements will be amortized over a
weighted average period of approximately 12 years. Non-competition agreements will be amortized over a weighted average period of approximately 2 years. Loan
origination costs will be amortized over a weighted average period of approximately 4 years as an increase to interest expense.

Prior to December 31, 2014, our Stripes and Laredo Taco Company tradenames were amortized over 30 years. As of January 1, 2015, management deemed the
Stripes and Laredo Taco Company tradenames to be indefinite-lived assets and ceased amortization. The indefinite-lived designation was retrospectively applied to
presentation beginning on September 1, 2014.

We evaluate the estimated benefit periods and recoverability of other intangible assets when facts and circumstances indicate that the lives may not be appropriate
and/or the carrying values of the assets may not be recoverable. If the carrying value is not recoverable, impairment is measured as the amount by which the carrying value
exceeds estimated fair value.

The following table presents the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for each major class of intangible assets, excluding goodwill, at
December 31, 2015 and 2014:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Gross Gross
Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying Accumulated Net
Amount Amortization Book Value Amount Amortization Book Value

(in thousands)
Indefinite-lived

Tradenames $ 784,058 $ 6,508 $ 777,550 $ 789,937 $ 6,508 $ 783,429
Franchise rights — — — 329 — 329
Contractual rights 33,850 — 33,850 — — —
Liquor licenses 16,000 — 16,000 16,000 — 16,000
Finite-lived
Customer relations including supply agreements 551,033 150,101 400,932 457,556 105,556 352,000
Favorable leasehold arrangements, net 22,863 1,188 21,675 25,531 1,158 24,373
Loan origination costs 9,358 2,172 7,186 7,611 381 7,230
Other intangibles 3,675 1,428 2,247 4,604 728 3,876
Intangible assets, net $ 1,420,837 $ 161,397 $ 1,259,440 $ 1,301,568 $ 114,331 $ 1,187,237

Total amortization expense on finite-lived intangibles included in depreciation, amortization and accretion for the Successor twelve month period ended
December 31, 2015 and the period September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014, was $52.8 million and
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$18.1 million, respectively, and was $2.9 million and $3.4 million for the Predecessor period January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014 and the twelve month period ended
December 31, 2013, respectively.

The following table presents the Partnership’s estimate of amortization includable in amortization expense and interest expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal
years and thereafter for finite-lived intangibles as of December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

Amortization Interest

2016 $ 47,714  $ 1,925

2017 47,312 1,925

2018 46,821 1,925

2019 46,421 1,411

2020 45,553 —

Thereafter 191,033 —

10. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities
Current accrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following:
December 31,
2015 December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Wage and other employee-related accrued expenses $ 26,019 $ 31,050

Franchise agreement termination accrual 4,399 4,579

Accrued tax expense 102,473 170,137

Accrued insurance 32,716 16,319

Accrued environmental 7,600 11,972

Accrued interest expense 28,494 1,583

Deposits and other 106,238 107,031

Total $ 307,939 $ 342,671

11. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Sale leaseback financing obligation $ 121,992 § 126,643
Senior term loan on Uphoff properties
("VIE Debt", see Note 5) — 56,452
2014 Revolver, bearing interest at Prime or LIBOR
plus an applicable margin 450,000 683,378
6.375% Senior Notes Due 2023 800,000 —
5.500% Senior Notes Due 2020 600,000 —
Notes payable, bearing interest at 6% and 4% 3,525 3,552
Capital lease obligations 7 494
Note payable, bearing interest at 7% 443 457
Promissory note with ETP — 235,000
Total debt 1,975,967 1,105,976
Less: current maturities 5,084 13,772
Less: debt issuance costs 18,352 —
Long-term debt, net of current maturities $ 1,952,531 $ 1,092,204
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At December 31, 2015, scheduled future debt principal maturities were as follows (in thousands):

2016 $ 5,084
2017 7,809
2018 5,053
2019 455,318
2020 605,598
Thereafter 897,105

Total $ 1,975,967

5.500% Senior Notes Due 2020

On July 20, 2015, we and our wholly-owned subsidiary, SUN Finance (together with the Partnership, the “2020 Issuers”), completed a private offering of
$600.0 million 5.500% senior notes due 2020 (the “2020 Senior Notes”). The terms of the 2020 Senior Notes are governed by an indenture dated July 20, 2015 (the “2020
Indenture”), among the 2020 Issuers, our General Partner, and certain other subsidiaries of the Partnership (the “2020 Guarantors”) and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee (the “2020 Trustee”). The 2020 Senior Notes will mature on August 1, 2020 and interest is payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1 of each year,
commencing February 1, 2016. The 2020 Senior Notes are senior obligations of the 2020 Issuers and are guaranteed on a senior basis by all of the Partnership’s existing
subsidiaries. The 2020 Senior Notes and guarantees are unsecured and rank equally with all of the 2020 Issuers’ and each 2020 Guarantor’s existing and future senior
obligations. The 2020 Senior Notes are senior in right of payment to any of the 2020 Issuers’ and each 2020 Guarantor’s future obligations that are, by their terms, expressly
subordinated in right of payment to the 2020 Senior Notes and guarantees. The 2020 Senior Notes and guarantees are effectively subordinated to the 2020 Issuers’ and each
2020 Guarantor’s secured obligations, including obligations under the Partnership’s revolving credit facility, to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such
obligations, and structurally subordinated to all indebtedness and obligations, including trade payables, of the Partnership’s subsidiaries that do not guarantee the 2020
Senior Notes.

Net proceeds of $592.5 million were used to fund a portion of the Susser Cash Consideration.
6.375% Senior Notes Due 2023

On April 1, 2015, we and our wholly-owned subsidiary, SUN Finance (together with the Partnership, the “2023 Issuers”), completed a private offering of
$800.0 million 6.375% senior notes due 2023 (the “2023 Senior Notes™). The terms of the 2023 Senior Notes are governed by an indenture dated April 1, 2015 (the “2023
Indenture”), among the 2023 Issuers, our General Partner, and certain other subsidiaries of the Partnership (the “2023 Guarantors”) and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee (the “2023 Trustee”). The 2023 Senior Notes will mature on April 1, 2023 and interest is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year, commencing
October 1, 2015. The 2023 Senior Notes are senior obligations of the 2023 Issuers and are guaranteed on a senior basis by all of the Partnership’s existing subsidiaries. The
2023 Senior Notes and guarantees are unsecured and rank equally with all of the 2023 Issuers’ and each 2023 Guarantor’s existing and future senior obligations. The 2023
Senior Notes are senior in right of payment to any of the 2023 Issuers’ and each 2023 Guarantor’s future obligations that are, by their terms, expressly subordinated in right
of payment to the 2023 Senior Notes and guarantees. The 2023 Senior Notes and guarantees are effectively subordinated to the 2023 Issuers’ and each 2023 Guarantor’s
secured obligations, including obligations under the Partnership’s revolving credit facility, to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such obligations, and
structurally subordinated to all indebtedness and obligations, including trade payables, of the Partnership’s subsidiaries that do not guarantee the 2023 Senior Notes. ETP
Retail provided a guarantee of collection to the 2023 Issuers with respect to the payment of the principal amount of the 2023 Senior Notes. ETP Retail is not subject to any
of the covenants under the 2023 Indenture.

In connection with our issuance of the 2023 Senior Notes, we entered into a registration rights agreement with the initial purchasers pursuant to which we agreed to
complete an offer to exchange the 2023 Senior Notes for an issue of registered notes with terms substantially identical to the 2023 Senior Notes on or before April 1, 2016
(the “Target Date”). We have not completed this exchange offer and, as a result, we are required to pay each holder of 2023 Senior Notes liquidated damages in the form of
additional interest equal to 0.25% per annum of the principal amount of 2023 Senior Notes held by such holder, with respect to the first 90 days after the Target Date (which
rate will be increased by an additional 0.25% per annum for each subsequent 90 day period that such liquidated damages continue to accrue), in each case until the exchange
offer is completed; provided, however, that at no time will the amount of liquidated damages accruing exceed in the aggregate 1.00% per annum.

Net proceeds of $786.5 million were used to fund the Sunoco Cash Consideration and repay borrowings under our 2014 Revolver (as defined below).
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Revolving Credit Agreement

On September 25, 2014, we entered into a new $1.25 billion revolving credit facility (the “2014 Revolver”) with a syndicate of banks expiring September 25, 2019
(which date may be extended in accordance with the terms of the 2014 Revolver). The 2014 Revolver includes an accordion feature providing flexibility to increase the
facility by an additional $250 million, subject to certain conditions. Borrowings under the 2014 Revolver were used to repay and cancel the $400 million revolving credit
facility (the “2012 Revolver”) entered into in connection with the IPO. Effective April 8, 2015, in connection with the Sunoco LLC Acquisition, we entered into a Specified
Acquisition Period (as defined in the 2014 Revolver) in which our leverage ratio compliance requirements were adjusted upward. Such Specified Acquisition Period ended
on August 19, 2015 and concurrently in connection with the Susser Acquisition, we entered into a new Specified Acquisition Period.

Borrowings under the 2014 Revolver bear interest at a base rate (a rate based off of the higher of (a) the Federal Funds Rate (as defined therein) plus 0.50%, (b)
Bank of America’s prime rate or (c) one-month LIBOR (as defined therein) plus 1.00%) or LIBOR, in each case plus an applicable margin ranging from 1.50% to 2.50%, in
the case of a LIBOR loan, or from 0.50% to 1.50%, in the case of a base rate loan (determined with reference to the Partnership’s Leverage Ratio (as defined therein)). Upon
the first achievement by the Partnership of an investment grade credit rating, the applicable margin will decrease to a range of 1.125% to 2.0%, in the case of a LIBOR loan,
or from 0.125% to 1.00%, in the case of a base rate loan (determined with reference to the credit rating for the Partnership’s senior, unsecured, non-credit enhanced long-
term debt). Interest is payable quarterly if the base rate applies, at the end of the applicable interest period if LIBOR applies and at the end of the month if daily floating
LIBOR applies. In addition, the unused portion of the 2014 Revolver is subject to a commitment fee ranging from 0.250% to 0.350%, based on the Partnership’s Leverage
Ratio (as defined therein). Upon the first achievement by the Partnership of an investment grade credit rating, the commitment fee will decrease to a range of 0.125% to
0.275%, based on the Partnership’s credit rating as described above.

The 2014 Revolver requires the Partnership to maintain a Leverage Ratio of not more than 5.50 to 1.00. The maximum Leverage Ratio is subject to upwards
adjustment of not more than 6.00 to 1.00 for a period not to exceed three fiscal quarters in the event the Partnership engages in an acquisition of assets, equity interests, (as
defined therein) operating lines or divisions by the Partnership, a subsidiary, (as defined therein) an unrestricted subsidiary (as defined therein) or a joint venture for a
purchase price of not less than $50 million. Effective October 7, 2014 in connection with the acquisition of MACS, we entered into a Specified Acquisition period in which
our leverage ratio compliance requirements were adjusted upward. Such Specified Acquisition Period ended on April 8, 2015, and concurrently in connection with the
Sunoco LLC acquisition, we entered into a new Specified Acquisition Period. This Specified Acquisition Period likewise ended in turn and was concurrently replaced on
August 19, 2015, in connection with the Susser acquisition. Indebtedness under the 2014 Revolver is secured by a security interest in, among other things, all of the
Partnership’s present and future personal property and all of the present and future personal property of its guarantors, the capital stock of its material subsidiaries (or 66%
of the capital stock of material foreign subsidiaries), and any intercompany debt. Upon the first achievement by the Partnership of an investment grade credit rating, all
security interests securing the 2014 Revolver will be released.

On April 10, 2015, the Partnership entered into a First Amendment to Credit Agreement and Increase Agreement (the “First Amendment”) with the lenders party
thereto and Bank of America, N.A. in its capacity as administrative agent and collateral agent, pursuant to which the lenders thereto severally agreed to (i) provide
$250 million in aggregate incremental commitments under the Partnership’s 2014 Revolver and (ii) make certain amendments to the 2014 Revolver as described in the First
Amendment. After giving effect to the First Amendment, the 2014 Revolver permits the Partnership to borrow up to $1.5 billion on a revolving credit basis.

On December 2, 2015, the Partnership entered into an amendment (the "Amendment") to that certain Credit Agreement, dated as of September 25, 2014 (as amended
to date, the "Credit Agreement") with the lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., in its capacity as a letter of credit issuer, as swing line lender, and as
administrative agent. The Amendment amended the Credit Agreement to, among other matters, (a) permit the incurrence of a term loan credit facility in connection with the
consummation of the ETP Dropdown, (b) permit such term loan credit facility to be secured on a pari passu basis with the indebtedness incurred under the Credit Agreement
(as amended by the Amendment) pursuant to a collateral trust arrangement whereby a financial institution agrees to act as common collateral agent for all pari passu
indebtedness and (iii) temporarily increase the maximum leverage ratio permitted under the Credit Agreement (as amended by the Amendment) in connection with the
consummation of the ETP Dropdown.

As of December 31, 2015, the balance on the 2014 Revolver was $450.0 million, and $22.5 million in standby letters of credit were outstanding. The unused
availability on the 2014 Revolver at December 31, 2015 was $1,027.5 million. The Partnership was in compliance with all financial covenants at December 31, 2015.
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Guaranty by Susser of the 2014 Revolver

In 2012, Susser entered into a Guaranty of Collection (the “Guaranty”) in connection with the term loan and the 2012 Revolver, which was transferred to the 2014
Revolver. Pursuant to the Guaranty, Susser guaranteed the collection of the principal amount outstanding under the 2014 Revolver. Susser’s obligation under the Guaranty
was limited to $180.7 million. Susser was not required to make payments under the Guaranty unless and until (a) the Partnership failed to make a payment on the 2014
Revolver, (b) the obligations under such facilities were accelerated, (c) all remedies of the applicable lenders to collect the unpaid amounts due under such facilities, whether
at law or equity, were exhausted and (d) the applicable lenders failed to collect the full amount owing on such facilities. In addition, Susser entered into a Reimbursement
Agreement with PropCo, whereby Susser was obligated to reimburse PropCo for any amounts paid by PropCo under the Guaranty of the 2014 Revolver executed by our
subsidiaries. Susser’s exposure under this reimbursement agreement was limited, when aggregated with its obligation under the Guaranty, to $180.7 million. Subsequent to
the closing of the Susser acquisition, Susser and its material subsidiaries (as defined by the 2014 Revolver) were joined to the 2014 Revolver as subsidiary guarantors and
Susser was released from the Guaranty.

Variable Interest Entity Debt

Our consolidated VIEs (resulting from the MACS acquisition) had a senior term loan (“VIE Debt”), collateralized by certain real and personal properties of the
consolidated variable interest entities. We exercised our right of purchase on the VIE during 2015 (refer to Note 5 for details). The VIE Debt bore interest at LIBOR plus
3.75%, with a floor of 4.5%. As of December 31, 2014, the interest rate was 4.5% and the balance outstanding was $34.0 million. The VIE Debt principal and interest were
repayable in equal monthly installments over a 20 year period and included the right to prepay all outstanding principal at any time, with a penalty of up to 3.0% depending
on the date of repayment.

As of December 31, 2014, the remaining VIE debt of approximately $22.5 million consisted of loans collateralized by equipment and property. The average stated
interest rate for these loans was approximately 5.4%.

Sale Leaseback Financing Obligation

On April 4, 2013, MACS completed a sale leaseback transaction with two separate companies for 50 of its dealer operated sites. As MACS did not meet the criteria
for sale leaseback accounting, this transaction was accounted for as a financing arrangement over the course of the lease agreement. The obligations mature in varying dates
through 2033, require monthly interest and principal payments, and bear interest at 5.125%. The obligation related to this transaction is included in long-term debt and the
balance outstanding as of December 31, 2015 was $122.0 million.

Promissory Note with ETP

On August 29, 2014, in connection with the ETP Merger, Susser entered into a promissory note with HHI, providing Susser with a line of credit of up to
$350 million, maturing on December 31, 2017. Initial borrowings under the promissory note were used to repay outstanding balances on Susser’s Second Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement and to fund miscellaneous closing costs associated with the ETP Merger. Borrowings under the promissory note accrued interest at a rate equal
to the three month LIBOR plus 1.5%. Susser paid interest on the unpaid principal balance on the first business day of each month. The promissory note was canceled in
connection with the closing of the Susser acquisition with a balance of $255.0 million. As of December 31, 2015, there were no amounts due and outstanding under the
promissory note.

Other Debt

On July 8, 2010, we entered into a mortgage note for an aggregate initial borrowing amount of $1.2 million. Pursuant to the terms of the mortgage note, we make
monthly installment payments that are comprised of principal and interest through the maturity date of July 1, 2016. The balance outstanding at each December 31, 2014 and
2015 was $1.0 million. The mortgage note bears interest at a fixed rate of 6.0%. The mortgage note is secured by a first priority security interest in a property owned by the
Partnership.

In September 2013, we assumed a $3.0 million term loan as part of the acquisition of Gainesville Fuel, Inc. The balance outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2015
was $2.5 million. The term loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.0%.

The estimated fair value of long-term debt is calculated using Level 3 inputs. The fair value of debt as of December 31, 2015, is estimated to be approximately
$1.9 billion, based on outstanding balances as of the end of the period using current interest rates for similar securities.
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Fair Value Measurements

We use fair value measurements to measure, among other items, purchased assets and investments, leases and derivative contracts. We also use them to assess
impairment of properties, equipment, intangible assets and goodwill. Fair value is defined as the price at which an asset could be exchanged in a current transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties. A liability’s fair value is defined as the amount that would be paid to transfer the liability to a new obligor, not the amount that would be
paid to settle the liability with the creditor. Where available, fair value is based on observable market prices or parameters, or is derived from such prices or parameters.
Where observable prices or inputs are not available, use of unobservable prices or inputs is used to estimate the current fair value, often using an internal valuation model.
These valuation techniques involve some level of management estimation and judgment, the degree of which is dependent on the item being valued.

ASC 820 “ Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ™ prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value into the following hierarchy:

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly observable;
Level 3 Unobservable inputs in which little or no market activity exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions about the assumptions

that market participants would use in pricing.

Debt or equity securities are classified into the following reporting categories: held-to-maturity, trading or available-for-sale securities. The investments in debt
securities, which typically mature in one year or less, are classified as held-to-maturity and valued at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The fair value of
marketable securities is measured using Level 1 inputs. There were none outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2015.

12. Related-Party Transactions

Through Sunoco LLC, we are party to the following fee-based commercial agreements with various affiliates of ETP:

. Philadelphia Energy Solutions Offtake Contract — A 1-year supply agreement with Philadelphia Energy Solutions LLC (“PES”). Sunoco Inc. owns a 33% non-
operating noncontrolling interest in PES.

. Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P. Transportation and Terminalling Contracts — Sunoco LLC is party to various agreements with subsidiaries of Sunoco Logistics
Partners L.P. for pipeline, terminalling and storage services. Sunoco LLC also has agreements for the purchase and sale of fuel. Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P.
is a consolidated subsidiary of ETP.

We are party to the Susser Distribution Contract, a 10-year agreement under which we are the exclusive distributor of motor fuel at cost (including tax and
transportation costs), plus a fixed profit margin of three cents per gallon to Susser’s existing Stripes convenience stores and independently operated consignment locations.
This profit margin is eliminated in consolidation from the date of common control, September 1, 2014, and thereafter, in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income.

We are party to the Sunoco Distribution Contract, a 10-year agreement under which Sunoco LLC is the exclusive wholesale distributor of motor fuel to Sunoco
Retail’s convenience stores. Pursuant to the agreement, pricing is cost plus a fixed margin of four cents per gallon. This profit margin is eliminated through consolidation
from the date of common control, September 1, 2014, and thereafter, in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income.

In connection with the closing of our initial public offering (“IPO”) on September 25, 2012, we also entered into an Omnibus Agreement with Susser (the "Omnibus
Agreement"). Pursuant to the Omnibus Agreement, among other things, the Partnership received a three-year option to purchase from Susser up to 75 of Susser's new or
recently constructed Stripes convenience stores at Susser's cost and lease the stores back to Susser at a specified rate for a 15-year initial term. The Partnership is the
exclusive distributor of motor fuel to such stores for a period of ten years from the date of purchase. We have completed all 75 sale-leaseback transactions under the
Omnibus Agreement.
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Summary of Transactions

Related party transactions with affiliates for the Successor twelve month period ended December 31, 2015 and the period September 1, 2014 through
December 31, 2014 and for the Predecessor period January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014 and the twelve month period ended December 31, 2013 are as follows (in
thousands):

Successor Predecessor
Twelve months September 1, 2014 January 1, 2014 Twelve months
ended through through ended

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 August 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

Motor fuel sales to affiliates $ 20,026 $ — $ 2,200,394 $ 2,974,122

Bulk fuel purchases from affiliates 2,449,029 52,474 — —

Allocated cost of employees — — 8,802 11,400
Transportation charges from Susser

for delivery of motor fuel — — 37,874 49,994

Purchase of stores from Susser — — 81,145 104,159

Included in the bulk fuel purchases above are purchases from PES, which constitute 9.7% of our total cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Additional significant affiliate activity related to the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income are as follows:

. Net advances to affiliates were $365.5 million and $597.9 million at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, which were primarily related to
the treasury services agreements between Sunoco LLC and Sunoco Inc. (R&M) and Sunoco Retail LLC and Sunoco Inc. (R&M) which are in place for
purposes of cash management.

. Net accounts receivable from affiliates were $8.1 million and $4.9 million at December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, which are primarily
related to motor fuel purchases from us.

. Net accounts payable to ETP was $15.0 million and $57.0 million as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, attributable to operational
expenses and fuel pipeline purchases.
13. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases
The Partnership leases certain convenience store and other properties under non-cancellable operating leases whose initial terms are typically 5 to 20 years, with
some having a term of 30 years or more, along with options that permit renewals for additional periods. Minimum rent is expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. In addition, certain leases require additional contingent payments based on sales or motor fuel volumes. We typically are responsible for payment of real estate

taxes, maintenance expenses and insurance. These properties are either sublet to third parties or used for our convenience store operations.

The components of net rent expense are as follows:

Successor Predecessor
Twelve months September 1, 2014 January 1, 2014 Twelve months
ended through through ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 August 31, 2014 December 31, 2013

(in thousands)
Cash rent:

Store base rent $ 126,517  $ 35,218 $ 562 $ 819

Equipment rent 16,061 5,957 155 175
Total cash rent 142,578 41,175 717 994
Non-cash rent:

Straight-line rent (1,716) 1,181 12 20

Capital lease offset (1,011) (244) —
Net rent expense $ 139,851  $ 42,112 $ 729 $ 1,014
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Equipment rent consists primarily of store equipment and vehicles. Sublease rental income for the Successor twelve month period ending December 31, 2015 and the
period September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 was $26.3 million and $7.9 million, respectively and was $0.9 million and $0.6 million for the Successor period
January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014 and the twelve month period ending December 31, 2013.

Future minimum lease payments, excluding sale-leaseback financing obligations (see Note 11), for future fiscal years are as follows (in thousands):

2016 $ 80,259
2017 76,230
2018 70,663
2019 69,201
2020 68,306
Thereafter 477,214

Total $ 841,873

Environmental Remediation

We are subject to various federal, state and local environmental laws and make financial expenditures in order to comply with regulations governing underground
storage tanks adopted by federal, state and local regulatory agencies. In particular, at the federal level, the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended,
requires the EPA to establish a comprehensive regulatory program for the detection, prevention, and cleanup of leaking underground storage tanks (e.g. overfills, spills, and
underground storage tank releases).

Federal and state regulations require us to provide and maintain evidence that we are taking financial responsibility for corrective action and compensating third
parties in the event of a release from our underground storage tank systems. In order to comply with these requirements, we have historically obtained private insurance in
the states in which we operate. These policies provide protection from third-party liability claims. During 2015, our coverage was $10 million per occurrence and in the
aggregate. Our sites continue to be covered by these policies.

We are currently involved in the investigation and remediation of contamination at motor fuel storage and gasoline store sites where releases of regulated substances
have been detected. We accrue for anticipated future costs and the related probable state reimbursement amounts for remediation activities. Accordingly, we have recorded
estimated undiscounted liabilities for these sites totaling $36.9 million and $40.0 million as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, which are classified
as accrued expenses and other current liabilities and other noncurrent liabilities. As of December 31, 2015, we had $1.8 million in an escrow account to satisfy
environmental claims related to the MACS acquisition and $14.1 million in an escrow account to satisfy environmental claims related to the Aloha acquisition.

We record an asset retirement obligation for the estimated future cost to remove underground storage tanks. Revisions to the liability could occur due to changes in
tank removal costs, tank useful lives or if federal and/or state regulators enact new guidance on the removal of such tanks. Accordingly, we have reserves of $54.5 million
and $52.8 million, which are included in other noncurrent liabilities as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively.

Deferred Branding Incentives

We receive deferred branding incentives and other incentive payments from a number of our fuel suppliers. A portion of the deferred branding incentives may be
passed on to our wholesale branded dealers under the same terms as required by our fuel suppliers. Many of the agreements require repayment of all or a portion of the
amount received if we (or our branded dealers) elect to discontinue selling the specified brand of fuel at certain locations. As of December 31, 2015, the estimated amount of
deferred branding incentives that would have to be repaid upon de-branding at these locations was $5.0 million. Of this amount, approximately $4.1 million would be the
responsibility of the Partnership’s branded dealers under reimbursement agreements with the dealers. In the event a dealer were to default on this reimbursement obligation,
we would be required to make this payment. No liability is recorded for the amount of dealer obligations which would become payable upon de-branding as no such dealer
default is considered probable at December 31, 2015. We have $1.5 million and $3.8 million recorded for deferred branding incentives, net of accumulated amortization, on
the balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively, of which $1.5 million and $3.4 million, respectively, are included in other non-current
liabilities. The Partnership amortizes its retained portion of the incentives to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreements.
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Contingent Consideration related to Acquisition

As of December 31, 2015, we have recorded on our consolidated balance sheet under other non-current liabilities the $18.3 million that Aloha is expected to achieve
during the earnout period of December 16, 2014 through December 31, 2022. This fair value measurement is categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

14. Rental Income under Operating Leases
The following schedule details our investment in property under operating leases:

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
(in thousands)

Land $ 141,490 § 140,601
Buildings and improvements 81,502 70,205
Equipment 37,257 37,230
Total property and equipment 260,249 248,036
Less: accumulated depreciation (30,093) (28,093)
Property and equipment, net $ 230,156 $ 219,943

Rental income for the Successor twelve month period ended December 31, 2015 and the period September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014 was $81.3 million

and $24.7 million, respectively, and was $11.7 million and $10.1 million for the Predecessor period January 1, 2014 through August 31, 2014 and the twelve month period
ended December 31, 2013, respectively.

The following is a schedule by years of minimum future rental income under non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2015 (in thousands):

2016 $ 30,839
2017 18,982
2018 10,249
2019 7,537
2020 3,352
Thereafter 2,535

Total minimum future rentals $ 73,494

15. Interest Expense and Interest Income

The components of net interest expense were as follows:

Successor Predecessor
Twelve months September 1, 2014 January 1, 2014 Twelve months
ended through through ended
December 31,2015 December 31, 2014 August 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
(in thousands)

Cash interest expense $ 86,824 $ 9,064 $ 4,516 $ 3,356

Amortization of loan costs 3,515 1,986 313 381
Cash interest income (2,764) (115) (62) (266)

Interest expense, net $ 87,575 % 10,935 $ 4,767 $ 3,471

16. Income Tax

As a partnership, we are generally not subject federal income tax and most state income taxes. However, the Partnership conducts certain activities through corporate
subsidiaries which are subject to federal and state income taxes. The components of the federal and state income tax expense (benefit) are summarized as follows:
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Successor

Predecessor

Twelve months

September 1, 2014

January 1, 2014

Twelve months

ended through through ended
December 31,2015  December 31, 2014 August 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
(in thousands)

Current:

Federal $ 11,523  § 50,987 $ 15) $ 68

State 4,182 9,116 252 302
Total current income tax expense 15,705 60,103 237 370
Deferred:

Federal 16,216 21,982 (19) 70

State 19,768 (2,541) — —
Total deferred tax expense (benefit) 35,984 19,441 (19) 70
Net income tax expense $ 51,689 $ 79,544 $ 218 $ 440

Historically, our effective tax rate differed from the statutory rate primarily due to Partnership earnings that are not subject to U.S. federal and most state income
taxes at the Partnership level. The completion of the acquisition of Susser on July 31, 2015 (see Note 4) significantly increased the activities conducted through corporate
subsidiaries. A reconciliation of the income tax expense at the U. S. federal statutory rate to the income tax expense is presented below:

Successor Predecessor
Twelve months September 1, 2014 January 1, 2014 Twelve months
ended through through ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 August 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
(in thousands)

Tax at statutory federal rate $ 86,015 $ 9,310 $ 7955 $ 13,113
Partnership earnings not subject to tax (55,402) 23,978 (7,598) (13,028)
Revaluation of investments in affiliates 9,348 45,182 — —
State and local tax, net of federal benefit 12,409 4,044 164 301
Other (681) (2,970) (303) 54
Net income tax expense $ 51,689 $ 79,544 $ 218§ 440

Deferred taxes result from the temporary differences between financial reporting carrying amounts and the tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. The table below

summarizes the principal components of the deferred tax assets (liabilities) as follows:

December 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

Deferred tax assets:

(in thousands)

Environmental, asset retirement obligations, and other reserves $ 34,864 $ 34,480
Inventories 5,281 4,534
Net operating loss carry forwards 62,014 —
Other 23,111 23,399
Total deferred tax assets 125,270 62,413
Deferred tax liabilities:
Fixed assets 442,265 332,838
Trademarks and other intangibles 291,739 274,504
Investments in affiliates 85,649 82,902
Other — 2,425
Total deferred tax liabilities 819,653 692,669
Net deferred income tax liabilities $ 694,383 $ 630,256

As a result of the early adoption and retrospective application of ASU 2015-17 as more fully described in Note 2, $15.7 million of deferred tax assets previously
presented as a current asset as of December 31, 2014 has been reclassified to noncurrent in these financial statements.

Our corporate subsidiaries have federal net operating loss carryforwards of $173.2 million as of December 31, 2015 which expire in 2034 and 2035. Our corporate

subsidiaries also have state net operating loss benefits of $1.4 million, net of federal tax, most
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of which expire between 2029 and 2035. We have determined that it is more likely than not that all federal and state net operating losses will be utilized, and accordingly, no
valuation allowance is required as of December 31, 2015.

The Partnership and its subsidiaries do not have any unrecognized tax benefits for uncertain tax positions as of December 31, 2015 or 2014. The Partnership believes
that all tax positions taken or will to be taken will more likely than not be sustained under audit, and accordingly, we do not have any unrecognized tax benefits.

Our policy is to accrue interest and penalties on income tax underpayments (overpayments) as a component of income tax expense. We did not have any material
interest and penalties in the periods presented.

The Partnership and its subsidiaries are no longer subject to examination by the IRS for 2011 and prior tax years. However, the statute remains open for Susser in
one state jurisdiction under examination and appeal which is the Texas 2010 and 2012 margins tax years.
17. Partners’ Capital

On November 30, 2015, pursuant to the terms of the Partnership Agreement, 10,939,436 subordinated units held by subsidiaries of ETP were exchanged for
10,939,436 common units. On December 3, 2015, we completed a private placement of 24,052,631 of our common units for gross proceeds of approximately $685 million.

As of December 31, 2015, ETP or its subsidiaries owned 37,776,746 common units, which constitute a 38.4% limited partnership ownership interest in us. As of
December 31, 2015, our fully consolidated subsidiaries owned 11,018,744 Class A units and the public owned 49,588,960 units.

Information presented below for net income allocation to Partners is presented for periods before and after the ETP Merger (see Note 4).
Allocations of Net Income

Our partnership agreement contains provisions for the allocation of net income and loss to the unitholders. For purposes of maintaining partner capital accounts, the
partnership agreement specifies that items of income and loss shall be allocated among the partners in accordance with their respective percentage interest. Normal
allocations according to percentage interests are made after giving effect, if any, to priority income allocations in an amount equal to incentive cash distributions allocated

100% to ETE.

The calculation of net income allocated to the partners is as follows (in thousands, except per unit amounts):

Successor Predecessor
Twelve months September 1, 2014 January 1, 2014 Twelve months
ended through through ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 August 31,2014 December 31, 2013

Attributable to Common Units
Distributions (a) $ 155,875  $ 27,031 $ 11,261  $ 20,251
Distributions in excess of net income (111,377) (9,532) 7 (1,717)
Limited partners' interest in net income $ 44498 $ 17,499 $ 11,268  $ 18,534
Attributable to Subordinated Units
Distributions (a) $ 22,796 $ 12,533 $ 11,178 $ 20,167
Distributions in excess of net income (11,730) (3,228) — (1,674)
Limited partners' interest in net income $ 11,066 $ 9,305 $ 11,178 $ 18,493
(a) Distributions declared per unit

to unitholders as of record date $ 28851 § 1.1457 $ 1.0218 § 1.8441
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Class A Units

Pursuant to the terms of the Susser Contribution Agreement, (i) 79,308 common units held by a wholly-owned subsidiary of Susser were exchanged for 79,308 Class
A Units and (ii) 10,939,436 subordinated units held by wholly-owned subsidiaries of Susser were converted into 10,939,436 Class A units.

Class A Units were entitled to receive distributions on a pro rata basis with common units, except that the Class A Units (a) did not share in distributions of cash to
the extent such cash was derived from or attributable to any distribution received by the Partnership from PropCo, the proceeds of any sale of the membership interests of
PropCo, or any interest or principal payments received by the Partnership with respect to indebtedness of PropCo or its subsidiaries and (b) were subordinated to the
common units during the subordination period for the subordinated units and were not entitled to receive any distributions until holders of the common units received the
minimum quarterly distribution plus any arrearages in the payment of the minimum quarterly distribution from prior quarters. The Class A Units were exchanged for Class
C Units on January 1, 2016.

Pursuant to the terms described above, these distributions did not have an impact on the Partnership’s consolidated cash flows and as such, were excluded from total
cash distributions and allocation of limited partners’ interest in net income. For the year ended December 31, 2015, Class A distributions declared totaled $10.1 million, or
$0.9138 per unit. Fourth quarter distributions were paid to Class C unitholders pursuant to the terms of the partnership agreement.

Incentive Distribution Rights

The following table illustrates the percentage allocations of available cash from operating surplus between our common unitholders and the holder of our IDRs based
on the specified target distribution levels; after the payment of distributions to Class C Unitholders. The amounts set forth under “marginal percentage interest in
distributions” are the percentage interests of our IDR holder and the common unitholders in any available cash from operating surplus we distribute up to and including the
corresponding amount in the column “total quarterly distribution per unit target amount.” The percentage interests shown for our unitholders and our IDR holder for the
minimum quarterly distribution are also applicable to quarterly distribution amounts that are less than the minimum quarterly distribution. Effective August 21, 2015, ETE
exchanged 21.0 million ETP common units, owned by ETE, the owner of ETP’s general partner interest, for 100% of the general partner interest and all of the IDRs of
Sunoco LP. ETP had previously owned our IDRs since September 2014, prior to that date the IDRs were owned by Susser.

Marginal percentage interest in

distributions
Total quarterly distribution per Common unit Common
target amount Unitholders Holder of IDRs
Minimum Quarterly Distribution $0.4375 100% —
First Target Distribution Above $0.4375 up to $0.503125 100% —
Second Target Distribution Above $0.503125 up to $0.546875 85% 15%
Third Target Distribution Above $0.546875 up to $0.656250 75% 25%
Thereafter Above $0.656250 50% 50%

Cash Distributions

Our partnership agreement, as amended, sets forth the calculation to be used to determine the amount and priority of cash distributions that the common and
subordinated unitholders receive.
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The following table presents our cash distributions paid:

Limited Partners

Total Cash Distribution to IDR
Payment Date Per Unit Distribution Distribution Holders
(in thousands, except per unit amounts)

May 16, 2016 $ 0.8173 § 77,921 $ 19,566
February 16, 2016 0.8013 70,006 16,532
November 27, 2015 0.7454 47,194 8,441
August 28, 2015 0.6934 28,661 3,362
May 29, 2015 0.6450 23,113 1,449
February 27, 2015 0.6000 21,023 891
November 28, 2014 0.5457 18,541 255
August 29,2014 0.5197 11,413 64
May 30, 2014 0.5021 11,026 —
February 28, 2014 0.4851 10,650 —
November 29, 2013 0.4687 10,290 —
August 29, 2013 0.4528 9,907 —
May 30, 2013 0.4375 9,572 —
March 1, 2013 0.4375 9,572 —
November 29, 2012 0.0285 624 —

18. Unit-Based Compensation

Unit-based compensation expense related to the Partnership included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income is as follows (in
thousands):

Successor Predecessor
Twelve months September 1, 2014 January 1, 2014 Twelve months
ended through through ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 August 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Phantom common units (1) $ 6,591 $ 3,922 $ 604 $ 530
Allocated expense from Parent (2) 1,393 994 4,088 1,405
Total unit-based compensation expense $ 7,984 § 4,916 $ 4,692 $ 1,935
€)) Excludes unit-based compensation expense related to units issued to non-employees.
2) Reflects expenses allocated to us by Susser prior to the ETP Merger and expenses allocated to us by ETP

subsequent to the closing of the ETP Merger.
Phantom Common Unit Awards

Our general partner issued a total of 6,354, 15,815 and 32,500 phantom unit awards to certain directors and employees under the LTIP during 2014, 2013 and 2012
prior to the ETP Merger, respectively. Recipients of these awards had no distribution or voting rights until they vested and were settled in common units. The fair value of
each phantom unit on the grant date was equal to the market price of our common unit on that date reduced by the present value of estimated dividends over the vesting
period, since the phantom units did not receive dividends until vested. The estimated fair value of our phantom units was amortized over the vesting period using the
straight-line method. Non-employee director awards vested over a one-to-three year period and employee awards vested ratably over a two-to-five year service period.
Concurrent with the ETP Merger, all unvested phantom units vested and compensation cost of $0.4 million was recognized.

Subsequent to the ETP Merger, restricted phantom units were issued which also have the right to receive distributions prior to vesting. During the year ended
December 31, 2015, 993,134 restricted phantom units were issued. The units vest 60% after three years and 40% after five years. The fair value of these units is the market
price of our common units on the grant date, and is amortized over the five-year vesting period using the straight-line method. Unrecognized compensation cost related to
our nonvested restricted phantom units totaled $40.2 million as of December 31, 2015, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.3 years. The
fair value of nonvested restricted phantom units outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, totaled $47.4 million and $11.0 million, respectively.

F-38



A summary of our phantom unit award activity for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, is set forth below:

Number of Phantom Weighted-Average

C Units Grant Date Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2013 (Predecessor) 36,963 § 21.66
Granted 6,354 33.24
Vested (40,317) 23.72
Forfeited (3,000) 18.42
Outstanding at August 31, 2014 (Predecessor) — —
Granted 241,235 45.50
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 (Successor) 241,235 45.50
Granted 993,134 40.63
Forfeited (87,321) 50.71
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 (Successor) 1,147,048 $ 41.19

Cash Awards

In January 2015, the Partnership granted 30,710 awards that are settled in cash under the terms of the Sunoco LP Long-Term Cash Restricted Unit Plan. An
additional 1,000 awards were granted in September 2015. These awards do not have the right to receive distributions prior to vesting. The awards vest 100% after three
years. Unrecognized compensation cost related to our nonvested cash awards totaled $0.9 million as of December 31, 2015, which is expected to be recognized over a
weighted average period of 1.9 years. The fair value of nonvested cash awards outstanding as of December 31, 2015 totaled $1.6 million.

19. Segment Reporting

Segment information is prepared on the same basis that our CODM reviews financial information for operational decision-making purposes. Beginning in 2014, with
the acquisition of MACS, we began operating our business in two primary operating segments, wholesale and retail, both of which are included as reportable segments. As a
result, the Predecessor periods operated as one segment, wholesale, and the Successor period operated with our wholesale and retail segments. No operating segments have
been aggregated in identifying the two reportable segments.

During the first quarter of 2015, we elected to allocate the revenue and costs previously reported in “All Other” to each segment based on the way our CODM
measures segment performance. Partnership overhead costs, interest and other expenses not directly attributable to a reportable segment are allocated based on segment
EBITDA.

Wholesale Segment

Our wholesale segment purchases motor fuel primarily from independent refiners and major oil companies and supplies it to our retail segment, to independently-
operated dealer stations under long-term supply agreements, and to distributers and other consumers of motor fuel. Also included in the wholesale segment are motor fuel
sales to consignment locations. We distribute motor fuels across more than 30 states throughout the East Coast and Southeast regions of the United States from Maine to
Florida and from Florida to New Mexico, as well as Hawaii. Sales of fuel from the wholesale segment to our retail segment are delivered at cost plus a profit margin. These
amounts are reflected in intercompany eliminations of motor fuel revenue and motor fuel cost of sales. Also included in our wholesale segment is rental income from
properties that we lease or sub-lease.

Retail Segment

Our retail segment, inclusive of the recently acquired Susser and Sunoco Retail assets, operates branded retail convenience stores throughout the East Coast and
Southeast regions of the United States from Maine to Florida and from Florida to New Mexico, as well as Hawaii, offering motor fuel, merchandise, food service, and a
variety of other services including car washes, lottery, ATM, money orders, prepaid phone cards, wireless services and movie rentals.

We report EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA by segment as a measure of segment performance. We define EBITDA as net income before net interest expense,
income tax expense and depreciation, amortization and accretion expense. Adjusted EBITDA further adjusts EBITDA to reflect certain other non-recurring and non-cash
items. Effective September 1, 2014, as a result of the ETP Merger and in an effort to conform the method by which we measure our business to that of ETP’s operations, we
define Adjusted EBITDA to include adjustments for unrealized gains and losses on commodity derivatives and inventory fair value adjustments.
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Segment Financial Data for the Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2015

Revenue
Retail motor fuel sales
Wholesale motor fuel sales to third parties
Wholesale motor fuel sales to affiliates
Merchandise sales
Rental income
Other income
Intersegment sales
Total revenue
Gross profit
Retail motor fuel
Wholesale motor fuel
Merchandise
Rental and other
Total gross profit
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Unallocated interest expense, net
Income before income taxes
Income tax expense
Net income and comprehensive income

Depreciation, amortization and accretion
Interest expense, net
Income tax expense
EBITDA
Non-cash compensation expense
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets
Unrealized gain on commodity derivatives
Inventory fair value adjustments
Adjusted EBITDA

Capital expenditures
Total assets

The following tables present financial information by segment for the twelve months ended December 31, 2015 and for the period from September 1, 2014 through
December 31, 2014.

Intercompany
Wholesale Segment Retail Segment Eliminations Totals
(in thousands)

$ — 3 5,891,249 $ 5,891,249

10,104,193 — 10,104,193

20,026 — 20,026

— 2,178,187 2,178,187

51,599 29,675 81,274

27,674 157,613 185,287
4,340,683 121,803 (4,462,486) —
14,544,175 8,378,527 (4,462,486) 18,460,216

— 635,197 635,197

407,468 — 407,468

— 679,878 679,878

74,339 187,021 261,360

481,807 1,502,096 1,983,903

331,708 1,318,862 1,650,570

150,099 183,234 333,333

54,296 33,279 87,575

95,803 149,955 245,758

4,321 47,368 51,689

$ 91,482 § 102,587 $ 194,069
67,780 210,529 278,309

54,296 33,279 87,575

4,321 47,368 51,689

217,879 393,763 611,642

4,016 3,968 7,984
1,440 (2,130) (690)

1,848 — 1,848

77,849 20,481 98,330

$ 303,032 $ 416,082 $ 719,114
$ 65131 $ 425618 $ 490,749
$ 2,925842  $ 5915977 $  83841,819
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Segment Financial Data for the Period from September 1, 2014 through December 31, 2014

Intercompany
Wholesale Segment Retail Segment Eliminations Totals
(in thousands)
Revenue
Retail motor fuel sales $ — 2,376,608 $ 2,376,608
Wholesale motor fuel sales to third parties 4,235,415 — 4,235,415
Wholesale motor fuel sales to affiliates — — —
Merchandise sales — 651,324 651,324
Rental income 14,769 9,980 24,749
Other income (2,468) 57,209 54,741
Intersegment sales 1,787,423 44,891 (1,832,314) —
Total revenue 6,035,139 3,140,012 (1,832,314) 7,342,837
Gross profit
Retail motor fuel — 270,087 270,087
Wholesale motor fuel 31,752 — 31,752
Merchandise — 196,522 196,522
Rental and other 19,968 57,730 77,698
Total gross profit 51,720 524,339 576,059
Total operating expenses 104,220 434,305 538,525
Income (loss) from operations (52,500) 90,034 37,534
Unallocated interest expense, net 2,595 8,340 10,935
Income (loss) before income taxes (55,095) 81,694 26,599
Income tax expense 67,760 11,784 79,544
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) $ (122,855) 69,910 $ (52,945)
Depreciation, amortization and accretion 24,514 61,728 86,242
Interest expense, net 2,595 8,340 10,935
Income tax expense 67,760 11,784 79,544
EBITDA (27,986) 151,762 123,776
Non-cash compensation expense 428 4,488 4916
Gain on disposal of assets (270) (707) 977)
Unrealized gain on commodity derivatives (1,096) — (1,096)
Inventory fair value adjustments 176,710 28,633 205,343
Adjusted EBITDA $ 147,786 184,176 $ 331,962
Capital expenditures 5,382 148,769 $ 154,151
Total assets $ 842,975 7,930,105 $ 8,773,080

20. Net Income per Unit

Net income per unit applicable to limited partners (including subordinated unitholders prior to the conversion of our subordinated units on November 30, 2015) is
computed by dividing limited partners’ interest in net income by the weighted-average number of outstanding common and subordinated units. Our net income is allocated
to the limited partners in accordance with their respective partnership percentages, after giving effect to any priority income allocations for incentive distributions and
distributions on employee unit awards. Earnings in excess of distributions are allocated to the limited partners based on their respective ownership interests. Payments made
to our unitholders are determined in relation to actual distributions declared and are not based on the net income allocations used in the calculation of net income per unit.

In addition to the common and subordinated units, we identify the IDRs as participating securities and use the two-class method when calculating net income per
unit applicable to limited partners, which is based on the weighted-average number of common units outstanding during the period. Diluted net income per unit includes the
effects of potentially dilutive units on our common units, consisting of unvested phantom units. Basic and diluted net income per unit applicable to subordinated limited
partners are the same because there are no potentially dilutive subordinated units outstanding.

F-41



We also disclose limited p artner units issued and outstanding. A reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted per unit computations is
as follows:

Successor Predecessor
Twelve months September 1, 2014 January 1, 2014 Twelve months
ended through through ended
December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 August 31,2014 December 31, 2013
(dollars in thousands, except units and per unit amounts)
Net income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) $ 194,069 $ (52,945) $ 22,510 $ 37,027
Less: Net income and comprehensive income
attributable to noncontrolling interest 3,816 1,043 — —
Less: Preacquisition income (loss)
allocated to general partner 103,015 (88,221) — —
Net income and comprehensive income
attributable to partners 87,238 34,233 22,510 37,027
Less:
Incentive distribution rights 29,784 1,146 64 —
MACS earnings prior to October 1, 2014 — 5,878 — —
Distributions on nonvested phantom unit awards 1,890 405 — —
Limited partners' interest in net income $ 55,564 $ 26,804 $ 22,446  $ 37,027
Weighted average limited partner units outstanding:
Common - basic 40,253,913 20,572,373 11,023,617 10,964,258
Common - equivalents 21,738 6,382 25,128 21,844
Common - diluted 40,275,651 20,578,755 11,048,745 10,986,102
Subordinated - (basic and diluted) 10,010,333 10,939,436 10,939,436 10,939,436
Net income per limited partner unit:
Common - basic and diluted $ .11 § 0.85 $ 1.02 $ 1.69
Subordinated - basic and diluted (1) $ 140 $ 0.85 $ 1.02 § 1.69

(1)  The subordination period ended on November 30, 2015, at which time outstanding subordinated units were converted to common units. Distributions and the partners' interest
in net income were allocated to the subordinated units through November 30, 2015.
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21. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following table sets forth certain unaudited financial and operating data for each quarter during 2015 and 2014. The unaudited quarterly information includes all
normal recurring adjustments that we consider necessary for a fair presentation of the information shown.

Successor Predecessor
2015 2014
4th 3rd 2nd 1st 4th 3rd 2nd Ist
QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR (1) QTR QTR

Motor fuel sales $ 3,462,757 $ 4,248,779 $§ 4498806 $ 3,805,126 $ 4,761,230 $ 2,745,829 $ 1,370,124 $ 1,210,656
Merchandise sales 545,084 589,300 560,680 483,123 490,767 160,557 — —
Rental and other income 68,666 68,694 66,598 62,603 62,009 22,022 5,901 5,931
Total revenues $ 4,076,507 $ 4,906,773 $§ 5,126,084 $§ 4350,852 $ 5,314,006 $ 2928408 $ 1,376,025 $§ 1,216,587
Motor fuel gross profit $ 227,747 $ 272,176 $ 302,655 $ 240,087 $ 275299 $ 38,910 $ 17,067 $ 17,210
Merchandise gross profit 169,744 185,122 176,811 148,201 147,778 48,744 — —
Other gross profit 67,209 67,462 65,744 60,945 66,293 15,393 5,136 4,910
Total gross profit $ 464,700 $ 524,760 $ 545210 $ 449233 § 489370 $ 103,047 $ 22,203 § 22,120
Income (loss) from

operations $ 50,978 § 93351 § 123,658 $ 65,346 $ 56,631 $ (14,732) $ 11,489 § 11,641
Net income (loss) and

comprehensive

income (loss) $ 16,518 $ 34,711  $ 93,534 $ 49,306 $ (27.476) $ (22,686) $ 9,595 § 10,132
Net income

attributable to partners $ 7,755 $ 27,544 $ 34867 $ 17,072  $ 35989 $ 1,027 $ 9,595 $ 10,132
Net income (loss)

per limited partner unit:
Common

(basic and diluted) $ 0.13) $ 030 § 087 $ 044 § 083 § 004 $ 043 § 0.46
Subordinated

(basic and diluted) $ 0.10 $ 052 § 087 $ 044 § 083 § 004 $ 043 § 0.46

1) The third quarter of 2014 includes Successor results of operations for the period from September 1, 2014 through September 30, 2014 following the ETP Merger.
Also included through retrospective adjustment are results of operations for MACS, Sunoco LLC, Sunoco Retail, and Susser for the period from September 1, 2014
through September 30, 2014, and all subsequent quarters, as these acquisitions are accounted for as transactions of entities under common control (see Note 4).

22. Subsequent Events

On July 11, 2016, we entered into a definitive agreement to purchase the convenience store, wholesale motor fuel distribution, and commercial fuels distribution
business serving central Texas and eastern Louisiana from Denny Oil Company (“Denny”) for approximately $55.0 million, subject to working capital and other
adjustments. The purchase agreement comprises 13 fee properties, approximately 127 supply contracts with dealer-owned and operated sites, and over 500 commercial
accounts in Denny’s commercial fuels and lubricants division. The transaction is scheduled to close in the fourth quarter of 2016, subject to the satisfaction of customary
closing conditions.

On June 23, 2016, we entered into a definitive agreement to purchase the fuels business (the "Fuels Business") from Emerge Energy Services LP (NYSE: EMES)
("Emerge") for $178.5 million, subject to working capital and other adjustments. The Fuels Business comprises Dallas-based Direct Fuels LLC and Birmingham-based
Allied Energy Company LLC, both wholly owned subsidiaries of Emerge, and engages in the processing of transmix and the distribution of refined fuels. The transaction is
scheduled to close in the third quarter of 2016, subject to regulatory clearances and the satisfaction of other customary closing conditions.
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On June 22, 2016, we completed two previously announced acquisitions totaling approximately $115.0 million. We purchased 14 company-operated convenience
stores and wholesale fuel supply contracts for a network of independent dealer-owned and dealer-operate d locations in the greater Austin, Houston, and Waco, Texas
markets from Kolkhorst Petroleum, Inc. We also purchased 18 company-operated convenience stores and one standalone Tim Hortons restaurant in upstate New York from
Valentine Stores, Inc.

On April 7, 2016, we and certain of our wholly-owned subsidiaries, including SUN Finance (together with the Partnership, the “2021 Issuers”), completed a private
offering of $800.0 million 6.250% senior notes due 2021 (the “2021 Senior Notes™). The terms of the 2021 Senior Notes are governed by an indenture dated April 7, 2016,
among the 2021 Issuers, our General Partner, and certain other subsidiaries of the Partnership (the “2021 Guarantors”) and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee. The
2021 Senior Notes will mature on April 15, 2021 and interest is payable semi-annually on April 15 and October 15 of each year, commencing October 15, 2016. The 2021
Senior Notes are senior obligations of the 2021 Issuers and are guaranteed on a senior basis by all of the Partnership’s existing subsidiaries and certain of its future
subsidiaries. The 2021 Senior Notes and guarantees are unsecured and rank equally with all of the 2021 Issuers’ and each 2021 Guarantor’s existing and future senior
obligations. The 2021 Senior Notes are senior in right of payment to any of the 2021 Issuers’ and each 2021 Guarantor’s future obligations that are, by their terms, expressly
subordinated in right of payment to the 2021 Senior Notes and guarantees. The 2021 Senior Notes and guarantees are effectively subordinated to the 2021 Issuers’ and each
2021 Guarantor’s secured obligations, including obligations under the Partnership’s 2014 Revolver, to the extent of the value of the collateral securing such obligations, and
structurally subordinated to all indebtedness and obligations, including trade payables, of the Partnership’s subsidiaries that do not guarantee the 2021 Senior Notes.

Net proceeds of approximately $789.4 million were used to repay a portion of the borrowings outstanding under our Term Loan.

On March 31, 2016, we entered into a term loan agreement (the “Term Loan”) to finance a portion of the costs associated with the ETP Dropdown. The Term Loan
provides secured financing in an aggregate principal amount of up to $2.035 billion, which we borrowed in full. The Partnership used the proceeds to fund a portion of the
ETP Dropdown and to pay fees and expenses incurred in connection with the ETP Dropdown and Term Loan.

Obligations under the Term Loan are secured equally and ratably with the 2014 Revolver (as defined below) by substantially all tangible and intangible assets of the
Partnership and certain of our subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions and permitted liens. Obligations under the Term Loan are guaranteed by certain of the Partnership’s
subsidiaries. In addition, ETP Retail provided a limited contingent guaranty of collection with respect to the payment of the principal amount of the Term Loan. The
maturity date of the Term Loan is October 1, 2019. The Partnership is not required to make any amortization payments with respect to the loans under the Term Loan.
Amounts borrowed under the Term Loan bear interest at either LIBOR or base rate plus an applicable margin based on the election of the Partnership for each interest
period. Until the Partnership first receives an investment grade rating, the applicable margin for LIBOR rate loans ranges from 1.500% to 2.500% and the applicable margin
for base rate loans ranges from 0.500% to 1.500%, in each case based on the Partnership’s leverage ratio.

The Partnership may voluntarily prepay borrowings under the Term Loan at any time without premium or penalty, subject to any applicable breakage costs for loans
bearing interest at LIBOR. Under certain circumstances, the Partnership is required to repay borrowings under the Term Loan in connection with the issuance by the
Partnership of certain types of indebtedness for borrowed money. The Term Loan also includes certain (i) representations and warranties, (ii) affirmative covenants,
including delivery of financial and other information to the administrative agent, notice to the administrative agent upon the occurrence of certain material events,
preservation of existence, payment of material taxes and other claims, maintenance of properties and insurance, access to properties and records for inspection by
administrative agent and lenders, further assurances and provision of additional guarantees and collateral, (iii) negative covenants, including restrictions on the Partnership
and our restricted subsidiaries’ ability to merge and consolidate with other companies, incur indebtedness, grant liens or security interests on assets, make loans, advances or
investments, pay dividends, sell or otherwise transfer assets or enter into transactions with shareholders or affiliates and (iv) events of default, in each case substantially
similar to the representations and warranties, affirmative and negative covenants and events of default in the Partnership’s existing revolving credit facility.

The Term Loan also requires the maintenance of a maximum funded debt to EBITDA ratio (i) as of the last day of each fiscal quarter through March 31, 2017, of
6.25 to 1.0 at any time with respect to the Partnership and (ii) as of the last day of each fiscal quarter thereafter, of 5.5 to 1.0 at any time with respect to the Partnership
(subject to increases to 6.0 to 1.0 in connection with certain future specified acquisitions). During the continuance of an event of default, the lenders under the Term Loan
may take a number of actions, including declaring the entire amount then outstanding under the Term Loan due and payable.
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